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DEFINITIONS

Except where the context otherwise requires, the following definitions shall apply throughout this Circular and

the accompanying appendices:

“13M-FPE”
“SD-VWAP”
“Act”
“Announcement”

“Announcement LPD”

“Agreements”
“BDO”

“Board”

“Bursa Securities”
“BVI”

“CAGR”

“Cash Consideration”

“China” or “PRC”

“Circular”

“Completion”

“Completion Date”

“Consideration Shares”

“Director”

“EDM”
“EGM”

“End-User Customers”

“EPS?’
“Expert’s Report”

“FPE 2018~
“FYE”
“GDP”

“IMR Report”

“Issue Price”

13-month period ended

5-day volume weighted average market price

Companies Act 2016

The announcement of the Proposed Acquisition dated 24 May 2021

21 May 2021, being the latest practicable date prior to the
Announcement

SPA and Supplemental Deed, collectively

BDO Capital Consultants Sdn Bhd (199601032957 (405309-T))
Board of Directors of our Company

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (200301033577 (635998-W))
British Virgin Islands

Compounded annual growth rate

Cash payment of RM75,000,000 which forms part of the Purchase
Consideration

The People’s Republic of China

This circular to shareholders dated 8 July 2021 in relation to the
Proposed Acquisition

Completion of the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares under the SPA

The date on which Completion takes place, which shall be (a) on the
fifth business day after the satisfaction of all the conditions precedent
set out in the SPA (unless waived by the relevant Party); or (b) such
other date as the Parties may mutually agree in writing

Up to 110,294,117 new KAB Shares to be issued pursuant to the
Proposed Acquisition

A natural person who holds a directorship in our Company, whether
in an executive or non-executive capacity, and shall have the meaning
given in Section 2(1) of the Act and Section 2(1) of the Capital
Markets and Services Act 2007

Enterprise data management
Extraordinary general meeting of our Company

End-users  from various industries including financial,
manufacturing, internet, media and entertainment as well as
government agencies

Earnings per KAB Share

Expert’s report in relation to the fairness of the Purchase
Consideration for the Proposed Acquisition dated 5 July 2021
prepared by BDO

Financial period from 24 May 2018 to 31 December 2018
Financial year ended/ ending, as the case may be
Gross domestic product

Independent Market Research Report on the EDM industry in China
dated 22 June 2021 prepared by Providence

Issue price of RM0.68 per Consideration Share



DEFINITIONS (CONT’D)

“IT”

“KAB” or “Company” or
“Purchaser”

“KAB Group” or “Group”
“KAB Shares” or “Shares”

“Lavender Blooms” or the “Vendor”

“Legal Opinion”

“Listing Requirements”

“LPD”

“NA”

“Parties”

‘GPAT”
‘GPBT’7
“PE Multiple”

“Placement Shares”

“Private Placement”

“Profit Warranty 2022
“Profit Warranty 2023
“Profit Warranties”

“Proposed Acquisition”

“Providence”

“Public Shareholding Spread
Requirement”

“Purchase Consideration”

“QCL”
“QCL Group”
“QCL Shares”
“QST”

“Quantum”

Information technology
Kronologi Asia Berhad (201301037868 (1067697-K))

KAB and our subsidiaries, collectively
Ordinary shares in our Company
Lavender Blooms Investments Limited (2017357)

Legal opinion in relation to inter alia ownership of title to securities
or assets and the enforceability of agreements, representations and
undertakings given by QCL Group, licensing, government regulation
and other relevant legal matters as well as policies on foreign
investments, taxation and repatriation of profits dated 5 July 2021
prepared by Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP

ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities

22 June 2021, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this Circular

Net assets attributable to ordinary equity holders of the company

Our Company and/or the Vendor, collectively, and “Party” shall
mean any one of them

Profit after taxation
Profit before taxation
Price-to-earnings ratio

104,675,000 new KAB Shares allotted and issued pursuant to the
Private Placement.

Private placement of 104,675,000 new KAB Shares which was
completed on 7 May 2021

PAT of USD2,000,000 for the FYE 31 January 2022
PAT of USD2,500,000 for the FYE 31 January 2023
Profit Warranty 2022 and Profit Warranty 2023, collectively

Proposed acquisition of the Sale Shares currently held by the VVendor,
for the Purchase Consideration, to be satisfied via a combination of
the Cash Consideration and the issuance of the Consideration Shares
at the Issue Price

Providence Strategic Partners Sdn Bhd (201701024744 (1238910-
A)), an independent researcher and consulting firm

Rule 8.02 of the Listing Requirements wherein a listed corporation
must ensure that at least 25% of its total listed shares (excluding
treasury shares) are in the hands of public shareholders

Purchase consideration of up to RM150,000,000 pursuant to the
Proposed Acquisition

Quantum China Limited (1980361)
QCL and its subsidiaries, collectively
Ordinary shares in QCL

Quantum  Storage  Technology  (Shenzhen)  Co.,  Ltd.
(91440300MA5FB6FA3G)

Quantum Corporation



DEFINITIONS (CONT’D)

“Record of Depositors” :Arrecord of depositors provided by Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn
Bhd to our Company under the rules of Bursa Malaysia Depository
Sdn Bhd

“RM” and “sen” : Ringgit Malaysia and sen, respectively

“RMB” . Renminbi

“Sale Shares” ;100 QCL Shares, being the remaining equity interest in QCL not

already held by KAB as at the Completion Date which is to be sold
by the Vendor to the Purchaser on the terms and subject to the
conditions of the Agreements

“Service Partner Agreement” . Service Partner Agreement entered into between Quantum and QCL
on 20 July 2018 in conjunction with the Strategic Marketing
Agreement

“SPA” :  Conditional sale and purchase agreement entered into between the
Vendor and our Company on 24 May 2021 for the Proposed
Acquisition

“Strategic Marketing Agreement” . Strategic Marketing Agreement entered into between Quantum and
QCL on 20 July 2018 to appoint QCL as the exclusive partner and
marketer of the Quantum branded products in the PRC, and provide
maintenance support and services for the products

“Supplemental Deed” . Supplemental deed entered into between the Vendor and our
Company on 2 July 2021 to include additional clause under the Profit
Warranties clause of the SPA

“TA Securities” :  TA Securities Holdings Berhad (197301001467 (14948-M))
“us” : United States of America

“USD” : US Dollar

“VWAP” : Volume weighted average market price

“YoY” : Year-on-year

“zZB” . Zettabytes

All references to “our Company” in this Circular are to KAB, references to “our Group” are to our Company and
2 (13 2

our subsidiaries. All references to “we”, “us”, “our” and “ourselves” are to our Company, or where the context
requires, our Group. All references to “you” in this Circular are references to the shareholders of our Company.

Words incorporating the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa and words
incorporating the masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and neuter genders and vice
Vversa.

Reference to persons shall include a corporation, unless otherwise specified. Any reference in this Circular to any
enactment is a reference to that enactment as for the time being amended or re-enacted. Any reference to a time
of day in this Circular shall be a reference to Malaysian time, unless otherwise specified.

Unless otherwise stated, the exchange rate of USD1.00:RM4.1420 being the Bank Negara Malaysia’s middle rate
as at 5.00 p.m. on the Announcement LPD is used throughout this Circular.

Any exchange rate translations in this Circular are provided solely for convenience of readers and should not be
constituted as representative that the translated amounts stated in this Circular could have been or would have
been converted into such other amounts or vice versa.

Certain amounts and percentage figures included herein have been subject to rounding adjustments. Any

discrepancy between the figures shown herein and figures published by our Company, such as in the quarterly
results or annual reports of our Company (as the case may be), is due to rounding.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

THIS EXECUTIVE SUMMARY SETS OUT SALIENT INFORMATION ON THE PROPOSED
ACQUISITION. PLEASE READ THIS CIRCULAR AND ITS APPENDICES CAREFULLY FOR
FURTHER DETAILS ON THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION BEFORE VOTING.

Our Board is recommending to our shareholders to vote in favour of the resolution in relation to the Proposed
Acquisition to be tabled at the forthcoming EGM.

PROPOSED ACQUISITION
Purpose : For our Company to acquire the remaining 100 QCL Shares,
representing 83.33% of the equity interest in QCL, from the Vendor.
Please refer to Section 2 of this Circular which contains further
details on the Proposed Acquisition.
Purchase Consideration : Up to RM150,000,000 to be satisfied via a combination of the Cash
Consideration and the issuance of Consideration Shares.
Please refer to Section 3.1 of this Circular for further details on the
basis and justification in arriving at the Purchase Consideration.

Cash Consideration : RM75,000,000.

Consideration Shares © Up to 110,294,117 KAB Shares to be issued to the Vendor or its

nominee at the Issue Price.

Issue Price : RMO.68 per Consideration Share.

Please refer to Section 3.1 of this Circular for further details on the
basis and justification in arriving at the Issue Price.

Rationale . e To further expand our marketing, distribution and customer
coverage footprint in China.

e To have control over the strategic direction and management of
QCL Group.

e Our Board expects the Proposed Acquisition to contribute
positively to the future earnings of our Group.

Please refer to Section 4 of this Circular which contains further

details on the rationale for the Proposed Acquisition.

Risk factors © e Acquisition risk where our Group may fail to realise the
anticipated benefits of the Proposed Acquisition, generate
sufficient revenue and earnings therefrom to offset the
associated acquisition costs incurred.

e Further exposure to business, operational and financial risks
associated with QCL Group.

o Risk of non-fulfilment of the Agreements and/or the Profit
Warranties (or any of them).

e Political, economic and regulatory risk.

Please refer to Section 6 of this Circular which contains further

details on the risk factors arising from the Proposed Acquisition.




KRONOLOGI ASIA BERHAD
(Registration No. 201301037868 (1067697-K))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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Board of Directors

Geoffrey Ng Ching Fung (Independent Non-Executive Chairman)
Edmond Tay Nam Hiong (Executive Director / Chief Executive Officer)
Tan Jeck Min (Executive Director / Chief Operating Officer)

John Chin Shoo Ted (Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)

Kok Cheang-Hung (Independent Non-Executive Director)

To:

Our Shareholders

Dear Sir/Madam,

PROPOSED ACQUISITION

1.

INTRODUCTION

On 24 May 2021, TA Securities announced on behalf of our Board that we propose to undertake the
Proposed Acquisition by entering into the SPA with the Vendor to acquire the remaining 83.33% equity
interest in QCL comprising 100 QCL Shares for the Purchase Consideration.

On 2 July 2021, TA Securities announced on behalf of our Board that our Company entered into the
Supplemental Deed to include additional clause under the Profit Warranties clause of the SPA. The
additional clause was made to allow for any excess amount (being the difference between the audited PAT
for 31 January 2022 and the Profit Warranty 2022) to be cumulatively added to the audited PAT for 31
January 2023, to determine whether the Profit Warranty 2023 has been achieved.

Bursa Securities had vide its letter dated 2 July 2021 approved the listing of and quotation for up to
110,294,117 Consideration Shares on the ACE Market of Bursa Securities, subject to the conditions as
stated in Section 10 of this Circular.

THE PURPOSE OF THIS CIRCULAR IS TO PROVIDE YOU WITH THE RELEVANT
INFORMATION OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION, TO SET OUT OUR BOARD’S
RECOMMENDATION ON THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION AND TO SEEK YOUR
APPROVAL FOR THE RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION TO
BE TABLED AT OUR FORTHCOMING EGM. THE NOTICE OF EGM TOGETHERWITH THE
PROXY FORM ARE ENCLOSED IN THIS CIRCULAR.

YOU ARE ADVISED TO READ AND CONSIDER THE CONTENTS OF THIS CIRCULAR
TOGETHER WITH THE APPENDICES CONTAINED HEREIN CAREFULLY BEFORE
VOTING ON THE RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION TO BE
TABLED AT OUR FORTHCOMING EGM.



DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

Pursuant to the Agreements, the Sale Shares shall be acquired free from all encumbrances (including but
not limited to any form of legal, equitable, or security interests, including but not limited to any mortgage,
assignment of receivables, debenture, lien, charge, pledge, title retention, right to acquire, security interest,
hypothecation, option, right of first refusal, any preference arrangement (including title transfers and
retention arrangements or otherwise), any other encumbrance or condition whatsoever, or any other
arrangements having similar effect) and together with all rights and advantages attaching or accruing to it
as at the Completion Date (including the right to receive all dividends and distributions declared, made or
paid on or after the Completion Date).

The Purchase Consideration shall be fully satisfied through the allotment and issuance of the Consideration
Shares to the Vendor (and/or its nominee) and the payment of a Cash Consideration which shall be
apportioned as follows:

(i) 1stPayment Tranche: Payment of RM99,000,000, which shall be fully satisfied by RM75,000,000
in cash and the allotment and issuance of 35,294,117 Consideration Shares by our Company to the
Vendor (and/or its nominee) at the Issue Price on the Completion Date.

(i) 2" Payment Tranche: Payment of RM37,400,000 (“2nd Payment Consideration Amount”),
which shall be fully satisfied by the allotment and issuance of 55,000,000 Consideration Shares by
our Company to the Vendor (and/or its nominee) at the Issue Price, upon the QCL Group achieving
the Profit Warranty 2022 based on the consolidated audited accounts of the QCL Group for FYE
31 January 2022 subject always to Completion having taken place. The 2" Payment Tranche shall
be payable within 14 days after the issuance of the consolidated audited accounts of the QCL Group
for FYE 31 January 2022 or such other date as the Parties may mutually agree in writing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 2" Payment Consideration Amount shall be adjusted
downwards proportionately in accordance with Section 3(ii) of Appendix | of this Circular in the
event that QCL Group fails to achieve the Profit Warranty 2022 based on the consolidated audited
accounts for FYE 31 January 2022.

(ili) 37 Payment Tranche: Payment of RM13,600,000 (“3rd Payment Consideration Amount”),
which shall be fully satisfied by the allotment and issuance of 20,000,000 Consideration Shares by
our Company to the Vendor (and/or its nominee) at the Issue Price, upon the QCL Group achieving
the Profit Warranty 2023 based on the consolidated audited accounts of the QCL Group for FYE
31 January 2023 subject always to Completion having taken place. The 3™ Payment Tranche shall
be payable within 14 days after the issuance of the consolidated audited accounts of the QCL Group
for FYE 31 January 2023 or such other date as the Parties may mutually agree in writing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 3™ Payment Consideration Amount shall be adjusted
downwards proportionately in accordance with Sections 3(ii) and 3(iii) of Appendix | of this
Circular in the event that QCL Group fails to achieve the Profit Warranty 2023 based on the
consolidated audited accounts for FYE 31 January 2023.

The salient terms of the Agreements in relation to the Proposed Acquisition are set out in Appendix | of
this Circular.

After completion of the Proposed Acquisition and assuming all Consideration Shares are fully issued to
the Vendor (and/or its nominee), the Vendor’s (and/or its nominee’s) shareholding in our Company will
increase from nil as at the LPD to 110,294,117 KAB Shares (equivalent to 14.94% of the enlarged share
capital of KAB upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition) and QCL will become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company.

The Proposed Acquisition will not result in non-compliance with the Public Shareholding Spread
Requirement. The effects of the Proposed Acquisition on the substantial shareholders’ shareholdings in

our Company are set out in Section 8.4 of this Circular.

Further information on QCL Group is set out in Appendix 11 of this Circular.
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Ranking of the Consideration Shares

The Consideration Shares, when allotted and issued, shall rank in all respects equally with the
existing issued KAB Shares as at the date they are being allotted and issued, save and except that
the Consideration Shares shall not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other
distributions that may be declared, made or paid to the shareholders of our Company, the entitlement
date of which is prior to the date of allotment and issuance of the Consideration Shares.

Source of funding

Our Company intends to fund the Cash Consideration of RM75,000,000 which forms part of the
Purchase Consideration via internally-generated funds of RM25,000,000 and RM50,000,000 from
the proceeds raised from the Private Placement. As stated in the announcements dated 22 March
2021 and 30 March 2021 in relation to the Private Placement, the Group had allocated
RM50,000,000 for its future business expansion.

Liabilities to be assumed by our Company

Save for the liabilities arising from the ordinary course of business of QCL Group, our Company
will not be assuming any liabilities, including contingent liabilities and guarantees, pursuant to the
Proposed Acquisition.

Additional financial commitment

Our Company is not required to make any additional financial commitment to put the business of
QCL Group on-stream as QCL Group is already in operation.

Information on the Vendor

Lavender Blooms was incorporated in the BVI on 9 July 2019 under the BVI Business Companies
Act as a private limited company.

Lavender Blooms is an investment holding company.

As at the LPD, the issued share capital of Lavender Blooms is USD100, comprising 100 ordinary
shares in Lavender Blooms with a par value of USD1.00 each.

The directors of Lavender Blooms as at the LPD are as follows:

Name of Director Nationality
Tan Chiaw Tzee (Chen Qiaozhi) Singaporean
Thiam Boon Siong Singaporean

The shareholders of Lavender Blooms and their shareholdings as at the LPD are as follows:

Name Direct Indirect

No. of shares % | No. of shares %
Tan Chiaw Tzee (Chen Qiaozhi) 75 75 - -
Thiam Boon Siong 25 25 - -

[The rest of this page has been intentionally left blank]



3. BASIS OF AND JUSTIFICATION FOR THE PURCHASE CONSIDERATION
3.1 Basis of and justification in arriving at the Purchase Consideration and issue price of the
Consideration Shares
The Purchase Consideration was arrived at on a “willing-buyer willing-seller” basis after taking
into consideration the following:
Q) the Profit Warranty 2022 and Profit Warranty 2023 as detailed in the Profit Warranties clause
in Section 3 of Appendix I this Circular; and
(if)  the future prospects of the QCL Group and our enlarged Group as set out in Section 5.3 of
this Circular.
For information purpose, the Purchase Consideration represents the PE Multiple of:
(i) 21.73 times based on the Profit Warranty 2022 of USD2.0 million (equivalent to
approximately RM8.28 million) as illustrated below:
PE Multiple = Purchase Consideration
83.33% of Profit Warranty 2022
= RM150,000,000
83.33% x RM8,284,000
=  21.73 (rounded to 2 decimal places)
(i)  17.38 times based on the Profit Warranty 2023 of USD2.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RM10.36 million) as illustrated below:
PE Multiple = Purchase Consideration
83.33% of Profit Warranty 2023
= RM150,000,000
83.33% x RM10,355,000
= 17.38 (rounded to 2 decimal places)
Our Board is of the view that the business activities of QCL Group are broadly comparable to the
business activities of the following comparable companies:
Market | Trailing PAT for
capitalisation as the past 12
at the | months up to the
Selected Announcement Announcement PE
comparable LPD LPD | Multiple®
companies Principal activities (million) (million) (times)
KAB EDM infrastructure RM379.97® RM12.15@) 31.28
(listed on Bursa technology business
Securities) providing hardware and
software solutions to

enterprises for data storage
and protection as well as
EDM managed services,
enabling organisations to
unlock the potential of their
digital data by managing,
preserving and protecting
data over its entire lifecycle




Market | Trailing PAT for
capitalisation as the past 12
at the | months up to the
Selected Announcement Announcement PE
comparable LPD LPD | Multiple®
companies Principal activities (million) (million) (times)
Microware Group | Designs, integrates, and HKD279.00® HKD49.81 5.60
Limited maintains 1T infrastructure
(listed on the Hong | solutions such as
Kong Stock | virtualisation, cloud
Exchange) computing, collaboration
tools, and cyber security
system.
Expert  Systems | Provision of a variety of HKD133.60% HKD19.37 6.90
Holdings Limited | services  for  enterprise
(listed on the Hong | management,  networking,
Kong Stock | information security, high
Exchange) performance computing,
cloud services, and more.
Premier Through its  subsidiaries, THB1,674.940 THB176.15 9.51
Technology PCL | provides  enterprise IT
(listed on the Stock | solutions and services. The
Exchange of | company distributes, installs,
Thailand) and services hardware IT
products such as servers,
network infrastructure, and
multimedia products, as well
as offers system, data
management, and application
software.
NetApp Inc Provision of storage and data | USD17,249.36%) USD592.00 29.14
(listed on  the | management solutions. The
Nasdag Stock | company’s storage solutions
Market) include specialised hardware,
software, and services that
provide storage management
for open network
environments.
High 31.28
Low 5.60

(Source
Notes:
@

@

©))

4)

: Annual and/or financial reports of the respective companies and Bloomberg)

Based on the closing price of the respective share as at the Announcement LPD.
Based on the closing price as at 5pm on 20 May 2021 (New York time).

Annualised based on our unaudited financial statements for the 13M-FPE 31 January 2021 after
adjusting for the property, plant and equipment written off during the financial period.

The PE Multiple was computed by dividing the market capitalisation of the respective company as at
the Announcement LPD with the trailing PAT for the past 12 months of the respective company up to
the Announcement LPD.



3.2

As there is no company that is exactly similar or directly comparable to the QCL Group in terms of
composition of business, scale of operations, track record, shareholders’ profile, marketability,
liquidity and future prospects, the above comparable companies were selected based on the basis
of:

(M being currently listed on stock exchanges; and

(i) being profitable, based on their latest trailing 12 months PAT prior to the Announcement
LPD with majority of their consolidated revenue from IT infrastructure, solutions and
services related business.

Premised on the above, the PE Multiple for the Proposed Acquisition which ranges from 17.38
times and 21.73 times is within the PE Multiples of the above comparable companies of between
5.60 times and 31.28 times.

Our Board has also taken into cognisance the Expert’s Report by BDO, whereby the indicative
values of 83.33% equity interest in QCL Shares as contained therein for the purpose of their opinion
on the fairness of the total Purchase Consideration for the Proposed Acquisition ranges from
USD33.4 million to USD37.4 million (equivalent to approximately RM134.9 million to RM151.0
million translated based on the exchange rate of USD1.00:RM4.040 as at 29 January 2021, being
the last business day prior to the date of evaluation by BDO). The details of the Expert’s Report are
set out in Appendix V of this Circular.

The issue price was fixed at RMO0.68 per Consideration Share, representing a premium of RM0.0649
or approximately 10.55% to the 5D-VWAP of KAB Shares up to and including 12 May 2021 (being
the last trading date immediately preceding the execution of the SPA) of RM0.6151.

Our Board is of the view that the Issue Price is fair after taking into consideration the historical
share prices of KAB Shares up to and including the Announcement LPD as follows:

VWAP up to and including the Price per Share
Announcement LPD (RM)
5-day 0.6151
1-month 0.6827
3-month 0.7474
6-month 0.7559
1-year 0.6673

Reasonableness of the Profit Warranties

Our Board is of the opinion that the Profit Warranties of USD2.0 million (equivalent to
approximately RM8.28 million) for the FYE 31 January 2022 and USD2.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RM10.36 million) for the FYE 31 January 2023 is reasonable and realistic after
taking into consideration the following:

M the audited PAT of QCL Group of USD0.39 million for the FYE 31 December 2019;
(i)  the audited PAT of QCL Group of USD1.52 million for the 13M-FPE 31 January 2021; and
(iii)  the prospects of QCL Group and our enlarged Group as set out in Section 5.3 of this Circular.

As stated in Section 3(ii) of Appendix | of this Circular, in the event of any shortfall in the Profit
Warranties, the consideration payable for the 2" and/or 3™ tranche payment for the Purchase
Consideration, and the number of Consideration Shares shall be accordingly reduced.

As stated in Section 3(v) of Appendix I of this Circular, if the audited PAT for FYE 31 January
2022 exceeds the amount of the Profit Warranty 2022, such excess amount (being the difference
between the audited PAT for FYE 31 January 2022 and the Profit Warranty 2022) shall be added
to the audited PAT for FYE 31 January 2023, to determine whether the Profit Warranty 2023 has
been achieved.



RATIONALE AND BENEFITS OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

Currently, our Group specialises in the provision of EDM infrastructure technology (i.e., EDM hardware
refers to computer components used to record, store and retain digital data while EDM software supports
the process of data backup, storage, recovery and restoration) and EDM managed services (i.e.,
comprehensive services provided for data assurance and operational continuity comprising backup,
storage, recovery and restoration of enterprise data, health checks, capacity planning, remote monitoring
and disaster recovery services). Our Group currently has business operations in the Philippines, Singapore,
China, Hong Kong, Taiwan, Malaysia, India, Indonesia, and Thailand.

Our Group’s revenue breakdown by country based on our audited financial statements for the FYE 31
December 2019 and for the 13M-FPE 31 January 2021 are as follows:

FYE 31 December 2019 13M-FPE 31 January 2021

Country RM’000 % RM’000 %
Philippines 75,751 32.17 84,962 32.00
Singapore 71,900 30.53 143,088 53.90
China 28,913 12.28 24 ~
Hong Kong and Taiwan 27,784 11.80 17,115 6.45
India 17,111 7.27 13,826 5.21
Malaysia 2,313 0.97 1,731 0.65
Others 11,728 4.98 4,748 1.79
Total 235,500 100.00 265,494 100.00

Note:

~ Negligible.

QCL Group is principally involved in the EDM infrastructure technology business providing data storage,
protection and archival solutions to enterprises. QCL Group is based in the PRC and provide their products
and services to customers in the PRC.

As at the LPD, our Company holds 16.67% of the equity interest in QCL, which has remained unchanged
since our Company’s subscription to equity in QCL on 21 November 2018. QCL is deemed as our associate
company. Our Group’s share of results of equity-accounted associate for the FYE 31 December 2018, FYE
31 December 2019 and 13M-FPE 31 January 2021 are as follows:

Audited
FYE 31 FYE 31 13M-FPE 31
December 2018 December 2019 January 2021
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Share of results 66 309 1,057

With the Proposed Acquisition, our Group will be able to further expand our marketing, distribution and
customer coverage footprint to an EDM market with growth opportunities that are potentially larger than
the market geographies currently served by our Group, spurred by the rapid pace of technology
advancements and adoption of EDM solutions in China.

According to the IMR Report, the EDM industry in China grew at a robust CAGR of 23.3% from about
USD26.3 billion in 2018 to about USD40.2 billion in 2020. The growth of the EDM industry in China is
forecasted to further accelerate at a CAGR of 29.8% from approximately USD51.9 billion in 2021 to
approximately USD87.5 billion in 2023. The strong growth trend exhibited by the EDM industry in China
has been, and is expected to continue to be driven by the move towards digitalisation of businesses,
increased use of cloud technology, increasing volume of digital data and initiatives from the government
of China to encourage digitalisation among businesses. (Source: IMR Report)



Premised on the above industry statistics and in line with our Group’s ongoing business plan to expand our
presence in a market with growth opportunities, our Board is of the view that it is beneficial for our Group
to acquire the remaining QCL Shares not already owned by our Company in order to further support and
develop QCL’s existing customer base to expand our Group’s overall market presence in China, thereby
enabling our Group to tap into the growing EDM industry in the country. In addition, the Proposed
Acquisition will enable our Group to have control over the strategic direction and management of QCL
Group and to consolidate QCL Group’s operating profits, which is expected to contribute positively to our
Group’s financial performance in the future. Further details on the prospects of QCL Group and our
enlarged Group is set out in Section 5.3 of this Circular.

Our Board is of the view that the issuance of the Consideration Shares to partially satisfy the Purchase
Consideration will enable our Company to conserve cash of up to RM75,000,000, which can be used as
working capital to finance the day-to-day operations and other business expansion plans of our Group.

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

As QCL Group’s revenue is only derived from China, the overview and outlook of China’s economy and
the EDM industry are set out below.

5.1  Overview and outlook of China’s economy

According to preliminary estimates, China’s GDP in 2020 was 101,598.6 billion yuan, grew 2.3%
over the previous year (2019: 98,651.5 billion yuan; 6.0% YoY). Of this, total value added by the
primary industry’s value added was 7,775.4 billion yuan, up by 3.0%, that of the secondary industry
was 38,425.5 billion yuan, up by 2.6% and that of the tertiary industry was 55,397.7 billion yuan,
up by 2.1%. Value added by the primary industry accounted for 7.7% of the GDP; that of the
secondary industry accounted for 37.8%; and that of the tertiary industry accounted for 54.5%.

(Source:  Press Release on 28 February 2021 — “Statistical Communiqué of the People's Republic of China
on the 2020 National Economic and Social Development”, National Bureau of Statistics of China)

According to preliminary estimates, the GDP in the first quarter of 2021 reached 24,931.0 billion
yuan, up by 18.3% YoY, or up by 0.6% over that in the fourth quarter of 2020 and 10.3% over that
in the first quarter of 2019, with an average two-year growth of 5.0% at comparable prices. By
industry, the value added by the primary industry was 1,133.2 billion yuan, up by 8.1% YoY, or an
average two-year growth of 2.3%; that of the secondary industry was 9,262.3 billion yuan, up by
24.4% percent YoY, or an average two-year growth of 6.0%; and that of the tertiary industry was
14,535.5 billion yuan, up by 15.6% YoY, or an average two-year growth of 4.7%. On the one hand,
the YoY GDP growth of 18.3% in the first quarter of 2021 was affected by such incomparable
factors as the low base figure of last year and increase of working days due to staff staying put
during the Spring Festival. On the other hand, the quarter-on-quarter growth of 0.6% in the first
quarter of 2021 with the average two-year growth reaching 5.0% demonstrated a steady recovery
of the national economy.

(Source:  Press Release on 16 April 2021 — “National Economy Made a Good Start in the First Quarter”,
National Bureau of Statistics of China)

As the pandemic was brought under control early, economic activity rebounded strongly in the
second and third quarters of 2020. Despite weaker activity in services, real GDP growth of 8.0% is
expected in 2021.

(Source:  Economic Outlook for Southeast Asia, China and India 2021, published in February 2021)



5.2

Overview and outlook of China’s EDM industry

Digital data in enterprises are stored in two categories of storage devices, i.e., primary storage and
secondary storage. Primary storage refers to first tier storage where data is stored and immediately
used by server applications. Primary storage may be internal or external and may include traditional
hard disc drives as well as newer solid state disc drives or flash arrays. Secondary storage, also
known as backup storage, complements primary storage by providing backup copies of data in
primary storage. Secondary storage typically consists of higher capacity external disc-based and
tape-based storage systems utilised for the purposes of data backup and secondary storage and
includes software and server node engines to perform data backup and replication using
technologies such as deduplication, compression, encryption, remote replication and support
interfaces.

The existence of storage technology alone holds no guarantees that EDM has been performed
appropriately and continuously backed up on an on-going basis. The realisation amongst enterprises
of the importance in ensuring proper protocols and procedures are set for data assurance and
protection against critical data loss resulted in the birth of EDM.

The EDM industry can be segmented into EDM solution developers, distributors and resellers, and
EDM managed service providers. EDM solution developers develop data management hardware
such as physical tape infrastructure and optical storage devices, and the solutions or software which
enable data management to take place.

EDM solution developers are generally large industry players which dominate the industry and can
either distribute directly to the clients or end-users, or through a distributor which would have their
own network of resellers. Generally, in cases where the solution developers sell directly to the
clients or end-users, the value-added services provided such as installation, implementation,
technical support, annual maintenance and other after-sales services are directly managed by these
solution developers. These solution developers will typically also integrate their solutions with other
third party IT supporting solutions which are necessary in the implementation of the enterprise data
management solutions. Alternatively, distributors and/or resellers may undertake the provision of
most of these value-added services in cases where the sales of hardware and solutions were
generated by them and there is less complexity in the value-added services carried out.

The industry size for EDM can be measured in terms of revenues from major global industry players
which manufactures and develops EDM solutions. As highlighted in Section 4 of this Circular, the
EDM industry in China grew at a robust CAGR of 23.3% from about USD26.3 billion in 2018 to
about USD40.2 billion in 2020. The growth of the EDM industry in China is forecast to further
accelerate at a CAGR of 29.8% from approximately USD51.9 billion in 2021 to approximately
USD87.5 billion in 2023.

Key Demand Conditions: Growth Drivers

The move towards digitalisation of businesses, leading to an increased need for EDM solutions

Among factors which have contributed to the evolving business environment are the recent COVID-
19 pandemic and globalisation. The onset of the pandemic has accelerated the pace of digitalisation
across most economic sectors and enterprises as it allows businesses to keep operating while staying
relevant in the current business environment. As a result, technologies relating to data consumption
and management have been critical in facilitating the digitalisation of these enterprises.

During the recent COVID-19 pandemic, lockdown measures were imposed in many countries,
including China, to prevent the spread of the disease. This forced businesses to adapt by coming up
with work from home arrangements for their employees. In order to ensure continued productivity,
businesses had to make use of technologies which could facilitate collaboration, such as file sharing,
messaging platforms, video conferencing and project management tools. The use of such
technologies creates digital data, which require supporting EDM solutions such as servers and data
storage space. It is likely that even after the COVID-19 restrictions are eased, businesses may
continue to offer the option of working from home as an on-going safety measure as well as for cost
efficiency purposes.



Globalisation has created more opportunities for businesses as they are no longer restricted to
operating within their own countries. Digitalisation has allowed businesses to lower their costs and
gain larger market share as they are able to explore new opportunities in other countries.

Businesses need to take advantage of digitalisation to maintain competitiveness and explore new
opportunities in today’s evolving business environment. As more businesses make the move
towards digitalisation, they will require EDM solutions to store and backup the mission critical
digital data that is increasingly being generated.

Increased use of cloud technology giving rise to hyperscale cloud services

In recent years, there is an evolving shift in trend towards paying for data storage solutions on a
subscription basis, otherwise termed as cloud storage services to achieve cost savings. These cloud
storage services allow for reductions in upfront costs incurred by businesses and avoid the need to
invest heavily in capital expenditure. With the lower upfront capital expenditure, businesses are
able to divert the capital to other income-generating activities. Further, cloud storage systems offer
other benefits to its users as it increases mobility of users through remote file and data sharing as
well as offer improved security and better data protection compared to self-managed environments.

The increased use of cloud services has led to the emergence of hyperscale cloud. Hyperscale cloud
refers to scalable cloud computing systems where a large number of servers are interconnected.
Hyperscale servers are small systems that are networked together “horizontally” to achieve
scalability. In other words, additional server capacities can be added to increase computing power
of an IT infrastructure system. Hyperscale cloud also allows end-user customers to choose a hybrid
solution, where hyperscale cloud is used to store and backup data that is not required often. This
frees up storage space for their in-house servers. Hyperscale cloud operators are generally data
centre providers that offer hyperscale cloud computing services. Examples of hyperscale cloud
operators in China include Baidu, Alibaba and Tencent.

In 2018, China had 18.3% of the world’s 5.0ZB installed base for storage capacity. The world’s
installed base for storage capacity increased to 6.7ZB in 2020 and is expected to increase to 16.5ZB
in 2025, of which 19.8% is expected to be contributed by China in 2025. The expected increase in
installed base for storage capacity in China illustrates the growing capacity for storage of digital
data in the future, which is expected to be partially attributed to hyperscale cloud services.

As hyperscale cloud operators scale their data storage requirements, so too will their demand for
EDM solutions to facilitate their services — leading to increase in the volume of digital data stored
using cloud technology.

Increasing volume of digital data signifies continuous need for enterprises to obtain EDM
solutions with larger capacities

In 2018, the volume of digital data stored in China was 23.4% of the digital data stored worldwide,
or 7.6ZB. China’s volume of digital data is estimated to grow at an average growth rate of 30.0%
annually and reach 48.6ZB in 2025.

The increasing use of video surveillance in China is a major driver for growth in digital data and
storage, as video surveillance is used to facilitate security and business intelligence in the country
“Project Dazzling Snow”, a national project aimed at the implementation of a comprehensive video
surveillance network, is expected to bring new levels of intelligence and security to China’s
northwest and other rural communities, and has now expanded across the country under the banner
of infrastructure modernisation, improved security and intelligence, and supporting a nationwide
strategy for the construction of smart cities across the country.

Thus, the growth of digital data volume, coupled with affordability of storage costs, is expected to
contribute to higher demand for EDM solutions.
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5.3

Government initiatives to_encourage digitalisation among businesses, which will drive
demand for EDM solutions

The Government of China has recognised the need for digital transformation in the 13" Five-Year
Programme that comprises initiatives aimed at supporting digital transformation in various
industries. The two key plans outlined in the 13" Five-Year Programme are “Made in China 2025~
and “Internet Plus”. The Made in China 2025 plan is aimed to shift the focus of the manufacturing
sector from quantity to quality through adoption of digital technologies to enhance operational
efficiency, maximising asset allocation and adapting to change in consumer preferences.

“Internet Plus” is aimed at facilitating the application of digital technologies in various industries
such as finance, medical and agriculture industries. The Government of China also aims to foster
digital interactions within itself and with the citizen population by establishing a national platform
for sharing and exchanging government data.

As digital transformation occurs in China, the demand for EDM will increase in tandem with the
volume of electronic data generated from the Government of China and various industries in the
country.

(Source: IMR Report)
Prospects of QCL Group and our enlarged Group

Under the Strategic Marketing Agreement between Quantum and QCL entered into in 2018, QCL
Group offers Quantum branded EDM infrastructure technology solutions — namely data backup,
storage and recovery solutions, as well as complementary value-added solutions and professional
services, and annual maintenance and technical support — to customers in China. Further details on
the Strategic Marketing Agreement are set out in Section 1 of Appendix 11 of this Circular.

QCL Group works primarily with channel partners that include distributors and resellers to sell their
products, solutions and services to end-user from various industries including financial,
manufacturing, internet, media and entertainment as well as to government agencies.

QCL Group is principally involved in the provision of EDM infrastructure technology solutions
comprising hardware and software, EDM value-added solutions and professional services as well
as annual maintenance and technical support in EDM solutions. Further details on the principal
activities of QCL Group is set out in Section 1 of Appendix |1 of this Circular.

QCL Group’s prospects are expected to be favourable in view of QCL Group’s competitive
strengths as set out below:

Q) QCL Group markets and sells a strong and comprehensive portfolio of products and
services, enabling it to keep up with market needs

QCL Group is involved in the provision of EDM infrastructure technology and
complementary value-added solutions and professional services, as well as annual
maintenance and technical support to their End-User Customers. Data is generally critical to
the business and operations of End-User Customers, hence it is crucial that enterprise data
is systematically stored and protected using EDM solutions.

In addition, QCL Group’s products are powered by StorNext® Scalable File System, which
is a powerful data management software used to collate, process and retain vast amounts of
data based on user-defined policies. This is especially useful for organisations wherein
workflows involve large volumes of data such as geospatial, video surveillance as well as
media and entertainment industries.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

QCL Group also emphasises on implementing a tiered data management system, whereby
data is automatically sorted into different storage tiers. End-User Customers define the
tiering policies based on factors such as importance, age and value of data. Further, QCL
Group’s products can be easily scaled to meet future demands as End-User Customers’
storage requirements change. QCL’s products are flexible as it can be customised to fit with
the end-user customers’ IT infrastructure, thus allowing them to continue to use their prior
investments in IT infrastructure.

QCL Group has a network of channel partners in China

QCL Group’s EDM solutions are primarily distributed through channel partners which
comprise distributors and resellers. Distributors are primarily regional IT distributors which
carry multiple brands of products and sell to the end-user customers via their reseller
networks. Meanwhile, resellers are typically IT service providers who promote, resell and
integrate multiple products and solutions as part of their services.

These working relationships allow QCL Group to leverage on the channel partners’ existing
network of End-User Customers and resellers while incurring minimal distribution costs.
QCL Group also provides ongoing support to their distributors and resellers through product
training and technical support for the resolution of complex customer issues.

QCL Group strives to constantly foster, nurture and strengthen their relationship with their
network of channel partners.

Direct engagement with end-user customers

QCL Group’s business model entails a direct engagement with End-User Customers, from
the generation of sales leads to customer relationship management. QCL Group further
secures retainer-based contracts with its End-User Customers, which is a source of recurring
revenue for QCL Group. As such, this has allowed QCL Group to build strong and lasting
relationships with End-User Customers, for the long-term sustainability of its business.

QCL Group recognises that this business model has enabled it to build a resilient market
presence over the years, and which will continue to be fundamental for its future
sustainability in the industry.

QCL Group has an experienced and committed management and technical team

QCL Group is led by an experienced and committed management team. Its key management
team has extensive experience in the IT, data storage and backup solutions industries. Their
experiences, drive and passion for the business have been instrumental to QCL Group’s
vision and growth strategies. The management team has a comprehensive understanding of
its customers’ business and industry requirements, thus facilitating in adding value to its
customers. In addition, QCL Group has also benefited from the professional network of
channel partners they have built over the years.

The profile of the abovementioned key management personnel are as follows:

(a)  Yang Lanjiang (Ann), Chinese, aged 57
General Manager of QCL Group

She is responsible for the sales and marketing as well as general management of QCL
Group. She graduated with a College Degree in Journalism from Shanxi Boarding
Casting University in 1984 and subsequently with a Master’s in Business
Administration from the University of Illinois, Chicago, the US in 2003.
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(b)

She began her career with Exide Electronics Group Inc. in 1994 as a Major Account
Manager and subsequently a Sales Supervisor. She was responsible for the sales of
products and management of 6 distributors. She later moved to Computer Associates
China in 1998 as an Account Manager and was responsible for sales of enterprise
management software. In year 2000, she worked with American Power Conversion
as the Sales Director, leading a team of 12 enterprise sales personnel across 6 offices
in China. In year 2004, she became the General Manager of Energy & Government
with NetApp Inc., developing NetApp Inc.’s business in the energy and government
sectors.

She became the Country Manager (Greater China) of Isilon Systems Inc. (known as
EMC Isilon after its acquisition by EMC Corporation in 2010) in 2007 where she was
responsible for the setting up and business development of the company’s office in
Beijing, China, and subsequently the General Manager of Isilon Storage Solutions in
EMC Isilon in 2010, managing the sales team and partner channels.

She joined Quantum (China office) and QCL Group in 2017 and 2018, respectively,
and assumed her present role as General Manager.

With over 23 years of sales experience in the Greater China IT market, including over
17 years of experience with people management, marketing, Channel and Business
development, she has built good business relationships with enterprise accounts in
the Chinese government, finance, oil and gas, media and entertainment as well as life
science industries.

Zhu Jun (Mike), Chinese, aged 53
Team Manager, Post Sales Services of QCL Group

He is responsible for the technical support and services of QCL Group. He graduated
with a Bachelor’s Degree from Zhengzhou University in Computer Application in
1990.

He began his career in Zhengzhou Fabric Machine Plant in 1990 as a system
administrator and was responsible for the system administration and programming of
the plant. He later moved to Guangzhou Development (GDB) Bank in 1994 as a
System Administrator and Development Team Leader and was responsible for the
system administration and project management of the bank. He was with NCR
Guangzhou Co. Ltd in 1999 as a Senior Customer Engineer before joining Sun
Microsystems China Co., Ltd, Guangzhou in 2000 as a Service Support Engineer
where he was responsible for system and customer support in both companies. He
moved on to Storage Technology Corporation, Guangzhou office, in 2004 and
subsequently to Hitachi Data Systems, Guangzhou office, in 2006, as a Customer
Engineer responsible for the technical and support services in both companies.

He joined Quantum (China office) and QCL Group in 2008 and 2018, respectively,
and assumed his present role as Team Manager for Post Sales Services of QCL
Group.

With 20 years IT working experience, including 15 years of post-sales services
experience and equipped with in-depth understanding of IT’s application in finance
and telecommunication industries, especially in data storage technology. He also
possesses strong communication skills which enables him to manage project
timelines efficiently.
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(c) Liu Songtao (Sean), Chinese, aged 46
Manager, Advanced Solutions Group of QCL Group

He is responsible for the professional consultancy and services of QCL Group. He
graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree with Merit Honour in Electronics Engineering
from Beijing Institute of Technology in 1997 and subsequently with a Master of
Science from the University of Birmingham, the United Kingdom in 2004.

He began his career in Beijing Nantian Information Engineering Limited Company
in 1997 as a systems engineer and was responsible for the implementation of financial
systems. He later moved to Computer Associates International Inc. in 1999 as a
quality assurance engineer and was responsible for the quality assurance testing of
the company. In year 2000, he was a channel system engineer with Veritas Software,
Beijing Representative Office, handling the design and demonstrations of various
solutions provided by the company.

He joined Quantum (China office) as a Solutions Architect / Sales Engineer in 2005
and then QCL Group in 2018 assuming his present role as Manager of the Advanced
Solutions Group of QCL Group.

Throughout his 15 years of experience as a solutions and sales engineer, he has been
working closely with customers and partners to achieve their business goals with his
extensive knowledge of data storage management and architecture.

QCL Group intends to expand its market presence as an EDM infrastructure solutions provider in
China. QCL Group has identified several key areas in China to target for further expansion:

(i)

(i)

Leveraging on the growing hyperscale cloud industry

Hyperscale cloud refers to scalable cloud computing systems where a large number of
servers are interconnected. Hyperscale servers are small systems that are networked together
“horizontally” to achieve scalability. In other words, additional server capacities can be
added to increase computing power of an IT infrastructure system. Hyperscale cloud
operators are generally data centre providers that offer hyperscale cloud computing services.
Examples of hyperscale cloud operators in China include Baidu, Alibaba and Tencent.

Hyperscale cloud also allows end-user customers to choose a hybrid solution, where
hyperscale cloud is used to store and backup data that is not required often. This frees up
storage space for their in-house servers.

QCL Group has the capability to deliver EDM solutions for such contracts. In 2020, QCL
Group was awarded an exabyte-size cloud hyperscale supply and value-added services
contract from one of the world’s largest technology firms in web search, online community
and market intelligence services based in China for a contract value of approximately
RM23.0 million. Upon completion of the deployment and implementation, as part of the
contract terms, QCL Group will continue to provide a further 6 years of maintenance support
till June 2027.

Moving forward, QCL Group intends to seek similar contracts to serve the hyperscale cloud
operators and capitalise on the growth of hyperscale cloud services.

Tapping into the growth of unstructured data from the video surveillance as well as
media and entertainment industries

Increasingly, large volumes of digital data are being stored in many forms including audio,
sensor data, text data and imaging, to enable big data and subsequently artificial intelligence
or business intelligence. Digital data of this nature is primarily ‘unstructured’ data where it
is not stored in a structured database format. Unstructured data has an internal structure, but
it is not predefined through data models.
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Technology advancements have also resulted in devices capturing videos, images and data
to gain more features such as higher resolutions, multiple sensors, night vision and facial or
behavioural recognition. These developments have led to digital data captured by these
devices taking up significantly more storage space.

QCL Group is able to meet these demands with its powerful infrastructure that can ingest,
process, store and retrieve large amounts of unstructured data swiftly and efficiently. It
provides a seamless platform to facilitate collaborative work for users in multiple locations.

(Source: Management of QCL Group)

Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition, our Group intends to work with the key personnel
of QCL Group to support and develop QCL Group’s future plans to seek similar contracts as stated
above to serve the hyperscale cloud operators and capitalise on the growth of hyperscale cloud
services and tap into the growth of unstructured data from the video surveillance as well as media
and entertainment industries to expand our Group’s overall market presence in China. Further, our
Group intends to set up proof-of-concept solution centre(s) to better support sales opportunities and
are exploring setting up satellite offices to have a broader reach to customers. In addition, our Group
intends to build QCL Group’s staff strength as and when required. The abovementioned plans will
be funded via internally generated funds. However, no financial resources have been committed by
our Group to realise the abovementioned plans as at this juncture as QCL Group is already in
operation and has sufficient financial resources for its short-term future plans.

Premised on the overview and outlook of the EDM industry in China as set out in Section 5.2 of
this Circular as well as the competitive strengths and future plans of QCL Group as set out above,
our Board is of the opinion that QCL Group’s prospects are expected to be favourable and the
Proposed Acquisition is expected to contribute positively to the future earnings of our enlarged
Group.

RISK FACTORS

The risk factors which may be inherent to our Group in relation to the Proposed Acquisition, which are by
no means exhaustive, are as follows:

6.1

6.2

Acquisition risk

The Proposed Acquisition is expected to contribute positively to our Group as stated in Section 5.3
of this Circular. However, there is no assurance that the anticipated benefits of the Proposed
Acquisition will be realised or that our Group will be able to generate sufficient revenue and
earnings therefrom to offset the associated acquisition costs incurred. There is also no assurance
that our existing Group is able to maintain or improve the quality of services and/or products
currently offered by QCL Group.

In mitigating such risks, in addition to the Profit Warranties, our management will oversee the daily
operations and be involved in the decision making of strategic matters of QCL Group.

Non-completion of the Agreements

In the event any of the conditions precedent of the Agreements is not fulfilled or waived (as the
case may be), the Proposed Acquisition may be delayed or terminated, and the potential benefits
arising therefrom may not materialise. In this respect, our Board seeks to limit such risk and will
take all reasonable steps to comply with the relevant conditions precedent so as to be able to
complete the Proposed Acquisition.
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6.3

6.4

6.5

Investment risks in respect of our shareholdings in QCL

Both our Group and QCL Group are principally involved in the same industry whereby both are
involved in the EDM infrastructure technology business providing data storage, protection and
archival solutions to enterprises. QCL is currently our associate company wherein our Company
holds 16.67% of the equity interest in QCL. As such, the risks of the Proposed Acquisition will not
materially differ from the existing risks inherent in the EDM industry that our Group is exposed to
as these risks will be addressed as part of our Group’s ordinary course of business. Notwithstanding
this, our Group will be exposed to the existing risks associated with QCL Group, such as business,
operational and financial risks, upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition as QCL will then
become our wholly-owned subsidiary.

Our Group seeks to mitigate such risks by adopting prudent operations and customer management
policies, staying abreast with the development, trends and direction of the industry and continue to
review the processes and operations to improve efficiency and quality. However, there can be no
assurance that any changes to these risks will not have material adverse effect on our Group’s
business and financial performance.

Non-fulfilment of Profit Warranties

The Profit Warranties are based on various bases and assumptions which are deemed reasonable,
but nevertheless subject to certain uncertainties and contingencies, which may be outside QCL’s
control. While our Board has taken reasonable steps to assess the achievability of the Profit
Warranties which include assessing QCL Group’s past financial performance since inception in
2018 up to 13M-FPE 2021 as well as its prospects as set out in Section 5.3 of this Circular, there
can be no assurance that the Profit Warranties will be met.

To mitigate the risk of not fulfilling the Profit Warranties (or any of them), the 2" and/or 3"
payment tranche shall be adjusted downward proportionately by a ratio of 1% of the 2" or 3™
payment tranche (where applicable) for every USD20,000 shortfall and in the event QCL Group
incurs losses for FYEs 31 January 2022 and/or 31 January 2023, the respective payment tranche
shall not be payable to the Vendor.

Political, economic and regulatory risk

Our Group’s financial and business prospects may be materially affected by any changes in the
economic, political and regulatory environment in the BVI, China and Singapore. Such risks
include, but are not limited to, changes in political leadership, expropriation, nationalisation, war,
riots, economic uncertainties, adverse changes in tax laws and controls of foreign ownership,
repatriation of profits and dividends and foreign exchange regulations. There can be no certainty
that any adverse developments in the economic, political and regulatory requirement of the BVI,
China and/or Singapore will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial results
of our Group.

While acknowledging that our Company may not be able to prevent some of the abovementioned
events from occurring, our Group has adopted and will continue to adopt a proactive approach in

keeping abreast of political, economic and regulatory developments of the BVI, China and
Singapore.

[The rest of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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7.

POLICIES ON FOREIGN INVESTMENTS, REPATRIATION OF PROFITS AND TAXATION

7.1

7.2

BVI

There is no exchange control legislation under BV law and accordingly, (i) there are no exchange
control regulations imposed under BVI law that would prevent QCL from paying dividends to
shareholders in any currency, and all such dividends may be freely transferred out of the BVI, clear
of any income or other tax of the BVI imposed by withholding or otherwise without the necessity
of obtaining any consent of any government or authority of the BVI, and (ii) there are no exchange
control restrictions or sanctions currently in effect in the BVI that would, in the ordinary
circumstances, prevent the repatriation of funds (regardless whether they are profits or capital in
nature) in a foreign currency from the BVI to any country by QCL.

There are no restrictions under BVI law against a foreign party investing or holding shares in QCL.

There is no income tax, corporation tax, or profits tax, withholding tax, capital gains tax, capital
transfer tax, estate duty or inheritance tax payable by QCL or its shareholders (in respect of
payments including but not limited to interest, dividends and profits) in the BVI, other than
shareholders ordinarily resident in the BVI.

China

Foreign persons, entities, enterprises or other organisations are permitted to invest directly or indirectly
within the territory of the PRC according to the Foreign Investment Law of the PRC (“Foreign
Investment Law”).

Under the Company Law of the PRC (“Company Law”), the Foreign Investment Law and the
Implementation of the Foreign Investment Law of the PRC, foreign investors (being foreign natural
persons, enterprises or other organisations) may freely remit into or out of the PRC, RMB or any other
foreign currency, the capital contributions, profits, capital gains, income from asset disposal,
intellectual property royalties, lawfully acquired compensation, indemnity or liquidation income and
so on generated within the territory of the PRC.

Wholly owned foreign enterprises in the PRC may pay dividends only out of their accumulated profits
as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and regulations. In addition,
according to the Company Law, these wholly owned foreign enterprises are required to set aside at
least 10% of their respective accumulated profits each year, if any, to fund certain statutory reserve
funds, until the aggregate amount of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. Save as set out
above, there are no other restrictions on the payment of dividends to foreign shareholders under the
PRC laws.

Under the Foreign Exchange Control Regulations of the PRC, international payments in foreign
currencies and transfer of foreign currencies under the current account items, including the distribution
of dividends, interest and royalties payments, and trade and service-related foreign exchange
transactions shall not be restricted. Foreign currency transactions under the capital account items, such
as direct investment, loans, securities investment and repatriation of investment require approvals from
or registration with State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the PRC (“SAFE”) or its local
counterpart and other relevant PRC governmental authorities.

Under the existing PRC foreign exchange regulations, payments of current account items, including
the distributions of dividends, interest and royalties payments and trade and service-related foreign
exchange transactions, can be made in foreign currencies without prior approval of SAFE by
complying with certain procedural requirements, where QST is able to pay dividends in foreign
currencies to the shareholders without prior approval from SAFE. However, the approval from or
registration with appropriate government authorities is required where RMB is to be converted into
foreign currency and remitted out of China to pay capital expenses such as the repayment of loans
denominated in foreign currencies.
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7.3

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (“EIT Law”) and the Implementing
Regulations of the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income (“IREI”), payment of income, dividends
or profits made by QST to (i) a non-resident enterprise which has no office or premises established
in the PRC, or (ii) a non-resident enterprise which has an office or premises established in the PRC
and QST has no de facto relationship with the PRC office or premises of such non-resident
enterprise, is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%. According to the IREI, if a resident
enterprise has a “de facto relationship” with the PRC office or premises of its shareholder which is
a non-resident enterprise, it means that such office or premises established in the PRC by the non-
resident enterprise owns equity and creditor’s rights which derives income in such resident
enterprise, and owns, manages or controls property which derives income held by such resident
enterprise.

The EIT Law provides that enterprises incorporated in accordance with the PRC laws within the
PRC will be deemed a “PRC resident enterprise” for tax purposes, or if an enterprise incorporated
outside the PRC has its “de facto management bodies” within the PRC, such enterprise may be
deemed a “PRC resident enterprise” for tax purposes as well. “De facto management body” is
defined as the body that has the significant and overall management and control over the business,
personnel, accounts and properties of an enterprise. In April 2009, the State Administration of
Taxation promulgated a circular to clarify certain criteria for the determination of the “de facto
management bodies” for foreign enterprises controlled by PRC enterprises. Criteria include: (i) the
enterprise’s day-to-day operational management is primarily exercised in the PRC; (ii) decisions
relating to the enterprise’s financial and human resource matters are made or subject to approval by
organisations or personnel in the PRC; (iii) the enterprise’s primary assets, accounting books and
records, company seals, and board and shareholders’ meeting minutes are located or maintained in
the PRC; and (iv) 50% or more of voting board members or senior executives of the enterprise
habitually reside in the PRC. QST is considered as a tax resident since it is lawfully incorporated in
PRC.

According to the EIT Law, enterprise income from dividends paid to a non-resident enterprise with
an office or premises established in the PRC by a resident enterprise which has a de facto
relationship with the aforesaid office or premises established in the PRC, shall be tax-exempt
income. Accordingly, the dividends paid by QST to its shareholder(s) (including foreign
shareholders not based in the PRC) is exempted from PRC tax in the hands of such shareholder(s).

Singapore

Singapore has no significant exchange controls. Funds, including profits and dividends may be
repatriated freely from Singapore.

Pursuant to the Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Singapore (“Singapore Companies Act”), no
dividend (which includes bonus and payment by way of bonus) shall be payable to the shareholders
of any company except out of profits. Any profits of a company applied towards the purchase or
acquisition of its own shares in accordance with the Singapore Companies Act shall not be payable
as dividends to the shareholders of the company. Any gains derived by the company from the sale
or disposal of treasury shares shall not be payable as dividends to the shareholders of the company.

There are no exchange controls under Singapore law in respect of the dividend payments to parties
in jurisdictions outside Singapore, pursuant to the notice issued by the Monetary Authority of
Singapore (“MAS”) on 25 May 1978 (MAS 1103, Reference: ID Circular 6/78 dd 25.5.78) (“MAS
Notice 1103”). MAS Notice 1103 provides, amongst other, that “With effect from 1 June 1978, all
persons are exempted from the provisions, obligations, etc, imposed under the various sections of
the Exchange Control Act (Chapter 245). Therefore, no exchange control formalities or approvals
are required for all forms of payments or capital transfers”.

Capital may not be returned to shareholders unless a capital reduction exercise is carried out in
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act and the company’s constitution.
There are no restrictions on payment of capital from a capital reduction exercise to foreign
shareholders.
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A company may, if so authorised by its constitution and subject to the limits imposed by the
Singapore Companies Act, buy back its own shares. Similarly, there are no restrictions on payment
of the purchase price in respect of such purchase to foreign shareholders.

A Singapore corporate tax payer is subject to Singapore income tax on income accrued in or derived
from Singapore and, subject to certain exceptions, on foreign-sourced income received or deemed
to be received in Singapore. The corporate tax rate for the year of assessment 2020 is 17%.

A Singapore-incorporated company has to withhold tax when it makes payments of the following
nature to a non-resident person:

() Interest, commission, fee in connection with any loan or indebtedness;
(i)  Royalty or other payments for the use of or the right to use any movable property;

(iii)  Payments for the use of or the right to use scientific, technical, industrial or commercial
knowledge or information or for the rendering of assistance or service in connection with
the application or use of such knowledge or information;

(iv)  Payments of management fees;
(v)  Rent or other payments for the use of any movable property;
(vi)  Payments for the purchase of real property from a non-resident property trader;

(vii)  Structured products (other than payments which qualify for tax exemption under section
13(1)(zj) of the Income Tax Act (Chapter 134) of Singapore (“Singapore Income Tax
Act”)); and

(viii) Distribution of real estate investment trust.

Withholding tax is waived for all payments under section 12(6) and 12(7) of the Singapore Income
Tax Act, such as interest, commission, royalties and management fees, which are made to Singapore
branches of non-resident companies on or after 21 February 2014.

There is no need to withhold tax on dividend payments. Singapore currently does not impose
withholding tax on dividends even though withholding tax rates on dividends are provided under
some of Singapore’s tax treaties.

Foreign-sourced dividends, foreign branch profits and foreign-sourced service income (“Specified
Foreign Income”) received in Singapore by a Singapore tax resident company are exempt from tax
if (i) the Specified Foreign Income is subject to tax of a similar character to income tax (by whatever
name called) under the law of the territory from which such income is received,; (ii) at the time the
Specified Foreign Income is received in Singapore, the highest rate of tax of a similar character to
income tax (by whatever name called) levied under the law of the territory from which the income
is received on any gains or profits from any trade or business carried on by any company in that
territory at that time is not less than 15%; and (iii) the Comptroller of Income Tax is satisfied that
the tax exemption would be beneficial to the person resident in Singapore.

A company is regarded as a tax resident in Singapore if the control and management of its business
is exercised in Singapore. Normally, control and management of a company is vested in the board
of directors and the company is resident in the country where the directors meet.

Singapore adopts the One-Tier Corporate Taxation System. The tax collected from corporate profits

is a final tax and the distributable profits of the company resident in Singapore which can be
distributed to the shareholders, which are tax exempt in the hands of such shareholders.
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8. EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION
8.1  Share capital

The pro forma effects of the Proposed Acquisition on the share capital of our Company are as

follows:
No. of KAB Shares RM
Share capital as at the LPD 628,050,300 270,447,150
Consideration Shares to be issued 110,294,117 75,000,000
Enlarged share capital 738,344,417 345,447,150

8.2 NA and gearing

The pro forma effects of the Proposed Acquisition on the NA and gearing of our Group based on
the audited consolidated financial statements of our Company as at 31 January 2021 are as follows:

(Audited) n )

Subsequent After (1) and the

As at 31 January | events up to the Proposed

2021 LPDW Acquisition

RM RM RM

Share capital 201,120,898 270,447,150 345,447,150
Merger deficit (17,406,096) (17,406,096) (17,406,096)
Exchange translation reserve 1,719,608 1,719,608 1,719,608
Retirement benefit obligations (369,143) (369,143) (369,143)
Retained earnings 57,328,658 56,327,605 55,717,605
Shareholders’ funds / NA 242,393,925 310,719,124 385,109,124
No. of shares in issue 523,375,300 628,050,300 738,344,417
NA per Share (RM) 0.46 0.49 0.52
Total borrowings (RM) 37,972,612 37,972,612 37,972,612
Gearing (times) 0.16 0.12 0.10

Notes:
1) After accounting for the following:

0] issuance of 104,675,000 Placement Shares at an issue price of RM0.6623 each pursuant to the
Private Placement; and

(i) after deducting expenses of approximately RM1.0 million in relation to the Private Placement.

) After deducting estimated expenses of approximately RMO0.61 million in relation to the Proposed
Acquisition.

8.3  Earnings and EPS

The Proposed Acquisition is expected to contribute positively to the future earnings of our Group
after taking into consideration the historical earnings of QCL Group and prospects of the Proposed
Acquisition.

The EPS may be diluted accordingly consequent to the issuance of Consideration Shares pursuant
to the 1% tranche payment in relation to the Proposed Acquisition on the Completion Date and the
2" and 3" tranche payments in the event the Profit Warranties are achieved during the respective
financial years ending 31 January, as set out in the Purchase Consideration clause in Section 2 of
Appendix | of this Circular.
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The pro forma effects of the Proposed Acquisition on our Group’s earnings and EPS based on:

(i)

our audited financial statements for the FYE 31 December 2019 (i.e., the latest audited
financial statements available prior to the Announcement LPD) (which does not include any
growth projection from our Group’s existing operations), assuming that QCL had achieved
the Profit Warranties and the Proposed Acquisition had been completed with the issuance of
all the Consideration Shares to the Vendor on 1 January 2019 are as follows:

(Audited)

FYE After the Profit

31 December 2019 Warranty 2023

RM RM

PAT attributable to the owners of our 18,596,394 18,596,394

Company

PAT of QCL attributable to KAB Group - 10,355,000
pursuant to the Proposed Acquisition

Pro forma PAT of the enlarged Group 18,596,394 28,951,394

No. of KAB Shares in issue 489,277,330 738,344,4170C)

EPS (sen) 3.80 3.92

(i) our audited financial statements for the 13M-FPE 31 January 2021 (which does not include
any growth projection from our Group’s existing operations), assuming that QCL had
achieved the Profit Warranties and the Proposed Acquisition had been completed with the
issuance of all the Consideration Shares to the Vendor on 1 January 2020 are as follows:

(Audited)
13M-FPE After the Profit
31 January 2021 Warranty 2023
RM RM
PAT attributable to the owners of our 1,419,876 1,419,876
Company
PAT of QCL attributable to KAB Group - 10,355,0000
pursuant to the Proposed Acquisition
Pro forma PAT of the enlarged Group 1,419,876 11,774,876
No. of KAB Shares in issue 523,375,300@ 738,344,417C
EPS (sen) 0.27 1.59
Notes:

1) Assuming QCL achieved the Profit Warranty 2023 of USD2.5 million (equivalent to RM10,355,000).

) After accounting for the following:

(i) issuance of 33,097,970 new KAB Shares on 24 March 2020 at an issue price of RM0.5665
each pursuant to the 2" payment tranche to partially satisfy the purchase consideration of
acquisition of Sandz Solutions (Singapore) Pte Ltd; and

(i) issuance of 1,000,000 new KAB Shares to an eligible director on 12 June 2020 at an issue

price of RM0.52 each pursuant to the Company’s share grant plan.

®3) After accounting for the following:

(i) issuance of 104,675,000 Placement Shares at an issue price of RM0.6623 each pursuant to the

Private Placement; and

(i) issuance of 110,294,117 Consideration Shares pursuant to the Proposed Acquisition.
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8.4  Substantial shareholders’ shareholdings

The pro forma effects of the Proposed Acquisition on the shareholdings of the substantial
shareholders of our Company based on our Company’s Register of Substantial Shareholders as at
the LPD are as follows:

As at the LPD After the Proposed Acquisition
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
No. of KAB No. of KAB No. of KAB No. of KAB
Shares % Shares | % Shares % Shares | %
Tan Jeck Min 55,129,768 8.78 - - | 55,129,768 | 7.47 - -
Desert Streams 115,565,754 | 18.40 - - | 115,565,754 | 15.65 - -
Investments
Limited
Vendor - - - - | 110,294,117 | 14.94 - -

The Vendor (and/or its nominee) will not be a controlling shareholder (as defined in Rule 1.01 of
the Listing Requirements) upon the completion of the Proposed Acquisition.

The Proposed Acquisition will not result in non-compliance with the Public Shareholding Spread
Requirement. The public shareholding spread before the Proposed Acquisition was 64.80% (as at
the LPD) and the proforma effects of the public shareholding spread after the Proposed Acquisition,
assuming 110,294,117 Consideration Shares are issued to the Vendor upon completion of the
Proposed Acquisition and achieving the Profit Warranties is expected to be 61.36%, 56.66% and
55.12% after the issuance of Consideration Shares pursuant to the 1% Payment Tranche, 2" Payment
Tranche and 3 Payment Tranche, respectively.

8.5  Convertible securities

As at the LPD, our Company does not have any outstanding convertible securities.

9. HISTORICAL SHARE PRICES

The monthly highest and lowest transacted prices of KAB Shares for the past 12 months are as follows:

Highest Lowest
(RM) (RM)
2020
July 0.610 0.535
August 0.735 0.555
September 0.685 0.540
October 0.595 0.510
November 0.640 0.495
December 0.720 0.585
2021
January 0.885 0.645
February 0.945 0.755
March 0.805 0.660
April 0.745 0.680
May 0.710 0.580
June 0.725 0.605

Last transacted market price on 21 May 2021 (being the last trading date prior to the Announcement) was
RMO0.605 per KAB Share.

Last transacted market price on 22 June 2021 (being the LPD) was RM0.70 per KAB Share.

(Source:  Bloomberg)
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APPROVALS REQUIRED
The Proposed Acquisition is subject to the following approvals being obtained from:

(i) Bursa Securities for the listing of and quotation for the Consideration Shares on the ACE Market of
Bursa Securities;

(i) our shareholders for the Proposed Acquisition at our forthcoming EGM; and
Pursuant to Rule 10.02(g) of the Listing Requirements, the highest percentage ratio applicable to
the Proposed Acquisition is 67.26%, derived from the Purchase Consideration of RM150.0 million
against our Group’s audited NA of approximately RM223.02 million for the FYE 31 December
2019.

(iii)  any other relevant authorities, if required.

The approval of Bursa Securities is subject to the following conditions:

Status of
Conditions imposed compliance
(@) | KAB and TA Securities must fully comply with the relevant provisions | To be complied
under the Listing Requirements pertaining to the implementation of the
Proposed Acquisition;

(b) | KAB and TA Securities to inform Bursa Securities upon the completion of | To be complied
the Proposed Acquisition;

(c) | KAB to furnish Bursa Securities with a written confirmation of its | To be complied
compliance with the terms and conditions of Bursa Securities’ approval
once the Proposed Acquisition is completed; and

(d) | Compliance by KAB with the public shareholding spread upon completion | To be complied
of the Proposed Acquisition. In this connection, TA Securities is to furnish
a schedule containing the information set out in Appendix 8E, Chapter 8
of the Listing Requirements to Bursa Securities upon the issuance of the
Consideration Shares for each of the 1st Payment Tranche, the 2nd
Payment Trance and 3rd Payment Tranche respectively.

The Proposed Acquisition is not subject to any approval from relevant government authorities.

CONDITIONALITY OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

The Proposed Acquisition is not conditional upon any other corporate proposal undertaken or to be
undertaken by our Company.

Save for the Proposed Acquisition, our Board is not aware of any corporate exercise which we have
announced but not yet completed prior to the printing of this Circular.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND/OR
PERSONS CONNECTED TO THEM

None of the Directors, major shareholders and/or chief executive of our Company and/or persons

connected with them (as defined in the Listing Requirements) has any direct or indirect interest in the
Proposed Acquisition.
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13.

14.

15.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT AND RECOMMENDATION

Our Board, after having considered all aspects of the Proposed Acquisition including but not limited to the
rationale, salient terms of the Agreements, risk factors and effects of the Proposed Acquisition, is of the
opinion that the Proposed Acquisition is in the best interest of our Company and accordingly recommend
you to vote IN FAVOUR of the resolution in respect of the Proposed Acquisition to be tabled at our
forthcoming EGM.

TENTATIVE TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION

Barring any unforeseen circumstances and subject to receipt of all relevant approvals, our Board expects
the Proposed Acquisition to be completed in the 3 quarter of 2021.

The indicative timetable of events in relation to the Proposed Acquisition is set out below:

Tentative dates Events
23 July 2021 e EGM
End July 2021 o Fulfilment of all conditions precedent in the SPA

e Listing of and quotation for 35,294,117 Consideration Shares and payment
of the Cash Consideration pursuant to the 1%t Payment Tranche as set out in
the Purchase Consideration clause in Section 2 of Appendix I of this Circular

e Completion of the Proposed Acquisition

March 2022 e Listing of and quotation for up to 55,000,000 Consideration Shares pursuant
to the 2" Payment Tranche as set out in the Purchase Consideration clause
in Section 2 of Appendix | of this Circular

March 2023 e Listing of and quotation for up to 20,000,000 Consideration Shares pursuant
to the 3" Payment Tranche as set out in the Purchase Consideration clause
in Section 2 of Appendix | of this Circular

EGM

Our EGM, the notice of which is set out in this Circular, will be conducted on a fully virtual basis via
remote participation and electronic voting via online meeting platform at THIH Online website at
https://tiih.online or https://tith.com.my (Domain registration number with MYNIC: D1A282781)
provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd on Friday, 23 July 2021 at 10.00 a.m. or
at any adjournment thereof, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, passing with or without
modifications, the resolution to give effect to the Proposed Acquisition.

If you are unable to attend and vote in person at our EGM, you should complete, sign and return the
enclosed Proxy Form in accordance with the instructions provided thereon so as to arrive at our Share
Registrar Office at Unit 32-01, Level 32 Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No.
8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or its Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground Floor, Vertical
Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan or
alternatively, in the case of an appointment made via TIIH Online, the electronic proxy form must be
submitted at https://tiih.online not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding our EGM or any
adjournment thereof.

The lodging of the Proxy Form will not, however, preclude you from attending our EGM and voting in
person should you subsequently wish to do so.

Shareholders are advised to refer to the Administrative Guide for the EGM on the registration and voting
process for the EGM.
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16. FURTHER INFORMATION

You are advised to refer to the Appendices set out in this Circular for further information.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of our Board
KRONOLOGI ASIA BERHAD

TAN JECK MIN
Executive Director/ Chief Operating Officer
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APPENDIX I

SALIENT TERMS OF THE AGREEMENTS

The salient terms of the Agreements in relation to the Proposed Acquisition are set out as follows:

1.

Conditions Precedent

The sale and purchase of the Sale Shares is conditional upon:

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

the completion of a legal and financial due diligence exercise by our Company and its advisers on
QCL Group, which shall include without limitation, (i) the review of the QCL Group’s business
and operations; (ii) the review of historical figures; (iii) the review of directors, employees and staff;
and (iv) the review of any and all documents relating to legal matters, and the results of such exercise
being satisfactory to our Company in its sole and absolute discretion;

the approval being granted by Bursa Securities for the listing of and quotation for the Consideration
Shares on the ACE Market of Bursa Securities, and such approval not having been revoked or
amended, and if the approval is granted subject to conditions, (i) such conditions being reasonably
acceptable to the Parties, and if any such condition shall be required to be fulfilled on or before
Completion, the fulfilment of such condition on or before Completion and (ii) such conditions being
satisfied or waived by Bursa Securities, and Bursa Securities not having made any ruling, the effect
of which is to restrict or impede the listing of and quotation for the Consideration Shares;

all approvals, consents and/or waivers as may be necessary from any third party, governmental or
regulatory body or relevant competent authority having jurisdiction over the transactions
contemplated under the SPA or to the entry into and completion of the SPA by the Parties or whose
consent is required, being granted or obtained, and being in full force and effect and not having
been withdrawn, suspended, amended or revoked, and if such approvals, consents and/or waivers
are granted or obtained subject to any conditions, and where such condition(s) affect any of the
Parties, such condition(s) being acceptable to the Party concerned and if such condition(s) are
required to be fulfilled before Completion, such condition(s) being fulfilled on or before
Completion;

the approval of our Board and the shareholders of our Company for the transactions contemplated
in the SPA upon the terms and conditions set out in the SPA (or upon such other terms and
conditions as may be agreed between the Parties) having been obtained; and

the execution and performance of the SPA by the Parties hereto not being prohibited, restricted,
curtailed, hindered, impaired or otherwise adversely affected by any relevant statute, order, rule,
directive, or regulation promulgated by any legislative, executive or regulatory body or authority.

Purchase Consideration

(M)

(i)

The acquisition price for the sale of the Sale Shares by the Vendor to our Company shall be the
aggregate of RM150,000,000, which was agreed at after arms’ length negotiations and based on a
willing-buyer willing-seller basis, to be settled on a staggered payment basis.

The Purchase Consideration shall be fully satisfied through the allotment and issuance of the
Consideration Shares to the Vendor (and/or its nominee) (“Allotment and Issuance”) and the
payment of a Cash Consideration which shall be apportioned as follows:

(@ 1%t Payment Tranche: Payment of RM99,000,000, which shall be fully satisfied by
RM75,000,000 in cash and the allotment and issuance of 35,294,117 Consideration Shares
by our Company to the Vendor (and/or its nominee) at the Issue Price on the Completion
Date.
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APPENDIX |

SALIENT TERMS OF THE AGREEMENTS (CONT’D)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(b) 2" Payment Tranche: Payment of RM37,400,000, which shall be fully satisfied by the
allotment and issuance of 55,000,000 Consideration Shares by our Company to the Vendor
(and/or its nominee) at the Issue Price, upon the QCL Group achieving the Profit Warranty
2022 hased on the consolidated audited accounts of the QCL Group for FYE 31 January
2022 subject always to Completion having taken place. The 2! Payment Tranche shall be
payable within 14 days after the issuance of the consolidated audited accounts of the QCL
Group for FYE 31 January 2022 or such other date as the Parties may mutually agree in
writing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 2" Payment Consideration Amount shall be adjusted
downwards proportionately in accordance with Section 3(ii) of Appendix I of this Circular
in the event that QCL Group fails to achieve the Profit Warranty 2022 based on the
consolidated audited accounts for FYE 31 January 2022.

(c) 3" Payment Tranche: Payment of RM13,600,000, which shall be fully satisfied by the
allotment and issuance of 20,000,000 Consideration Shares by our Company to the Vendor
(and/or its nominee) at the Issue Price, upon the QCL Group achieving the Profit Warranty
2023 hased on the consolidated audited accounts of the QCL Group for FYE 31 January
2023 subject always to Completion having taken place. The 3" Payment Tranche shall be
payable within 14 days after the issuance of the consolidated audited accounts of the QCL
Group for FYE 31 January 2023 or such other date as the Parties may mutually agree in
writing.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 3 Payment Consideration Amount shall be adjusted
downwards proportionately in accordance with Sections 3(ii) and 3(iii) of Appendix I of
this Circular in the event that QCL Group fails to achieve the Profit Warranty 2023 based on
the consolidated audited accounts for FYE 31 January 2023.

For the avoidance of doubt, the number of new KAB Shares to be allotted and issued to the Vendor
pursuant to Section 2(ii) of Appendix | of this Circular shall be rounded down to the nearest 1 unit
of share, and fractional entitlements shall be disregarded. For illustration purposes only, based on
the Issue Price, the number of Consideration Shares to be allotted and issued to the Vendor under
the 1% Payment Tranche shall be 35,294,117 Consideration Shares (rounded down from
35,294,117.65 Consideration Shares), notwithstanding that the value of 35,294,117 Consideration
Shares is RM23,999,999.56 (which is below the value of RM24,000,000).

The issue price for the Consideration Shares shall be RMO0.68 per Consideration Share, representing
a premium of RMO0.0649 or approximately 10.55% to the VWAP of the Shares traded on the ACE
Market of Bursa Securities for the 5 market days prior to the execution of the SPA.

The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Allotment and Issuance is subject to our Company
having obtained all necessary approvals from Bursa Securities and all conditions (if any) imposed
by Bursa Securities in respect of the Allotment and Issuance having been satisfied (“Bursa
Securities Allotment Related Conditions™). Our Company shall use all reasonable endeavours to
ensure compliance with the applicable rules of the Listing Requirements (including submitting
through our Company’s adviser, TA Securities, to Bursa Securities an additional listing application
in respect of the Allotment and Issuance) and satisfaction of the Bursa Securities Allotment Related
Conditions prior to the Allotment and Issuance.

Upon the Allotment and Issuance, such Consideration Shares shall rank pari passu in all respects
with all other Shares then in issue (save for any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other
distributions that may be declared, made or paid, the entitlement date of which is prior to the date
of the Allotment and Issuance).
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(vi)

The Parties further agree that in the event that our Company undertakes a bonus issue of Shares on
a pro-rata basis to all existing shareholders of our Company, sub-division or consolidation of capital
(“Corporate Action”) during FYE 31 January 2022 and FYE 31 January 2023, the Vendor’s
entitlement to the remaining Consideration Shares that have not been issued to it under the SPA
(“Remaining Consideration Shares”) shall be adjusted accordingly to take into account such
Corporate Action so that it will not be unnecessarily diluted or otherwise. In the event of such
Corporate Action, the Issue Price shall be adjusted accordingly such that the Remaining
Consideration Shares issued shall represent the same percentage of shareholding in the enlarged
and fully diluted or reduced share capital (as the case may be) of our Company following the
Corporate Action as if the Remaining Consideration Shares had been issued on the market day
immediately preceding the effective date of such Corporate Action by our Company, provided
always that the issuance of any additional Shares will be subject to the approval of our Company’s
shareholders, Bursa Securities and other regulatory authorities (where applicable). Our Company
shall also consult our Company’s auditors in relation to such adjustment (if any) and the adjustment
(if any) shall be certified by the auditors in writing.

In the event that our Company’s auditors are unable to agree on any adjustment required above, our
Company shall refer the adjustment to the decision of an adviser acting as expert and not as
arbitrator and whose decision as to such adjustment as shall be appropriate in terms of the conditions
shall be final and conclusive and no certification by the auditors shall be necessary.

For illustration purposes only, assuming our Company implements the Corporate Action of which
its entitlement date (“Entitlement Date”) is after the Completion but prior to the allotment and
issuance date of the Remaining Consideration Shares pursuant to the 2" Payment Tranche and/or
3 Payment Tranche, the adjustments to the number of the Remaining Consideration Shares and
Issue Price are as follows:

Before the Corporate Action
Corporate Bonus issue of | Sub-division of | Consolidation of
Action Shares capital capital
1 bonus Share for Subdivision of | Consolidation of
every 2 existing every 1 existing every 2 existing
Shares held on | Share held on the Shares held on
the Entitlement | Entitlement Date the Entitlement
Assumed basis - Date into 2 Shares | Date into 1 Share
Remaining Consideration 75,000,000 112,500,000 150,000,000 37,500,000
Shares to be issued [A] [A+(A]2)] [Ax2] [A/2]
pursuant to the 2" and 3"
Payment Tranches
Issue Price per Remaining 0.6800 0.4533 0.3400 1.3600
Consideration Share (RM) [B] [(Bx2)/3] [B/2] [B x 2]
Resultant enlarged share 738,344,417 1,107,516,625 1,476,688,834 369,172,209
capital after the issuance of [C] [C+(C/2)] [Cx2] [C/2]
all Consideration Shares
Vendor’s shareholding in 14.94% 14.94% 14.94% 14.94%
KAB after the issuance of
all Consideration Shares

(vii)

In the event that our Company undertakes a rights issue of Shares on a pro-rata basis to all existing
shareholders of our Company during FYE 31 January 2022 and FYE 31 January 2023, our Company
may, in its absolute discretion, decide to issue additional Shares to the Vendor at an issue price
equivalent to the issue price of the rights issue of Shares to be determined later so that it will not be
unnecessarily diluted or otherwise, provided always that the issuance of any additional Shares will
be subject to the approval of the shareholders of our Company, Bursa Securities and other regulatory
authorities (where applicable). Our Company shall also consult the auditors of our Company in
relation to such adjustment (if any) and such number shall be certified by the auditors in writing.
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In the event that our Company’s auditors are unable to agree on the number of additional Shares to
be issued in relation to the above, our Company shall refer the number of additional Shares to be
issued to the decision of an adviser acting as expert and not as arbitrator and whose decision as to
such number as shall be appropriate in terms of the conditions shall be final and conclusive and no
certification by the auditors shall be necessary.

For the avoidance of doubt, no adjustment will be made to the number and issue price of the
Remaining Consideration Shares in the event that our Company undertakes a rights issue during
FYE 31 January 2022 and FYE 31 January 2023.

3. Profit Warranties

0]

(i)

(iii)

The Vendor warrants to our Company that QCL Group shall achieve the following:

(@ aPAT of USD2,000,000 based on the consolidated audited accounts of QCL Group for FYE
31 January 2022; and

(b) aPAT of USD2,500,000 based on the consolidated audited accounts of QCL Group for FYE
31 January 2023.

For the avoidance of doubt, once the QCL Group achieves the Profit Warranty 2022 or Profit
Warranty 2023 (as the case may be), to be determined after the issuance of the consolidated audited
accounts of the QCL Group for FYE 31 January 2022 or FYE 31 January 2023 (as the case may
be), it shall be deemed that the VVendor has discharged its obligations in relation to Profit Warranty
2022 or Profit Warranty 2023 (as the case may be).

In the event that QCL Group fails to achieve the Profit Warranty 2022 based on the audited PAT
for FYE 31 January 2022, the consideration payable shall accordingly be adjusted downwards
proportionately by a ratio of 1% of the 2" Payment Consideration Amount for every USD20,000
shortfall of the Profit Warranty 2022, and the number of Consideration Shares to be issued at the
2" Payment Tranche shall be accordingly reduced.

By way of illustration only, if QCL Group only managed to achieve a PAT of USD1,820,000 for
FYE 31 January 2022 (i.e., a shortfall of USD180,000) based on the consolidated audited accounts
of QCL Group, then the Consideration Shares to be allotted and issued under the 2" Payment
Tranche shall accordingly be reduced by value of RM3,366,000, representing 9% of the 2" Payment
Consideration Amount for FYE 31 January 2022.

For the avoidance of doubt, if the shortfall is less than USD20,000 or any multiple of USD20,000
(as the case may be), such shortfall shall be rounded up to the nearest USD20,000 or multiple of
USD20,000 (as the case may be). By way of illustration only, if QCL Group only managed to
achieve a PAT of USD1,825,000 for FYE 31 January 2022 (i.e., a shortfall of USD175,000) based
on the consolidated audited accounts of QCL Group for FYE 31 January 2022, then the shortfall
shall be rounded up to USD180,000 and the Consideration Shares allotted and issued under the 2"
Payment Tranche shall accordingly be reduced by value of RM3,366,000, representing 9% of the
2" Payment Consideration Amount.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties agree that in the event that the QCL Group incurs a net loss
in FYE 31 January 2022:

(@  our Company shall not be required to make payment of the 2" Payment Consideration
Amount in accordance with Section 2(ii)(b) of Appendix I; and

(b)  the Vendor specifically waives, releases and relinquishes any and all claims in respect of the
2" Payment Consideration Amount.
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4.

5.

(iv)  The clauses in Sections 3(ii) and 3(iii) above shall mutatis mutandis apply in respect of the Profit

Warranty 2023, where references to the Profit Warranty 2022 shall refer to the Profit Warranty

2023, FYE 31 January 2022 shall refer to FYE 31 January 2023, and references to the 2" Payment

Consideration Amount shall refer to the 3 Payment Consideration Amount.

(v)  Inthe event that the audited PAT for FYE 31 January 2022 as reflected in the consolidated audited

accounts of QCL Group for FYE 31 January 2022 exceeds the amount of the Profit Warranty 2022,

such excess amount (being the differential between the audited PAT value for FYE 31 January 2022

and the amount of the Profit Warranty 2022) shall be cumulatively added to the audited PAT for

FYE 31 January 2023, for the purpose of the determination of whether the Profit Warranty 2023

has been achieved.

For illustration purposes only, if QCL Group achieves an audited PAT of USD2,500,000 for FYE

31 January 2022 (i.e., an excess of USD500,000), the Profit Warranty 2022 would be achieved, and

the excess amount shall be added to the audited PAT value for FYE 31 January 2023. This means

that if QCL Group only managed to achieve an audited PAT of USD2,000,000 for FYE 31 January

2023 (i.e., a shortfall of USD500,000), the Profit Warranty 2023 would nevertheless be deemed to

have been achieved, due to the addition of USD500,000 brought forward from FYE 31 January

2022 to the audited PAT value for FYE 31 January 2023 of USD2,000,000.

Termination
(i) The SPA may be terminated by the following Party by written notice to the other Party prior to

Completion as follows:

(@)  atthe election of the Vendor or our Company, in accordance with the SPA (i.e., if any Party
fails to comply with its obligations under the Completion clause of the SPA by the day falling
6 months after the date of the SPA or such other date as the Parties may mutually agree in
writing, the other Party shall be entitled (in addition to and without prejudice to any other
rights or remedies available at law, in equity, under contract or otherwise) to terminate the
SPA (other than the surviving provisions as set out in the SPA) without liability on its part
and no Party shall have any claim against the other Party for costs, damages, compensation
or otherwise, save for any claim by a Party against the other arising from antecedent breaches
of the terms of the SPA);

(b)  at the election of our Company, if the Vendor has breached any material representation,
warranty, covenant or agreement given by it in the SPA, which breach cannot be or is not
cured by the Completion Date;

(c) at the election of the Vendor, if our Company has breached any material representation,
warranty, covenant or agreement given by it in the SPA, which breach cannot be or is not
cured by the Completion Date; or

(d)  atany time on or prior to the Completion Date, by mutual written consent of the Parties.

(i) Upon termination of the SPA howsoever arising, all rights and obligations of the Parties under the

SPA shall automatically terminate except for such rights as shall have accrued prior to such
termination and any obligations which expressly or by implication are intended to come into or
continue in force on or after such termination.

Governing Law

The Agreements shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of Singapore.
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HISTORY AND BUSINESS

QCL was incorporated in the BVI on 24 May 2018 under the BVI Business Companies Act as a company
limited by shares.

QCL Group is principally engaged in EDM infrastructure technology business providing data storage,
protection and archival solutions to enterprises.

The history of the QCL Group can be traced back to 2018 when QCL commenced its business in the same
year following its incorporation whereas QST commenced its business in the following year.

QCL signed the Strategic Marketing Agreement and Service Partner Agreement with Quantum on 20 July
2018 that gives QCL Group exclusive rights to offer Quantum branded EDM infrastructure technology
solutions, namely data backup, storage and recovery solutions, as well as complementary value-added
solutions and services, and maintenance and technical support, to customers in the PRC. Quantum is a
company principally involved in scale-out tiered storage, archive and data protection, and providing
solutions for capturing, sharing and preserve digital assets. Quantum is based in the US and is listed on the
Nasdaq Stock Market.

The Strategic Marketing Agreement and the Service Partner Agreement are effective from 20 July 2018
up to an agreed initial period, and thereafter shall be extended for successive 1-year period, unless
otherwise terminated.

During the term of the Strategic Marketing Agreement, Quantum appoints QCL as Quantum’s exclusive
partner and marketer of Quantum branded products in the PRC. In the PRC, the following shall be the
exceptions to the exclusivity granted by Quantum to QCL:

Q) Quantum and Quantum’s reseller partners may sell Quantum branded products directly to
established and high-volume purchase global customers;

(i)  Quantum’s international original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) partners may sell OEM
branded products to customers within the PRC without restriction; and

(iii)  Quantum and QCL will jointly work on the go-to-market strategy to determine best sales
engagement, service delivery and fulfilment methods with regard to hyper-scale data center partners
in the PRC.

All terms of the Strategic Marketing Agreement shall apply to sales in the PRC. QCL may elect to
subcontract with resellers and distributors so long as such other parties agree to abide by terms and
conditions consistent with those contained in the Strategic Marketing Agreement. During the term of the
Strategic Marketing Agreement, and upon execution of the Service Partner Agreement specifying the terms
and conditions for providing services to the Quantum products, Quantum appoints QCL as a Quantum
Service Partner for all products sold by QCL in the PRC excluding the following:

(i) Quantum may sell Quantum branded services directly to its established global customers within the
PRC; and

(i)  Quantum’s international OEM customers may sell OEM branded services in conjunction with sales
of OEM branded products to customers within the PRC without restriction.

As at the LPD, QCL Group has more than 1,000 End-User Customers from various industries including
financial services, insurance, cloud computing, transportation as well as media and broadcasting that are
mainly located in the Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen.

The business of QCL Group has not been materially affected by the on-going trade war between China and
the US, as well as the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic since 2020 as evidenced by the recent award
of a major cloud infrastructure contract from a leading Beijing-based cloud computing technology
company.

31



APPENDIX 11

INFORMATION ON QCL GROUP (CONT’D)

QCL Group does not have a formal research and development team and has not incurred any expenditure
on research and development since inception.

QCL Group’s breakdown of the principal activities is as detailed below:
() Provision of EDM infrastructure technology solutions comprising of hardware and software

QCL Group is involved in the provision of EDM infrastructure technology solutions which
comprises both hardware and software. EDM hardware refers to data storage systems used to record
and store digital data while EDM software supports the process of data backup, storage, retrieval,
and restoration.

QCL Group specialises in high-performance data management which is workflow-driven, enabling
it to store, share and preserve enterprise data. This infrastructure is scalable as bandwidth and
capacity can expand to fit the organisation’s growth in future data requirements. The infrastructure
also offers flexibility to complement the organisation’s existing IT infrastructure and is highly
configurable to suit organisational needs.

(i) Provision of EDM value-added solutions and professional services

QCL Group’s EDM infrastructure technology solutions need to be integrated to the End-User
Customers’ existing IT infrastructure such as servers, network equipment and storage devices. To
achieve this, QCL Group provides value added solutions and professional services to design, install,
configure and implement its EDM infrastructure technology solutions in the End-User Customers’
IT environment.

QCL Group provides professional consultancy in the EDM design and configuration to meet each
End-User Customers’ unique requirements and demands, while complementing any existing IT
infrastructure. Value-added solutions and professional services provided also include after-sales
service to End-User Customers such as capacity planning which assists End-User Customers in
planning for data growth and anticipating future capacity increase requirements.

(iii)  Provision of annual maintenance and technical support in EDM solutions

QCL Group has a team of professionals to provide maintenance and technical support services to
its EDM infrastructure technology End-User Customers. Technical support is provided to existing
End-User Customers in instances such as storage device failures with scheduled and unscheduled
maintenance when problems are encountered. QCL Group also provides periodic equipment
maintenance and health check services to their End-User Customers as part of their annual
maintenance programme.

QCL Group also provides on-site technical support and product training to its End-User Customers.
Depending on the customers’ service level agreement, QCL Group is able to provide up to 24-hours,
7 days, helpdesk support to its End-User Customers in which the End-User Customers can use to
report faults and request assistance for ad-hoc system breakdowns.

QCL Group provides support for fast resolution, priority response and delivery, and installation of
replacement parts to ensure End-User Customers are able to maximise the performance of their
backup, storage and recovery capabilities.

2. SHARE CAPITAL

As at the LPD, QCL has an issued share capital of USD120 comprising 120 QCL Shares. QCL is authorised
to issue a maximum of 50,000 shares of a single class with a par value of USD1.00 each.
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3.

5.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

The directors of QCL and their shareholdings in QCL as at the LPD are as follows:

Direct Indirect
No. of QCL % | No.of QCL %
Name Nationality Designation Shares Shares
Wong Gang® Singaporean Director - - - -
Tan Jeck Min® |  Singaporean Director - - - -

Note:

(1) Being a nominee director appointed by QCL on 24 May 2018 as part of the corporate secretarial services
provided to QCL. The nominee director is not and will not be involved in any financial or operational matters
or management of QCL.

For information purposes only, Wong Gang is a partner in Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP which is responsible
for, amongst others, co-ordinating the Legal Opinion and the legal due diligence of QCL and QST which were
conducted by the respective local legal counsels in the BVI and China.

(2) Representative of KAB subsequent to the subscription of 16.67% equity interest in QCL by KAB.

SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

The shareholders of QCL and their shareholdings in QCL as at the LPD are as follows:

Place of Direct Indirect
Name incorporation No. of QCL Shares % | No.of QCL Shares | %
Lavender Blooms BVI 100 83.33 - -
KAB Malaysia 20 16.67 - -
Total 120 | 100.00 - -

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANY

As at the LPD, QCL has the following subsidiaries:

Name Date and place of Share capital | Equity interest | Principal activity
incorporation (USD) (%)
QST 26 September 2018, 2,500,000 100 | EDM infrastructure
PRC technology business
providing data storage,
protection and archival
solutions to enterprises
Quantum 29 March 2021, 100,000 100 | Dormant®
Storage Singapore
(China)
Pte. Ltd.
Notes:

1) The share capital consists of registered capital of USD2.50 million which shall be paid up within 30 years
from the date of obtaining the business license on 15 July 2019.

(2) The share capital consists of registered capital of USD100,000 which shall be fully paid up upon opening of
the company’s bank account.
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3) The company intends to engage in other IT and computer service activities including disaster recovery
services.

QCL does not have any associated company as at the LPD.

6. MATERIAL COMMITMENT
As at the LPD, there is no material commitment incurred or known to be incurred by QCL Group that is
likely to have a material adverse effect on QCL Group’s financial position.
7. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at the LPD, the board of directors of QCL is not aware of any contingent liability incurred or known to
be incurred by QCL or QCL Group, which upon becoming enforceable, may have a material impact on the
financial position of QCL Group.
8. MATERIAL CONTRACT
QCL Group has not entered into any material contract (being a contract entered into out of the ordinary
course of business) within the past 2 years immediately preceding the date of this Circular.
9. MATERIAL LITIGATION, CLAIMS AND ARBITRATION
As at the LPD, QCL Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims or arbitration, either as plaintiff
or defendant and the board of directors of QCL Group is not aware of any proceedings pending or
threatened against QCL Group or of any facts likely to give rise to any proceedings, which may materially
and/or adversely affect the financial position or business of QCL Group.
10. SUMMARY AND COMMENTARIES OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The summary of the audited financial information of QCL Group since incorporation up to the 13M-FPE
31 January 2021 is disclosed below:
Audited
13M-FPE 31 January
FPE 2018% FYE 31 December 2019 2021
uUsD RM® uUsD RM® uUsD RM®
Revenue 4,348,666 | 17,556,000 | 11,620,126 | 48,104,998 | 16,488,837 | 69,025,569
PBT 8,520 34,396 495,648 2,051,884 | 1,728,054 | 7,233,980
PAT 3,510 14,170 393,448 1,628,796 | 1,515,241 | 6,343,102
Shareholders’ funds / NA | 3,003,327 | 12,124,731 | 3,398,109 | 14,067,492 | 4,940,899 | 20,683,591
Share capital 3,000,100 | 12,111,704 | 3,000,100 | 12,419,814 | 3,000,100 | 12,559,019
Borrowings 210,454 849,624 111,089 459,886 95,434 399,506
Net earnings per QCL 29 117 3,279 13,574 12,627 52,859
Share
NA per QCL Share 25,028 101,041 28,318 117,231 41,174 172,363
No. of QCL Shares in 120 120 120 120 120 120
issue
Current ratio (times) 2.24 2.24 1.83 1.83 1.61 1.61
Gearing ratio (times) 0.07 0.07 0.03 0.03 0.02 0.02
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Notes:
@
(2

®)
(4)

From 24 May 2018, being the date of incorporation of QCL, up to 31 December 2018.

Based on the following exchange rates used by our auditor to consolidate the share of results of associate into
our respective financial statements:

FPE 2018: USD1.00:RM4.0371
FYE 31 December 2019: USD1.00:RM4.1398
13M-FPE 31 January 2021: USD1.00:RM4.1862

QCL changed its financial year end from 31 December to 31 January.

Annualised revenue, PBT and PAT for the 13M-FPE 31 January 2021:

13M-FPE 31 January 2021
USD RM
Annualised revenue 15,220,465 63,715,911
Annualised PBT 1,595,127 6,677,521
Annualised PAT 1,398,684 5,855,171

13M-FPE 31 January 2021 vs. FYE 31 December 2019

QCL Group’s revenue for 13M-FPE 31 January 2021 increased by USD3.60 million or 30.98% to an
annualised USD15.22 million (FYE 31 December 2019: USD11.62 million) due to the following:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

annualised increase in sales of goods of USD3.04 million for 13M-FPE 31 January 2021 (FYE 31
December 2019: USD8.65 million) attributable to the increase in major key project wins in 13M-
FPE 31 January 2021;

annualised increase in services rendered of USD0.36 million for 13M-FPE 31 January 2021 (FYE
31 December 2019: USD2.00 million) attributable to the increase in professional consultancy and
deployment services; and

annualised increase in the provision of maintenance services of USDO0.15 million for 13M-FPE 31
January 2021 (FYE 31 December 2019: USD0.97 million) corresponds to the increase in sales of
goods for the 13M-FPE 31 January 2021.

QCL Group’s PAT for 13M-FPE 31 January 2021 increased by USD1.01 million or 255.51% to an
annualised USD1.40 million (FYE 31 December 2019: USD0.39 million) mainly due to the following:

(M)
(i)

higher revenue recorded for the 13M-FPE 31 January 2021 as detailed above; and

lower annualised selling and distribution expenses of USD1.00 million for 13M-FPE 31 January
2021 (FYE 31 December 2019: USD1.28 million) attributable to lower travelling-related expenses
for the period.

FYE 31 December 2019 vs. FPE 2018

QCL Group’s revenue for FYE 31 December 2019 increased by USD7.27 million or 167.21% to USD11.62
million (FPE 2018: USD4.35 million) mainly due to the following:

(M)

(i)

increase in sales of goods of USD4.81 million for FYE 31 December 2019 (FPE 2018: USD 3.84
million) attributable to the increase in the momentum of partner channels and End-User Customers’
engagement during FYE 31 December 2019;

increase in services rendered of USD1.60 million for FYE 31 December 2019 (FPE 2018: USDO0.40

million) attributable to the increase in professional consultancy and deployment services provided
in FYE 31 December 2019; and

35



APPENDIX 11

INFORMATION ON QCL GROUP (CONT’D)

(iii)  increase in the provision of maintenance services of USD0.86 million for FYE 31 December 2019
(FPE 2018: USDO.11 million) attributable to the increase in customers’ renewed demand for strong
maintenance support.

QCL Group’s PAT for FYE 31 December 2019 increased by USD0.39 million or 11,109.34% to USDO0.39
million (FPE 2018: USD3,510) mainly due to the higher revenue recorded in the FYE 31 December 2019
as stated above.

For the FPE 2018 and FYE 31 December 2019 under review:

(i there were no exceptional or extraordinary items;

(i) there were no accounting policies adopted by QCL Group which are peculiar to QCL Group because
of the nature of its business or industry in which it is involved in; and

(iii)  there were no audit qualifications of the financial statements of QCL Group.

[The rest of this page has been intentionally left blank]
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QUANTUM CHINA LINOTED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(Company Begmstraton No.: 1980361}

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD
FROM 01 JANUARY 1020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

Aundited by:

OT11E€ASIA

OneAsia Corporate Assurance PAC
Public Accountanrs and Charened Accoumtants
(Registration No. 201526407K)
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QUANTUM CHINA LINOTED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

DIRECTORS" STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUAREY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 021

The directors are pleased to present their statement to the members together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of Quantum China Limited (the “Company™) and its subsidiary (the
“Group™) for the financial period from 01 Jamuary 2020 to 31 January 2021

1. Opinion of the directors
In the opmon of the directors,

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group are drawn up so as to present fairly, m all
material respects, the conselidated financial position of the Group as at 31 January 2021 and
the consolbidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equuty and consolidated cash
flows of the Group for the financial period then ended; and

it} at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay 1ts debts as and when they fall due.

2. Directors
The directors m office at the date of thus statement are:

Wong Gang
Tan Jeck Min

3. Arrangement to enable directors to acquire shares or debentures

Neither at the end of the financial penod nor at any time during the financial penod was the
Company a party to any armangement whose objects are, or one of whose ohject is, to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

4. Directors’ interest in shares or debentures
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings kept by the Company, the directors of the

Company who held office at the end of financial period had no interests in the shares or debentures
of the Company and its related corporations.

39



APPENDIX 111

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

5. Share options

There were no share options granted during the financial period to subscribe for unissued shares of
the Company.

There were no shares issued during the financial period by virtue of the exercise of an option to take
up unissued shares of the Company.

There were no unissued shares of the Company under option at the end of the financial period.

6. Auditor

OneAsia Corporate Assurance PAC has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment as
auditor.

The Board of Directors,

Wong Gang
Director

Tan Jeck Min
Director

Date: 3 1 MAR 2021

40



APPENDIX 111

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021

OINEASIA”

UhneAsts Corparate Assaramee PAC

Public Aceomntants and Chartered Aceosnianis
{Hegistration Ne. 2001228492}

133 Mew Bridge Road,

S Chimatomn Point,

Singapore 059415,

Tel: (65) 273 2711 Fanx: {63) 6275 0592

Ermail: ssdni@ oncasiacacom

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'™S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF
QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cuantum China Limited (the “Company™)
and its subsidiary (the “Group™), which compnse the consohdated statement of financial position of the
Giroup as at 31 Jannary 2021, and the consolidated staterment of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Ciroup for the period then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group are properly drawn up
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (FRSs) so as to present fairly, in all
matenal respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 Janvary 2021 and of the
consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the
Giroup for the period then ended on that date.

Basis of Chpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing {55A=). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACHA) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public
Accountants and Accounting Entities (ACKA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the awdit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Osher information

Management 15 responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors”
Statcmicnt.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 15 matenally inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

"We have nothing to report in this regand.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

ChneAsts Corporate Assarasee PAC
Public Accountamts med Chanered Accouninms
[Regisoration Mo, 2013349 2K )

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF
QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements {cont”d)
Responsibilities of Management and Directars for the Consolidated Finaneial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with FRSs and for such intemal controls as management determines is
necessary to enable the prepamtion of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Ciroup’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and wusing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors® responsibilities include overseeing the Group®s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Fimancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from matenial misstatement, whether due to frauwd or ermor, and to 1ssue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with $5As wall always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considersd material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasomably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 55As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

# |dentify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the consobidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nisk
of not detecting a matenial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

#  (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design andit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's intemal control.

# Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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OneAsia Corporate Assurance PAC
Public Accoumtants and Charterad Accountants
(Registralion No. 201526492K)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO MEMBERS OF
QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {cont'd)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
4 going concem.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

¢  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

3‘.

OneAsia Corporate Assurance PAC
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore

Date: 31 March 2021
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHIMA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOS5 AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

Mote 01002020 01012019

to to
3012021 ILazzne
Uss USs

Revenue 4 16,488 837 11,620,126
Cost of sales (13,126 9596 (9,558, 748)
Gross profit 3,361,841 2261378
Other income 5 B, 796 2027
Selling and distribution expenses (1,073,292) (1,276,782)
Administrative expenses (5659 291) (510.975)
Profit before tax i 1,728,054 4495 pas
Income tax expense 7 (212,813) (102,200
Profit for the financial period! year 1,515,241 393 448
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Currency translation differences arising from consolidation 27,549 1,334
Total comprehensive income for the financial period/ vear 1,542,740 394782

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

f
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 JANUARY 2021

MNote 31002021 JL12.2019
Uss LSS
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 T46,102 597 063
Right-of-use asscts 4 42 165 111 851
Deferred costs 10 511,300 445 408
1,349 567 1,154 362
Current assets
Inventones 11 - f1.114
Trade and other receivables 12 B, 248 G944 3,162.986
Deferred costs 10 Sdp K22 367452
Cash and cash equivalents 13 3 866,702 3,182,122
12 6602 468 6, 773670
Total assets 14,012,035 7928041
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Mon-current liability
Contract liabilities 14 1,041,550 TO5 964
Lease liabilhities 15 20,284 17,7540
Dieferred tax habilhities 16 123,104 O 000
1,184 923 £21.714
Cuorrent liahilities
Trade and other payables 17 R 017 2 Gl h18
Contract liabilities 14 QHG B46 GG 051
Lease liabilhities 15 75,150 03,139
Income tax payable 193, 20W) 9210
1886213 3, T08218
Total liabilities 071,156 4 5290352
Equity
Share capital 1% 5,000,100 5,000,100
Currency translation reserve 19 28,604 1,051
Retained sarmings 1912, 154 396,958
Total equity 4,940, 804 3398109
Tuotal liabilities and equity 14,012,055 7928041

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

Currency
Share translation Hetained Total
capital TESErVe earnings equity
Uss LSS Uss Uss

Ar 01 Janumary 2009 300600, 10003 (283) 3,510 3003327
Profit for the financial year - - 193 448 303 448
Chiler comprehensive income for the financial
year, el of fax
Currency translation differences anising from
consolidation - 1,534 - 1,334
Total comprehensive income for the financial

year - 1,324 192448 394,782
At 31 December 2019 30000, 103 1,051 106,958 3398109
Profit for the financial period - - 1,515,241 1,515,241
Chilver comprehensive loss for the financial
period, mel of fax
Currency translation differences ansing from
consolidation - 27,549 - 27,549
Total comprehensive income for the financial

period - 27,549 1,542 79
At 31 January 2021 3 0040, 100 28600 1,912,199 4940 899

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHIMNA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

01012020 01002019
Ty o
31012021 31.12.2019
LSS Uss
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 1,728 054 495 H48
Adjustments for:
Interest income (8.746) (22.027)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 180,216 HE, 907
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 128,734 167,247
Property, plant and equipment written off 5,252 -
Lease interests 5612 2026
Curmrency translation adjustments 29 488 1,558
Uperating cash flow before movements in working capital 2069610 739 359
Inventories 61,119 21,113
Trade and other receivables (5,085,958) (863,000)
Deferred costs (245,262) (532.818)
Trade and other payables 3,741 399 975,711
Contract liabilities Gl 370 R53 872
Cash generated from operations 1147278 1,194,237
Interest received B, 746 22027
Tax paid (5.944) -
Met cash generated from operating activities 1. 150,080 1216264
Cash flows from investing activity
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (335,225) (623.668)
Met cash used in investing activity (335,225) (623.668)
Cash flows from financing activities
Advances from a shareholder - )]
Repayment of lease habilities (124 663 (168 487)
Lease interests {5,612} {8026)
Met cash used in financing activities (130,275) (176,413)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents G4 5RO 416,183
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period! year 3182122 2,765,939
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period/ year 3,866,702 3,182,112

The accompanymg nodes form an integral part of these fmancial statements.

9
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHIMNA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

These notes form an imtegral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

1. Corporate information

The Company {Company Reg. Mo 1980361) was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
its registered office at Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Wickhams Cay 11, Road Town, Tortola,
W(31110, British Virgin Islands and its principal place of business at 51 Changi Business Park
Central 2, #09-12 The Signature, Singapore 486066

The Company is in the business of selling Enterprise Data Management (“EDM”) hardware and
software licenses and provision of EDM support and maintenance services. There have been no
significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial period.

The Company currently has a wholly-owned subsidiary in People’s Republic of China, known as
uantum Storage Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Litd. and the principal activities of its subsidiary are
sale of Enterprise Data Management {“EDM™) hardware and software licenses and provision of
EDM suppaort and maintenance services.

1. Sommary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements, expressed in United States Dollars (“LUS5™), which is
the Company’s functional currency, have been prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS5™). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except as disclosed in the following accounting

policies.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use
of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial period. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions and
historical experiences and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, actual results may ultimately ditfer from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the penod inwhich the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the penod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed m Mote 3 o the
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (contd)
ia) Basis of preparation (contd)

The carrving amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

In the current financial year, the Groop has adopted all the new and revised FRS and
Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS"™) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current
financial year. The adoption of these new/revised FRS and INT FRS did not have any materials
effect on the financial performance or position of the Group.

Mew standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that have been issued at the
reporting date but are not yet effective for the financial period ended 31 January 2021 have not
been applied in preparing these financial statements.

(b} Revenuwe recognition

RFevenue i1s measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the
good or service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at 2 point in time or over time. The
amount of revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered to the customers and all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

The amount of revenue recognised is based on the tramsaction price, which comprises the
contractual price, net of the estimated volume rebates and adjusted for expected retums. Based
on the Group's experience with similar types of contracts, vanable consideration is typically
constrained and is included in the transaction only to the extent that it is a highly probable that
a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the varable consideration 1s subsequently resolved.

Provision of 5 1 il mainleRance Services
Revenue from rendening of services 15 recognised when the services have been performed and
rendered and all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from maintenance service 1s measured on a straight-line basis over the contract penod.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (contd)
ic) Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-cmployment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed

contributions into sepamte entitics on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Shorr-term emploves henefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A lisbility is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the emplovee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(d) Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly to
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax i1s provided using the hability method, on all temporary differences at the
reporting date ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements except where the deferred income tax arises from the nitial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination, and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit
or loss.

[heferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available agaimst which the deductible temporary differences can be wtilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on currently enacted or

substantively enacted tax rates at the reporting date.

Defermred taxes are charged or credited to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged, in the same or a different peniod, directly to equity.

(e} Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared

for the same reporting date as the parent company. Consistent accounting policies are applied
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (contd)
(e} Basis of consolidation {cont*d)

Intragroup balances and transactions, including income, expenses and dividends, are eliminated
in full. Profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets,
such as inventory and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full.

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date of acguisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated untl the date that such control ceascs.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition compnses the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests isswed by the Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair
value of any contingent consideration arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and habilities and contingent habilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Amy excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any) and the fair value of the Groap's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former
and the measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the excess is recognised as gain on
bargain purchase in profit or loss on the date of acquisition.

Mon-controlling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a
subsidiary attnbutable to the interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the equity
holders of the Company. They are shown separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position.
Total comprehensive income is atinbuted to the non-controlling interests based on their
respective interests in a subsidiary, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance, unless the obligations of the non-controlling interests are restricted to their
capital contributed.

For non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event of hquidation, the Group elects on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis whether to measure them at fair value, or at the non-
controlling interests” proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets, at the
acquisition date. All other non-controlling interests are measured at acquisition-date fair value

or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another standard.

In business combinations achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquires
arc remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
(CONT’D)

QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
(e} Basis of consolidation {cont*d)

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
contrel are accounted for as equity transactions (i.c. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners) and therefore, no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When a change in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control
over the subsidiary, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary including any goodwill are
derecognised. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
also reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to revenue reserve if required by a
specific FRS.

() Property, plant and eguipment

Froperty, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently cammied at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaimment losses. Depreciation is caloulated
using the straight-line method to allocate the property, plant and eguipment’s depreciable
amounts over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Lseful lives
Computers 3 years
Furniture and fittings 5 years
Infrastructure equipment 3 years
Renovation 5 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The
residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end,
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised uwpon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Amy gain or loss on derecognition of
the asset is included in surplus or deficit in the yvear the asset is derecognised.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.

g} Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost imcurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition is accounted for on first-in first-out method.

Met realisable value 15 the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.,

When the inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories 15 recognised as an
expense in the penod in which the related revenue 1s recogmsed.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QCL GROUP FOR THE 13M-FPE 31 JANUARY 2021
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QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (contd)
(g} Inventories (cont*d)

The amount of any allowance for wnte-down of inventones to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss ocours The
amount of any reversal of any allowance for write-down of inventories, arising from an increase
in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occors.

(h) Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group
15 exposed to, or has rights to, variable retums from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those retumns through its power over the entity.

(1) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when an annual impairment test for an asset is required,
the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

Am asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit”s fair value less
cost of disposal and its value-in-use and determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment ksses are recognised in surplus or deficit, except for assets that are previously revalued
where the revaluation are taken to other comprehensive moome. In this case, the impairment is also
recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
nct of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is
recognised in surplus or deficit unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case
the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

()} Financial instruments
(1) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when the entity becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
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QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2020 TO 31 JANUARY 2021

1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (contd)
(j) Financial instruments {contd)
(1) Financial asseis {contd)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair valoe plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“*FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carmed at FYIPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behal f of third party, 1f the trade receivables do not contain

a significant financing component at initial recognition.
Subsequent measurement
Investments in debt instruments

Debt instruments of the Group mainly comprise of trade and other receivables, amount doe
from a sharcholder and cash and cash equivalents.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. The three
measurement categories for classification of debt instruments are amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI™) and FVPL. The Group only has debt
instruments at amortised cost.

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asscts are
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the
asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration recerved and any cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income for debt instruments
is recognised in profit or loss.
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1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (contd)
(j) Financial instruments {cont d)
(i) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables and leased liabilities. Financial
liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised imitially at fair value plus in the case of financial
liabilities not at FVPL, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After imtial recogmition, financial hiabilities that are not carned at FVPL are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the habilities are derecognised, and through the
amirtisation process.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. (n derecognition, the difference between the carrying amounts and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt mstruments
not held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,

discounted at an approximation of the oniginal effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (2 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit sk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognised for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of iming of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (contd)
(k) Impairment of financial assets (cont*d)

For trade recetvables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in defanlt when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Groop. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

(I) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(m) Provisions

Provisions ane recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

"When some or all of the cconomic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(n} Share capital

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.

(o) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Growp as g fessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities
representing the obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying leased assets.
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1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (cont™d)
(0} Leases (cont’d)

The Group as a fessee feon d)
Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (Le. the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
linbilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If pwnership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. The accounting policy
for impairment is disclosed in MNote 2 (i)

Lease liahilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments o be made over the lease term. The lease payments mclude
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
varigble lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residoal value guarantecs. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
Warable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenscs
{unless they are incurred to produce Inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date becanse the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease ligbilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lzase term, a change in the lease payments (e.g. changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery (1. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commiencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low-value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
(p) Related parties

Entities and individuals that directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, control,
or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the Groop, are related partics of the
Group. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly. an interest in the voting power
of the Group that gives them significant influence over the entity, key management personnel,
including directors and officers of the Group and close members of the family of these
individuals and companies associated with these individuals, also constitute related parties.

In considening cach possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

(q) Foreign correncies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statement of each entity in the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency” ). The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (“U5%7), which is
the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (the “foreign currency™) are
translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Currency translation gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monctary assets and
linbilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation of Group enfities” financial statements

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of
a hypennflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(1) Assets and liabilities are translated at the end of the reporting date;

(1) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates {unless the average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions); and

(111} All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve within

equity.
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1. Sommary of significant accounting policies (contd)
(g} Foreign currencies (cont’d)

On consolidation, exchange differences anising from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations (including monetary items that, in substance, form part of the net investment
in foreign entities), and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve.

Cioodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilites of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

On disposal of a foreign group entity, the cumulative amount of the currency translation reserve
relating to that particular foreign entity is reclassified from equity and recognised in profit or
loss when the gain or loss on disposal 15 recognised.

3. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In the application of the sccounting policies, which are describe in Mote 2, management is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and labilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual resolts
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised it the revision
atfects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision atfects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements made in applving accountin firies

The management is of the opinion that any instances of applications of judgement are not expected
to have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements apart from those
involving estimations which are dealt with below. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting peniod, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

Calcwlation of loss allowance

When measuning ECL, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information,
which 15 based on assumptions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Loss given defanlt is
an estimate of the loss ansing on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash

flows due and those that the lender wiould expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from
collateral and integral credit enhancements.
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3. Significant accounting jodgements and estimates (contd)
Calculation of loss alfowance jcont’d)

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of defanlt is an estimate
of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calcolation of which includes historical
data, assumptions, and expectations of future conditions.

As the calculation of loss allowance on trade receivables and contract assets is subject to assumptions
and forecasts, any changes to these estimations will affect the amounts of loss allowance recognised
and the carrving amounts of trade receivables and contract assets. Details of ECL measurement and
carrying value of trade receivables at reporting date are disclosed in Mote 21.

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade and other receivables at the end of the reporting peniod

are disclosed in Maote 12
Useful fives of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
annual reporting pericd. During the financial year, management determined that the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment are appropriate and no revision is requined.

The carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Motz 8.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and equipment have any indication of
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy. If there is indication of impairment, the
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment are determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of judgement and estimates. The management have
assessed the indications of impairment and concluded no such indications as at the end of the

financial year and hence no computation of the recoverable amounts is required.

Trncome taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the capital allowance and deductility of certain
expenses during the estimation of the provision for income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ulbmate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises lisbilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.
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4. Hevenoe

01.01.2020 01.01.201%
to to
31.01.2021 3122019
LSS Uss
Revenue recognised ar a point in time
- Sales of goods 12,716 866 4048 970
- Rendening of services 2558530 1,904 575
Fevenue recognised over time
- Maintenance services 1,213 441 471,581
16,458 K37 11,620,126

{a} Contract habilities

Contract labilities relate to the Group’s obligation to provide maintenance services to
customers for which the Group has received advances from customers. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue over the period the mammtenance services are provided. Revenue
recognised for the financial period from 01 January 2020 to 31 January 2021 which was
included in the contract habilities balance at the beginming of the financial period was
US$655,295.

(b} Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligation

The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations
as at 31 January 2021 is US52,011,385. The Group expected to recognise US3969 846 as

revenue relating to the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligation as
at 31 January 2021 in the financial year ended 2022 and U5%1,041,539 in the financial year

2023 pnwards.

5. Other income

01.01.2020 01.01.201%
to to
31.01.2021 3122019
LSS Uss
Interest income £.740 22027
Sundry income 5l -
8,796 2007
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6. Profit before tax

Profit before tax has been arrived at after (crediting)’ charging:

01012020 01.01.200%
T L (1]
31.01.2021 3L12.201%
LSS Uss
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 128,734 167,247
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 180,216 BE907
Lease interests 5612 £.026
Lease payments {short-term leases) 1,746 12,705
(Gain) loss on foreign exchange {256.436) 51,298
Staff costs (other than directors):
- Salaries and wages 1,140,738 1,052 883
- Employer's contribution to defined contribution plans 235454 302389
- Commissions 44,571 243 656
7. Income tax expense
O1.070. 2020 01.01.200%
T [ (1]
31.01.2021 3L.12.201%
LSS Uss
Current income tax
- Current tax 190,971 4,200
- Owerprovision in prior year (3.,258) -
Deferred tax
- Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 16) 25100 G800
212813 102,20

Relationship between tax expense and aecounting profis

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income
tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group is as follows:

01002020 01.01.201%
|01 [ (1]
31.01.2021 31.12.201%
Uss Uss
Profit before tax 1,728,054 495 648
Tax calculated at Singapore statutory tax rate of 17% 293,769 84,260
Different tax rate in other country (68.697) -
Income not taxable (9849) -
Tax effects on non-deductible expenses 3458 7980
Income tax rebates and exemption (12.652) (B, 114y
Deferred tax asset not recognised - 11,487
Crverprovision of current tax in prior year (3,258) -
Others 1,182 6,587
212813 102, 20M)
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§. Froperty, plant and equipment

Furndture Infrastructure
Computers and fitiings  equipment  Repovations  Total
Uss LSS Uss Uss Uss
At01 January 2019 11,827 13,018 31,100 9871 65,816
Additions 4 Gt - 618,999 - 623 668
Currency translation differences (212) - {13) - (225)
At 31 December 2019 16,284 13,018 650,086 9,871 6RY. 259
Additions - - 150 2635 4 062 335225
Written off - - - (9871 (9.571)
Currency translation differences 1,316 - 103 - 1,419
At 31 January 2021 17.600 13.018 980452 4962 1016032
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 January 2019 1,314 L]it ] 518 658 3,358
Depnaietion 5,024 2,604 79305 1974 88907
Currency translation differences {69) - - - {69)
At 31 December 2018 6,269 1,472 79,823 2.632 92,196
Depreciation 5,975 2,820 169 074 2347 180,216
‘Written of T - - - (3,619) (3.619)
Currency translation differences &7 - 163 &7 1,137
At 31 January 2021 13131 6303 249060 1447 269.930
Met carrving value
‘At 31 January 2021 4,469 6726 T3 1515 746,102
At 31 December 2019 10,015 9,546 570,263 7.239 597,063
25
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9. Right-of-use assets
Office premises

Uss
At 01 January 2019 270,985
Additions 6 455
Currency translation differences (535)
At 31 December 2019 339505
Additions 109,592
Derecognition of assets (270,5985)
Currency translation differences 4214
At 31 January 2021 182,726
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 Jamuary 20149 B0, 5 |
Depreciation 167,247
Currency translation differences i134)
At 31 December 2019 118,014
Diepreciation 128,734
Derccognition of asscts (270,985)
Currency translation differences 4,798
At 31 January 2021 90,561
Dot carrving value
At 31 January 2021 92,165
At 31 December 2019 111,891
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10. Deferred costs

11.

12.

31012021 Jla22019
LUss Lss
Current portion 546,822 367452
Mon-current portion 511,300 445 408
1,058,122 812 860

Deferred costs are prepaid maintenance services not recognised in the current financial period.

Inventories
3L.01.2021 3129
Uss Uss
Data storage systems, at cost - 61,119

The cost of inventories recogmsed as expense and incleded in cost of sales amounted to USS
11,025,471 (31.12.2019: USST 604,727).

Trade and other receivahles

31.01.2021 Ja2z2in9
Uss Uss

Trade receivables
- third parties 2067 486 2357 16%
- related party - 355,584
H.06T 486 2. M2, 752
Dieposits 39,596 45398
Prepaid operating expenses 13,713 46, 200
Other receivables - 15,971
GST! VAT receirvable 1281449 342 575
181,458 450,234
#2345 G944 3162 986

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 days® credit terms.
They are recognised at their onginal amounts which represent their fair value on initial recognition.

Included in the Group's other receivables that are denominated in the currency other than the
functional currencies of the Group entities are as follows:

31.01.2021 3022019
Uss Uss
Singapore dollars (“557) 128,149 337,511
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13, Cash and cash equivalents

3L.01.2021 31122019
Ls% LUss
Cash in hand 32358 17,293
Bank balances 5.R34 344 3164 820
3 866,702 3182,122

Cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in the currency other than the functional currencies
of the Group entities are as follos:

3L.01.2021 31122019
LUss Uss
Singapore dollars {“558™) 37203 324010
14. Contract liabilities
3L.01.2021 3122019
LS% Uss
Current portion 65, B46 90,051
Mon-current portion 1,041 5359 705 S
20011385 1. 405015

Contract liabilities relate to the Group®s obligation to provide services to customers for which the
Group has received advances from. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as the Group
performs under the contract.

15. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contract for office premises. The Group’s obligations under these leases are
secured by the lessor's tittle to the leased assets. The Group is restncted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include extension options which

are further discussed below.

The Group also has certain leases of office premises with lease terms of 12 months or less. The
Group applies the “short-term lease™ and “lease of low-valne-assets™ recognition exemptions for
these leases.

(a) Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets are disclosed in Mote 9.
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15. Leases (cont*d)

The Group as a lesse (cont’d)
(b} Lease habalines

31002021 322009

LSS Uss
Current portion 75,150 93 339
Mon-current portion 20,284 17,750
95434 111,089

Movement of lease liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows:

At 01012020 Acquisition Cash flows Lease interests  Ad 31002021

Uss Uss Uss Uss UsS
Current 93,339 83,112 (106,913) 5,612 75.150
Mon-current 17.750 20284 (17,750 - 20284
111,089 105, 3%4 (124,663) 5612 05434
At 01012019  Acquisition Cash flows Lease interests At 31122019
Us% UsS Us% UsS Uss
Current 148,831 43346 (106,864) 8026 93,339
Mon-current 61,623 17.750 (61,623 - 17,750
210,454 [ {168,487) 8026 111,089
() Amounts recognised in profit or loss
31012021 322019
Lss LUss
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 128,734 167,247
Interest expense on lease linbilities (Mote &) 5,612 8026
Lease expenses not capitalised in lease liabilities:
- Expense relating to short-term leases 1,746 12,705
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 136,042 187978

(d} Total cash outflows

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of USS5126.409 in 2021 (31.12.2019:
LUS$181,192).

ie) Extension options
The Group has several lease contracts that include extension options. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and

align with the Group's business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension options are reasonably certain to be exercised.
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16

Deferred tax liabilities

Movements in deferred tax habilities duning the financial year were as follows:

Hecognised in Recognised in
At profit or loss At profit or loss At
01.01.201% (MNote T) 31122019 Mote 7) 3L.01.2021
Uss Uss USS USS USS
Differences in depreciation
for tax purposes - G000 48,000 25,100 123,100
- G800 A8, 00 25,100 123,100
17. Trade and other payables
31.01.2021 31.12.201%
LSS LUss
Trade payables
- third parties 2249 500 1,016,883
- related party 5,804,328 1642015
- VAT payables 24568 -
6 118 396 2 R58 BO8
Other payables
- third parties 5,934 1856
- related party 95,611 9,136
Accrued operating expenses 428,076 236688
529 621 247720
6 648,007 29618

Trade payables are non-inierest bearing and are generally on 30 days® to 80 days’ credit terms.
They are recognised at their onginal amounts which represent their fair value on initial recognition.

Included in the Group®s trade and other payables that are denominated in the currency other than

the functional currencies of the Group entities are as follows:

31.01.2021 22019
Uss Uss
Singapore dollars (“557) 65158 31,585
18. Share capital
Mumber Mumber
of shares of shares
issued 31012021 issued 322009
Units Uss Units Uss
[ssmed _anc! paid up share c'ap__lla]
At beginning and end of period’ year 120 3,000,100 120 3,000,100

The total authorised ordinary shares of the Company are 50,000 shares. The holders of the shares are
entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of sharcholders and to receive all
dividends, of any.
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19, Currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the
Giroup’s presentation currency.

2i). Related party transactions

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, transactions by the Group with related
parties on terms agreed berween the parties concerned are as folloas:

With related pariies
Sales to related parties

Services rendered from related parties
Purchases from related parties

Hardware and services
Infrastructure equipment

Expenses paid on behalf by related parties

21. Financial instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial instruments as at reporting date are as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial habilities measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables

Lease liabilines

(b} Financial risk management

O1.01.2020 01.01.201%
T i
31.01.2021 3122019
LSS USs

499413 2,531,495
(118.410) -

(10, T64, B0 (7,243 B66)
(250,681 -
{55.963) -

31.01.2021 31.12.2019
LSS Uss

8.107 082 2.774,121
3.866,702 3182122
11,973,784 5056243
6,563 449 2906618
95 434 111,089
6,658 BK3 3,017,707

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include foreign currency nsk, credit nsk, interest rate nsk
and liqudity and cash flow nsk. The Group’s overall nsk management 15 determined and
carried out by the directors on an informal basis and the Group does not hold or issue derivative

financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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21. Financial instruments {cont’d)
i(b) Financial risk management (cont’d)
Foreign currency risk

The Group exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currencies of the Group entities.

Exposures to foreign currency risk are monitored on an ongoing basis by the Group to ensure
that the net exposure is at an acceptable level. The Group does not use any financial derivatives
such as foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currency options or swaps for hedging

purposcs.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following financial assets and financial
ligbilities denominated in 55:

3L.01.2021 3la2.209
LSS LUss
Trade and other receivables 128,149 -
Cash and cash equivalents 37,203 3z4m
Trade and other payables (65,158) {31,585)
Met currency exposure 10W0, 154 Bl

The following table demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change n the USS
exchange rate against the functional currencies of the Group entities, with all other variables
held constant, on the Group's profit before ta:

Increase/ Increase/
{decrease) (decrease)
in profit im profit
before tax before tax
30012021 31.12.2009
Lss Lss
5% strengthened by 5% (5,010) (41)
5% weakened by 5% 5,010 41

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group.

For trade recervables, the Group adopts the policy of dealing only with customers of appropnate
credit history and obtaining sufficient security where appropriate to mitigate credit risk. For other
financial assets, the Group adopts the policy of dealing with high credit quality counterparties.

As reporting date, Group has a significant concentration of credit risk for 4 (31.12.201%: 3)
major customers which accounts for about 98% (31.12.2019: 88%) of its trade receivables

balance at period end. The maximum exposure to credit nisk 15 represented by the carmying
value of each class of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial positon
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21. Financial instruments {cont’d)
i(b) Financial risk management (cont’d)
Credit risk feoniral)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout cach reporting
period.

The Group has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when internal andfor

external information indicates that the financial asset 15 unlikely to be recerved.

To mimmise credit nisk, the Group has developed and mamtamed 1is credit nsk grading to
categorise exposures according to their degres of risk of default. The Group uses its own trading
records to rate its major customers and other debtors.

The table below details the credit quality of the Group's financial assets, as well as maximum
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating categories:

Mote Category  11-month or  Gross Met
lifetime carrying Loss carrving
ECL amount allowance amount
LSS LI5S Uss
31 January 2021
Trade receivables 12 Moie 1 Lifetime ECL #8067 486 - BOAT 485
{simplified
approach )
iher receivables 12 Performing 1 2-rwomth ECL 10 504 - 39,594
Mote Category  12-month or (iross MNet

lifetime ECL.  carryving Luoss carrying
amount allowance amouwnt

Lss Lss Uss
31 December 2009
Trade receivables 12 Maote | Lifetime ECL 2 712,752 - 2712752
(simgplified
approach)
Oither receivables 12 Performing 1 2-month ECL Bl 369 - 6,365

Trade receivables (Note 1)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in FES 108 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL based on historical credit
loss experience, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future
economic conditions.
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21. Financial instruments {cont’d)
i(b) Financial risk management (cont’d)
Credit risk contral {oont'd)
Oither receivables

The Group assessed the latest performance and financial position of the counterparties, adjusted
for the future outlook of the industry in which the counterparties operate in, and concluded that
there has been no significant increase in the credit risk since the initial recognition of the
financial assets. Accordingly, the Group measured the impairment loss allowance using 12-
month ECL and determined that the ECL is insignificant.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good
pavment record with the Group. Bank balances are placed with reputable financial institwtions.

Financial assets that are past due and/or impaired

There is no other class of financial assets that is past due andfor impaired except for trade
receivables. The Group's trade receivables comprise the following:

3L.01.2021 3122019

Lss Uss
Mot past due and not impaired 5,391,239 2,706,330
Past due but not impaired 2 676,247 422
8,067 486 2712752
3l.01.2021 31122019

LUss Uss
Past due O to 30 days Todl 403 -
Past due 31 to 60 days 11,244 -
Past due over 6i) days 1,90, 600 f,422
2676,247 6,422

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the fair value of future cash flow of the Group's financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate. Apart from the bank
balances, the Group has no significant interest-bearing financial assets and linbilities.
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21. Financial instruments {cont’d)
i(b) Financial risk management (cont’d)
Liguidity and cash flow rizk

The Group manages the liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and banking facilities to
enable them to meet their normal operating commitments.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial
linbilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

31012021
1 year or 2to s Over 5
less VEArs VEArs Total
Uss LSS Lss Uss
Trade and other payables 6,563,449 - - h563449
Lease liabilities 77,984 20,973 - 98,957
6641 413 20,973 - 6662 406
3L12.2019
1 year or 2ta s Over 5
less VEArs VEArs Total
Uss LSS Lss LSS
Trade and other payables 2906618 - - 1906618
Lease liabilities 97065 18,336 - 115,401
3003 683 18,336 - 3022019

(c} Fair values of financial instroments

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group approximate their respective fair values due to
the relatively short-term matunty of these financial instruments.

11. Capital management
The Group’s ohjectives when managing capital are:

(1) to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(i1} to support the Group®s stability and growth; and

(111} to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group's risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to ensure optimal capital
structure and sharsholder retums, taking into consideration the future capital requirements of the
Ciroup and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities.

Capital of the Group comprises share capital and retained eamings. The Group is not subject to

externally imposed capital requirements. The Group®s overall capital management strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.
is
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23. Change of financial year end and comparative figures

Pursuant to members' resolution passed on 16 July 2020, the Company has changed its financial
year end from 31 December to 31 January and the next accounting year end is on 31 January 2021.

The consolidated financial statements for current period cover the financial period from 01 January

2020 to 31 January 2021. The comparative figures of the consolidated financial statements cover
the financial period from 01 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

24. Authorisation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial period from 01 January 2020

to 31 January 2021 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors dated 31 March 2021.
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LEGAL OPINION IN RELATION TO INTER ALIA OWNERSHIP OF TITLE TO SECURITIES OR
ASSETS AND THE ENFORCEABILITY OF AGREEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS AND
UNDERTAKINGS GIVEN BY QCL GROUP, LICENSING, GOVERNMENT REGULATION AND
OTHER RELEVANT LEGAL MATTERS AS WELL AS POLICIES ON FOREIGN INVESTMENTS,
TAXATION AND REPATRIATION OF PROFITS DATED 5 JULY 2021

ShookLinf&sBok

Writer's Mame:  Wong Gang Tel: (65) 8430 4833

Secrefary: Angela Leow E-Mail: gangwongi@shooklincom
Onmr ref. WOGINFQZ2210432 By Email and Hand
Your ref:

8 July 2021

Kronologi Asia Berhad

Third Floor, Mo. 77, 79 & 81

Jalan 5521/80, Damansara Ltama
47400 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Malaysia

Aftention: The Board of Directors

Ciear Sirs,

KROMOLOG! ASIA BERHAD (“KAB®) — PROPOSED ACGQUISITION BY KAB OF 100
ORDINARY SHARES IN THE CARJTAL OF QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED (THE “TARGET")
CURRENTLY HELD BY LAVENDER ELOOMS INVESTMENTS LIMITED (THE “¥ENDOR"],
REPRESENTING 83.33% OF THE TOTAL ISSUED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE TARGET, FOR A TOTAL PURCHASE CONSIDERATION OF UF TO RM150,000,000
TO BE SATISFIED VIDE THE ISSUANCE OF NEW ORDINARY SHARES IN KAB AND THE
PAYMENT OF A CASH CONSIDERATION COMPONENT ("PROPOSED ACQUISITION")

LEGAL OPINION IN RELATION TO INTER ALIA OWMNERSHIP OF TITLE TO
SECURITIES ©OR ASSETS AND THE ENFORCEAEILITY OF AGREEMENTS,
REPRESENTATIONS AND UNDERTAKINGS GIVEM BY THE TARGET, LICENSING,
GOVERNMENT REGULATION AND OTHER RELEVANT LEGAL MATTERS AS WELL AS
POLICIES ON FOREIGN INVESTMENTS, TAXATION AND REPATRIATION OF PROFITS

We have been instructed by KAB. a company duly incorporated in Malaysia, to issue a legal
opimion on the matters set cut below in connection with the issuance of the circular to
shareholders of KAB in relation to the Proposed Acquisition.

The Target currently cwns (i) the entire registered capital of Quantum Storage Technology
[(SHENZHEN) Co., Ltd (EEBFE#HE (=0 HE LT Y (Unified Social Credit Code No.
B81440300MASFBAFAZG) ("Quantum Shenzhen”), a company incorporated in the People's
Republic of China ("FRC"), which in turm has incorporated a branch office in Beijing, PRC (the
“Bramch™); and (i) the entire issued capital of Quantum Storage (Chinal Pte. Ltd. (Company
Registration Mo, 202111043K), a company incorporated im the Republic of Singapore
["QSCPL"). The Target, @5CFL and Quantum Shenzhen shall hereinafter be referred to
collectively as the "Target Group”, and each a “Target Group Entity”.

This opinion is limited to the laws of the Republic of Singapore as applied by the Singapore
courts and is given on the basis that it will be govermed by and construed in accordance with
Singapore law. We do not purport to be experts on, or generally familiar with, any laws other
than the laws of the Republic of Singapore. Accordingly, we have made no investigation of,
and do not express or imply any views on the laws of any termmitory or country other than
Singapore. Im pariicular, we have made no investigation of the respective laws of Malaysia,
the British Virgin Islands ("B¥1") and PRC, and do not express or imply any views on such
laws.

Sheak Lin & Bek LLP HH AR R

1 Mobrmos Hosd #18-20 AlS4 Tower Sngupore S4E54T Tel «55 530 vl Fax +85 8535 57T Emel albBnfocklin.om  ‘Websle. wew shockls com
Shook Lin & Sak LLP (Unigue Enty Na. T0/LLOWLAN |  segiiecsd in Segecore onder e Licvisd Lebily Perterships St (Chapter TEIA) woi® Ievied bub ity
THE IMFORMATION CONTRIRED N THIS TRANSEFESION |5 CORFIDEXTIAL AMD ORLY FOR THE INTERDED RECIPENRT IDENTIFED ABIVE. IF 7oL ARE NOT THE

INTERDED RECIMENT, YOU ARE HERESY NOTIFIED THAT AW Y [ S2EMIRATION OR USE OF THIE COVMURICATION 15 PROMIBITED. IF YOU HANE RECENED THIZ
THEMZEFEEION N ERROR, PLEASE MBECIRTELY ROTFY US BY TELEFHONE, B2 TN THE DRIGIMAL MESEEIF 003, ARD RETARN MO O
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A, Documents

We have examined the following documents (“Documents™) for the purpose of giving this legal
opinion:

1. the Sale amd Purchasze Agreement dated 24 May 2021 between the Vendor and KAB

{collectively, the “SPA Parties”™ and each, a “SPA Party”), as supplemented by the
Supplemental Deed dated 2 July 2021 (the “Supplemental Deed™) between the SPA
Parties (the "SPA™);

2 the legal opinion dated 5 July 2021 from BYI1 legal counsel (Conyers Dill & Pearman Pte.
Ltd.) (*BYI Legal Opinion™) in relation to the Target;

3. the legal opinicn dated S July 2021 from PRC legal counse] (Beijing Dacheng Law Offices
LLP, Shanghai) ("PRC Legal Cpinion™) in relation to Quantum Shenzhen and the Branch
{together with the due diligence report on Quantum Shenzhen and the Branch as
annexed to the PRC Legal Opinion (*PRC LDDE"));

4, the confimation letter dated S5 July 2021 executed by Tan Jeck Min, a director signing for
and on behalf of QSCPL, in relation to the affairs of QSCPL ("QS5SCPL Confirmation
Letter”);

a. the confirmation letter dated 5 July 2021 executed by Tan Jeck Min, a director signing for
and on behalf of the Target and Quantum Shenzhen respectively;

6. the cerificate of incorporation of QSCPL issusd by the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority ("ACRA") on 19 April 2021;

T. the ACRA filing dated 29 March 2021 in relation to the incorporation of QSCPL;

8. an email confirming the incorporation of QSCPL dated 29 March 2021 issued by ACRA;

9. the constitution of QSCPL (“Constitution”);

10. the electronic register of members of QSCPL dated S July 2021; and

11. the electronic register of directors of QSCPL dated S July 2021.

Searches conducted by us

We have alzo camied out the following searches on the Target Group:

1. an electronic and computerised search of instant information (business profile) on
QSCPL conducted with ACRA on 5 July 2021 ("ACRA Search™);

2. composite litigation searches made on 19 Apnl 2021, 10 May 2021 and 5 July 2021 of the
computerized search index of actions filed by and against each Target Group Entity in the
State Courtz and the High Court of the Republic of Singapore for the years 2018, 2019,
2020 and 2021 ("Cause Book Searches™);

3. searches made on 10 May 2021 and 5 July 2021 of the computerised search index of the:
High Court of the Republic of Singapore in respect of winding-up application(s) of QSCPL
for the year 2021 ("Winding-Up Search™);

4. searches made on 19 Aprl 2021, 10 May 2021 and 5 July 2021 of the computerized
search index of the High Court of the Republic of Singapore in respect of bankruptcy
application{s) of Wong Gang and Tan Jeck Min for the years 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021
(“Bankruptcy Searches"),

Page 2
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{collectively, the “Searches”).

The Searches conducted have not shown any adverse information om the Target Group in
Singapore.

E. Assumptions
We have assumed that:

1. there are no matenal facts in respect of the affairs of each Target Group Entity of which
we are unaware and have not been disclosad to us by the directors and management of

each Target Group Enfiity, or by their respective company secretaries and other corporate
advisers, whether deliberately or inadvertently;

2. all the information fumished to us by each Target Group Entity through its respective
directors, managers, employees, agents or advisers is true, comect, accurate, not
misleading, and represents a complete and up-to-date account of the information given;

3. all documents submitted or made available to us as copies conform to the authentic
onginal documents which such copies purport to represent and all original documents,
whether or not submitted or made available to us, are existing, as the case may be, and
hawve not een varied, cancelled or superseded by some other document or agreement or
action of which we are not aware;

4. the SPA and the Supplemental Deed had been duly and wvalidly executed by the SPA
Parties in accordance with their respective laws of incorporation;

5. the accuracy and completeness of all Searches conducted by our agents and that the
Searches continue to be true, accurate and complete from the date of the relevant search
until the date hereof and that such Searches did not fail to disclose any information which
had been delivered for registration but did not appear on the public records at the date of
our Searches; and

6. all of the contents set out in the BYI Legal Opinion and the PRC Legal Opinion (including

the PRC LDDR) are true and accurate and such contents remain to be true and accurate
from the date thereof till the date of this legal opinion.

C. Opinion

Subject to the assumptions and qualifications made in this legal opinion and based on our review
of the Documents, the information provided to us by the Target Group, and the Searches, we sst
out below our opinion on the matters requested as follows:

1. Due incorporation

1.1 Target, Quanium Shenzhen and QSCPL

1.1.1  Each of the Target, Quantum Shenzhen and QSCPL was duly incorporated and is
validly existing under its respective applicable laws of incorporation.

1.1.2 Based on the PRC LDDR, the business term of Quantum Shenzhen is from 26
September 2018 to 26 September 2045,

1.1.3 Each of the Target, Quantum Shenzhen and QSCPL has the capacity and the
corporate powers to enter into valld and binding agreements, make
representations and commit to undertakings in its own name, subject to s
constitutive documents and applicable laws and regulations.

1.14 There are no pre-emiption rights set out in the constitutive documents of each of

Page 3
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the Target and Quantum Shenzhen.

1.1.5 Pursuant to Regulation 42 of the Constitution of QSCFL, any person proposing to
tramsfer a share im the capital of QSCPL [hereinafier called “the proposing
tramsferor”™) shall give notice in writing (hereinafter called “a transfer notice”) to
QSCPL that he desires to transfer the same. If QSCPL shall within 28 days after
be=ing served with a tramsfer notice find a purchasing member willing o purchases
amy of the shares as aforesaid and shall give notice thereof o the proposing
tramsferor, the proposing tramsferor shall be bound upon payment of the fair value
as fixed in accordance with paragraph (1) or (4) of Regulation 42 to transfer the
relevant shares to the purchasing member. If QSCPL shall not within the 28-day
perod referred to abowve fimd a purchasing member or give notice in the manner
aforesaid in respect of any shares comprised in the transfer notice, the proposing
tramsferor shall at any time within three (3) months after the espiration of such
perod be at liberty to sell and tramsfer the shares to any person at a prce which is
not less than that specified by him in the transfer motice.

1.2 The Branch

1.2.1 Based on the PRC Legal Opinicn, the Branch was duly incorporated under the
Company Law of the People's Republic of China | (&4 EHGE 2 5528 )
("PRC Company Law™} and the Foreign Imwested Enferprize Law of the People’s
Republic of China | {77354 EFATE S &b ) ), and is validly existing under
the laws of the PRC.

1.2.2 Based on the PRC Legal Opinion, under the PRC Company Law, the Branch
shall not be deemed an independent legal person and its civil liability shall be fully
bome by Quantum Shenzhen. Mobwithstandimg that the Branch shall not be
deemed an independent legal person under the PRC Company Law, the Branch
has full power and authority to own, use, lease and operate s properties and
cther assets and o conduct its business as it is now being conducted and as the
same described in s business licensa.

2. Contracts
21 Targst

The Target has taken all corporate action required to autheorse its execution, delivery
and performance of the documents s=t out in Schedule 1. These documents have besn
duly executed and delivered by or on behalf of the Target, and constitute the valid and
binding obligations of the Target enforceable i accordance with the terms thereof.

2.2 Cuantum Shenzhen and the Branch

221 Each of Quantum Shenzhen and the Branch has the mecessary power and
authority for the valid execution and delivery of the contracts and agreements
set out im Schedule 2, to which it is a parly and for the performance of its
obligations thereunder.

222 The exscution and delivery by Quanium Shenzhen or the Branch (as the case
may be) of each of the agreements set cut in Schedule 2 to which it is a party
and the perfformance by Quantum Shenzhen or the Branch (as the case may be)
of its obligations thersunder hawve been duly authorzed by all reguisite
corporate actions (corporate or otherwise, if necessary), and =ach of the
agresments s=t out in Schedule 2 constiutes legal, valid and binding
obligations of Quantum Shenzhen or the Branch (as the case may be)
enforceable against it in accordance with the terms thereof. The execution amnd
delivery by CQuantum Shenzhen or the Branch (as the case may be) of the
agreements set out in Schedule 2, and the performance of its obligations
thersunder, do not amd will not result in (i} any viclation of the provisions of the
articles of asscciation of Quantum Shenzihwen, their respective business licenses
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or other constitutive documents of Quantum Shenzhen and the Branch, or (i)
any viclation of any applicable PRC laws.

2.2.3  Inthe case that Quanium Shenzhen or the Branch (as the case may be) enters
imto any agreements, representations or undertakings not in violation of
applicable PRC laws and the articles of associatiom of Quantum Shenzhen (if
any)h, such agreements, representations or underiakings are enforceabls
against Quantum Shenzhen or the Branch (as the case may be) under
applicable PRC laws.

2.2 QECPL

Any agreement, representation or undertaking (each a "Contract”) entered into by Q5CPL
is generally enforceable against Q5CPL wunder Singapore law, subject to the following
without limitation:

{a) a confractual prowvision providing for the payment of addiional amownis upon a
default may not be enforceable if construed by a Singapore court as a penaliy;

(b} where any obligation is to be performed in a jurisdiction cuiside Singapore or is
subject to the laws of a jurisdiction outside Singapore, such obligation may not be
enforceable im Simgapore in the event and to the extent that such performance
wiould be unenforceable, unlawful or contrary to public policy under the laws of that
jurisdiction;

(=) im some cincumstances, a Singapore court would mot give effect o a provision in a
Contract providing for the severance of any provision which is illegal, imvalid or
unenforceable, if o do so would not accord with public policy or would invobee the court
im making a mew confract for the parties;

{dy  the enforceability of a Contract may be limited by time bars or lapse of time, court
schemes, applicable bankrupicy, recrganisation, receivership, liguidation or other
similar laws afecting creditor's rights generally and by equitable principles
(regardless of whether the issue of enforceability is considered in a proceeding in
equity or at law), or may be or become subject to a defence of setoff or
counterclaim. In particular, fransactions entered into in the pericd before the
bankruptcy staris may be set aside in certain circumsiances;

{e)  as regards jurisdiction, a court in Singapore may in its discretion stay proceedings in
cerain circumsiances, for example, if the public policy of Singapore so requires, iF
concument procesdings are brought elsewhers, if the matter concemed is rez judicais,
if litigaticn is pending in another forum on the same matter or if another forum is more
comvenient;

{fl a Confract may be wvaried, amended or discharged by a further agreement or
affected by a collateral agreement which may be effected by an oral agreement or
implied by a course of dealing;

(gl aslhough the Singapore courts will award damages in currencies other than Singapors
Dhollars, it showld not necessarily be assumed that the courts would in every case
award damages for any breach of the documents in any other cumency other tham
Singapore Dollars and they may not enforce the benefit of any cumency comwersion
and indemnity provisions:

{h} enforcement may be restricted by the principles relating to the frustration of
confracts by events occurming after their execution;

{i} imterest on owverdue amounts may not be recoverable if it amounts to a penalty
under Singapore law;

{i} the enforcement of a Contract may be affected if any of them has besn entered into
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for the purpose of or in conneclion with (i) money launderng, or (i) any other
unlawful activity.

24 SPA
With reference to the SPA:

(a) the execution and delivery by the 3PA Parties of the SPA and the perfformance by
each SPA Pary of its obligations in the SPA do not and will mot:

(i} vidlate or contravene any law of Singapore;
(i} violate any court order or official decree of Singapors;

{b) the SPA, including the representations and undertakings given thereunder by the
SPA Parties are enforceable under Singapore laws;

{c) no authorsation, approval, consent, licence or exemption is reguired from any
governmental, judicial or public body or authonty in Simgapore in conmection with
the execution and delivery by the SPA Parties of the SPA or the perfformance by
each SPA Pary of its obligations thereunder;

{d) it is not necessary, in order to ensure the legality, validity or enforceability of the
SPA that the SPA (or any particulars of it} should be registered, filed, recorded,
notarised or delivered with or to any govemmental or official or regulatory body of
or in Singapore;

[E=3] no stamp duty is reguired o be paid in Singapore in conneclion with the =ale of
shares contemplated by the SPA;

{fl no fees, costs or deposits are payable to any govermmental or official or
regulaicry body in Singapore in connection with the transaction(s) contemplated
in the SPA&;

(gl in the ewent that a judgment of the Malaysian courts is obtained in respect of the
SPA, the judgment would be recognised and enforced by the courts of Singapore
without retrial or further review of the meris of the case, provided that the
conditions set out in paragraph 2.7 below are satisfied.

25 Whilst a claimant may issue a writ of summons against a defendant, which is resident or
has assets in Singapore as a matter of nght, the defendant will not be precluded from
applying and obtaining an crder for a stay of the proceedings in Singapore on the basis of
forum non conveniens.

26 Generally, a judgment obtained in another jurisdiction (other than judgments of a supenor
court in & Commonwealth jurisdiction or Hong Kong SAR) cannot be registered and
enforced in Singapore. However, a foreign judgment creditor may sue as a plaintiff in the
Singapore courts for enforcement of its righis against a foreign judgment debtor under a
confract. Access to the Singapore cowris by foreign judgment creditors to enforce the
foreign judgrent will not be subject to amy conditioms which are not applicable to
residents of Singapore or a company incorporated in Singapore except

{a) that the Singapore courts have power o stay the proceedings as set out abowve;

{b) a Singapore court may, at its discretion, order a plaintiff not erdinarily resident in
Singapore to provide security for cosis of the proceedings.

27 A final and conclusive foreign judgment propery cbtained for a ficed sum of money
against a defendant in respect of any legal suit or proceedings arising out of or relating to
a contract, which has not been stayed or satisfied may be sued upon as a debt due from
the defendant. A Singapore court will render a fresh judgment without re-examination of
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or a review of the merts of the cause of action in respect of which the original judgment
Was given if:

(a) the relevant court had jurisdiction over the defendant in that it was, at the time of
commencement of proceedings, resident in the jursdicton of the foreign country
where judgment was obtained or had submitted to the jurisdiction of the relevant
court;

b} the judgement was not obtained by fraud;

(=] the enforcement of the judgment would mot be contrary fo public policy in
Simgapors;

dj that judgment had not been obtained in contravention of the principles of natural
justics; and

=) the judgment of the relevant court did not include the payment of taxes, a fine or a
penalty.

Enforcement of Commonwealth Judgmenis

28 Im the event of a breach or non-performance of any obligation or undertaking given by
QSCPL in a contract and legal procesedings are commenced and a judgment is obtained
in a Commonwealth jurisdiction against Q5CPL in respect of the same, a judgment
creditor of a judgment obtained in the Commonwealth jurisdiction may apply to the High
Court of Singapore at any time within 12 months (or such longer period as the High Court
may allow) after the judgment, to hawve the judgment registered in the High Court The
High Court may register the judgment if it in all the circumstances of the case thinks it just
and convenient to do so. Upon registration, the judgment shall, with effect from the date
of registration, be of the same force and effect as if it had been a judgment obtaimed in
Singapaore.

29 Mo judgrment shall, however, be regisiersd in Singapore i
(al the original court acted without jurisdiction;

b} the judgment debtor, being a person who was neither cammying on busimess nor
ordimarily resident within the jurisdiction of the original court, did not woluntariby
appear or otherwise submit or agree o submit to the jurisdiction of that couwrt;

(=) the judgment debtor, being the defendant in the proceedings, was not duly served
with the process of the orfginal court and did mot enter any appearance,
notwithstanding that it was ordinanly resident or was camying on busimess within the
jurisdiction of that court or agreed to submit to the junisdiction of that court;

(d) the judgment was obtained by frawd;

=) thee judgment debior satisfies the High Court either that an appeal is pending, or thatitis
enftied and intends to appeal against the judgment; or

{f} the judgment was in respect of a cause of action which for public policy or similar
reascns, the High Court could not entertain.

210 A Singapore cowrt will mot necessarily grant any remedy, the availability of which is
subject to equitable considerations or which is otherwise at the discretiom of the court. In
particular, orders for specific performance and injunciions are, in general, discretionary
remedies under Singapore law and specific performance is not available where damages
are considered by the court to be an adeguate altemative remedy.
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3 Foreign Investment Policies
31 =AM
3.1.1  The Target may, purchase, redeem or othersise acguire its own shares in such

manner and upon such other terms as the directors may agree with the relevant
shareholder(s} =ave that the Target may not repurchase, redeem or otherwise
acquire its own shares without the consent of shareholders whose shares are to
be purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired unless the Target is permitted by
the BY| Business Companies Act, 2004 of the BV "BV Companies Act™) or any
other provision in the Memerandum of Association or the Aricles of Association
of the Target to purchase, redesm or otherwise acquire the shares without their
consent. There is no other provision in the Target's Memorandum of Association
or the Aricles of Association that provides for any purchase, redemption or other
acquisition of the Target's shares without the consent of the sharsholder(s)
whose shares are to be purchased, redesmed or otherwise acquired.

3.1.2 HNo purchase, redemption or other acquisition of s own shares may be made by
a BV business company unless the direciors are satisfied on reasonable
grounds, that the company will, immediatety after the purchase, redemption or
acquisition, satisfy the sohrency test. A company satisfies the sobrency test if (i)
the walue of the company's assets exceeds its liability, and (i) the company is
able to pay its debis as they fall due. The BV Companies Act provides for certain
situations where this solvency test is not mandatory pror to purchase,
redemption or acguisiion. These are whers: {(a) the company redeems the
shares under and in accordamce with Section 82 of the BV Companies Act
{which section does not apply to the Target pursuant to its Aricles of Association);
(b} the company redeems the shares pursuant to a nght of a shareholder to have
his shares redesemed or fo hawve his shares exchanged for money or other
property of the company; (¢} the company purchases, redeems or otherwise
acquires the share or shares by virtue of the provisions of Seclion 178 of the BV
Companies Act in relation to the rights of dissenters under a redemption of
minorifty shareholders, merger, consolidation, a disposition of assets, a
compulsory redemption or an amangement; or (d) the company acguires its ocwn
fully paid shares pursuant to & surrender of such shares by the person holding
the shares. Save for the above, there are no other restrichions under the BWI
Companies Act, the Targets Memorandum of Association or the Aricles of
Association on the payment made by the Target for the repurchase, redemption
or ather acquisition of its own shares.

3.1.3 The Target may make a distribution (which term includes a dividend}, whether to
a for=ign shareholder or otherwise, provided that the directors are satisfied, on
reasonable grounds, that the Target will, immediately after the distribution, satisfy
the salvency test set cut in the immediately preceding paragraph.

314 There is no concept of authorsed capital under the BV Companies Act, hence
thers is no concept of authornsed capital reduction.

3.1.5 The Target is free to acguire, hold and sell foreign currency and securties
withiout restriction. There is no exchange control legislation wunder BV law and
accordingly, (i) there are no exchange control regulations imposed under BV law
that would prevent the Target from paying dividends to shareholders in any
currency, and all such dividends may be freely transfemed out of the BV, dear of
any income or other tax of the BV imposed by withholding or otherwise without
the necessity of cbtaining any consent of any govermment or authority of the BV,
and (i) there are no exchange control restrictions or sanctions currently in effect
in the BWVI that would, in the ordinary circumstances, prevent the repatriation of
funds (regardiess whether they are profits or capital in nature) in a foreign
currency from the BV to any country by the Target.
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3.1.8 There are no restrictions wunder BV law against a foreign party investing or
hmolding shares in the Targst.

E PRC

3.21 Foreign persons, entiies, enterprises or other organizations are permitted o
invest directly or indirectly within the temitory of the PRC according to the Foreign
Invesztment Law of the People’s Republic of China | (A S TE S FEEZE))
(the "PRC Foreign Investmment Law™).

3.22 Unless otherwise prescribed by the PRC laws, any industries not falling into any
of the restricted or prohibited indusines set out im the Special Adminisfratve
Measures (Megafive List) for the Access of Foveign Investment (#2858 &EA &
SE R M A5 BT ) (the "Negative List™) is a permitted industry for foreign
investrment and for a company operating in such industries, there is no
requirement under the PRC laws for any proportion of the eguity interests in the
registered capital of such company to be held by PRC residents (whether
individual or corporate).

According to the business scope of Quantum Shenzhen, the business conducted
by Quantum Shenzhen and the Branch does not fall inte the MNegative List
Accordingly. thers is no restriction on a foreign entity from inwesting in or owning
equity interest in the registered capital of Quantum Shenzhen under the PRC
laws.

323 Under the PRC Company Law, the PRC Foreign Invesiment Law and the
Implementation of fhe Foreign invesfment Law of fhe People’s Republic of China
{ TFEAEXANEFSFEELLEFND ), foreign imvestors? may freely remit
into or out of the PRC, in Renminki ("EMB”) or any other foreign currency, the
capital confributions, profits, capital gains, mcome from asset disposal,
intellectual property royalties, lawfully acguired compensation, indemnity or
liguidation imcome and so on genesrated within the territory of the PRC.

Wholly-ocwned foreign enterprises in the PRC may pay dividends only out of their
accumulated profits as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards and regulations. In addition, according to the PRC Company Law,
these wholly-cwned foreign enterprises are reguired to set aside at least 10% of
their respective accumulated profits each year, if any, to fund certain statwtony
reserve funds, until the aggregate amount of such fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital. Save as set out above, there are no other resinictions on the
payment of dividends to forsign shareholders under the PRC laws.

Under the Foreign Exchange Confrol Reguisfionz of the People's Republic of
China | 5% EHBEH7 EFZEH#MA) ), ntemational payments in foreign
currencies and framsfer of foreign curmrencies umder the cument account items,
including the distribution of dividends, interest and royalties payments, and trade
and service-related foreign exchange fransactions shall not be restrnicted. Foresign
currency transactions under the capital account items, such as direct investment,
loans, securties investiment and repatriation of investment require approvals from
or registration with State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the PRC (frie A
EXVEEFAILEER) ("SAFE") or its local counterpart and other relevant
PRC gowvernmental authonties.

3.24 Under the existing PRC forsign exchange regulations, payments of cument
account items, including the distributions of dividends, interest and royalties
payments and trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions, can be
made in foreign cumencies without prior approval of SAFE by complying with
certain procedural reguirements, where COuantum Shenzhen s able to pay

1 According 1o the PRC Forelgn Investment Law, forelgn Invesiors means forsign natural persons, enterprises o other
CrganiZatians.
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dividends im foreignm cumencies to the shareholders without prior approval from
SAFE. However, the approval from or registration with appropriate government
authorities is required where RME is to be comeerted into foreign currency and
remitted ocut of China to pay capital expenses such as the repayment of loans
denominated in forsign currencies.

3.2.5 According to the PRC Company Law, upon the incorporation of a company, the
shareholders shall not withdraw their capital contribution except in situations
where Quanium Shenzhen reduces its registered capital or enters into liguidation
procedure. There are mo restrictions on payment of the registered capital from a
registered capital reduction exercise or liguidation or winding up procedure to a
foreign shareholder. However, if there is a premium at the time of investment and
the premium has been included in the capital reserve, only the registered capital
can be reduced.

328 Under the PRC Company Law, a company shall not make a share buyback,
axcept under any of the following circumstances:

[a) reduction of its registered capital;
(B} merger with another company which halds its shares;
[c) use of its shares for implementing an employee stock ownership plan or

equily incentive plam;

(d} in the event of a reguest from shareholders, who object to a resolution of
a shareholders” general mesting on merger or division of the company, to
the company o acquire their shares;

(&} use of shares for conversion of convertible corporate bonds issued by a
listed company; and

il where the share buyback is necessary for a listed company to maintain
its company value and protect its shareholders" equity.

Im the event of an occumrence of any of the events listed in (a) to (f) abowve,
Quantum Shenzhen may buy back its own shares, and there are no restrictions on
payment of the purchase price in respect of such share buyback o foreign
shareholders. With respect to (a) above, the purchase price shall be equivalent fo
the amount of reduced registered capital. If there is a premium at the time of
investment and the premium has been calculated imto the capital reserve, such
premium cannot be paid cut of the PRC by way of capital decrease.

33 Singapore

331 Singapore has mo significant exchange controls. Fumds, including profits and
dividends may be repatriated frecly from Singapore.

332 Pursuant to the Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Simgapore ("Singapore
Companies Act”™), no dividend (which includes bonus and payment by way of
bomus) shall be payable to the shareholders of any company except out of profits.
Any profits of a company applied towards the purchase or acguisition of its own
shares in accordance with the Singapore Companies Act shall not be payable as
dividends to the shareholders of the compamy. Any gains derved by the
company from the sale or disposal of treasury shares shall not be payable as
dividends to the sharsholders of the company. Subject to the foregoing., QSCPL
has the power and authonty to effect dividend payments (whether in cash or in
kind) to its shareholder under its Comstitution.

333 Pursuant to the Constitution of QSCPL, the company in general meesting may
declare dividends, but no dividend shall excesed the amount recommended by the
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directors of the company. The director(s) of Q3CPL may also from time fo time
pay to the members of QSCPL such interim dividends as appear to the directors
o be justified by the profits of QSCPL.

334 There are no exchange controls under Singapore law in respect of the dividend
payments fo parties in jursdictions outside Simgapore, pursuant fo the nolice
issued by the Mometary Authorty of Singapore ("MAS®) on 25 May 1878 (MAS
1103, Reference: ID Circular 8/78 dd 25.5.78) (MAS Motice 11037). MAS Motice
1103 provides infer alia that “With effect fromm 1 Jume 1878, all persons are
exempted from the prowvisions, obligations, etc, imposed under the wvariocus
sections of the Exchange Control Act (Chapter 245). Therefore, no exchange
caontrol formalittes or approvals are reguired for all forms of payments or capital
transfers”.

335 Capital may not be retumed fo shareholders unless a capital reduction exercise
i5 cammed out in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act
and the company’s constitution. There are no restnctions on payment of capital
from a capital reduction exercise to foreign shareholders.

3386 A company may. if 5o authorised by its constitution and subject to the limits
imposed by the Singapore Companies Act, buy back its own shares. Similarhy,
there are no restrictions on payment of the purchase price in respect of such
purchase to foreign sharsholders.

4. Licensing Requirements

4.1 Tamet

Mo order, consent, approval, license, authorsation or validation of or exemption by any
govemment of public body or authority of the BV or any sub-division thereof is required
to authorise or is required im connection with the camying on of the principal business of
the Target, being investment holding and information data storage products and sclutions
provvider.

4.2 Quantum Shenzhen and the Branch

421 Based on the PRC Legal Opinion, Quantum Shenzhen's scope of business as
set out in its business licence is as follows: Engage in the technical development
of computer storage software, and provide technical advice; Provide door-to-door
installation and maintenance services of computer hardware eguipment
Wholesale and retall of computer software and hardwars; Import and export
trade (the abowe scope of business does not involee items within the special
management measures for foreign investment access). (M3 oHRH FF ST 494
A E. FEEHAEN: THIES TS BTSS0S SRS TR, B
HETEH. BHOERL ESEEREFHESEAASTUERBENMATR) in

Chinesa)

422 Based on the PRC Legal Opinion, the Branch's scope of business as set out in
its business licence is as follows: Engage in the technical development of
computer storage software; Provide technical adwice (market entties
independently s=lect business projects amd carmmy out business activities in
accordance with the law; Projects that are subject to approval in accordance with
the law shall camy out business activities in accordance with the approved
content after approval by relevant deparfments; Business activities of projects
prohibited or restricted by the industrial policies of PRC and Beijing shall not be
engaged in). (MM HHIEWAOERTE. RUERAER (THETEREZAE
ESEREH. TREEE. ETISfREaEE. SESMEES ik
ATFREEES: THIREFNET-EREEENREAXRTEAHSEBS)

in Chinesa)
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423 Quantum Shenzhen and the Branch have obiained all necessary approvals andior
licenses from all relevant government andfor regulatory authorities for the conduct
of their business, and such approvals andfor licenses are valid and subsisting.

4.3 QSCPL

There are no licensing reguirements in Singapore for the business being camied on by
QSCPL, being the provision of other information technology and computer service

activities.
A, ramership of Title to Securities or Assets in each Target Group Entity
51 Target
5.1.1 The Target is authorised to issue a maximum of 50,000 shares of a single class

each with a par value of U351.00, and has isswed 120 shares that are fully-paid.

5.1.2 The regisiered shareholders of the Target are as follows:

Mame Mumber of shares
Kromologi Asia Berhad 20
Lavender Blooms Investments Limited 100

513 There is no record that any or all of the issued shares of the Target are
mortgaged or charged.

514 There are mo restrictions on the transfer of shares of the Target, save that the
Target must receive an instrument of fransfer complying with Sub-Regulation 6.1
of the Articles of Association of the Target and the directors may resalve to refuse
or delay the registration of the transfer for reasons that shall be specified in a
resolution of directors. In addition, the Memorandum of Association of the Target
provides that the directors may not resolve to refuse or delay the transfer of a
share wnless the sharehaolder has failed to pay an amount dus in respect of the
share.

A.1.5 There are no limitations, either under BYI law or the Memorandum of Association
and the Aricles of Association of the Target, on the rights of owners of the shares
aof the Target to hold or vote their shares solely by reason that they are nom-
residents, or mon-citizens, of the BVI.

5168 Thereis no record of the Target owning any real property.

5.2 Quanium Shenzhen and the Bramch

521 The existing registered capital of Quanium Shenzhen is WSD 2,500,000.

522 The existing shareholder of Quamtum Shenzhen and its equity interest in Quantum
Shenzhen are as follows:

Hame of Class of Registered capital Pai capital
Shareholder shares Armount Percentage | Amount | Percentage
‘:'”E'EF:_I".:E‘E“'”“" Ordinary | USD 2,500,000 100% USD 0.00 0%
Taotal LSD 2 500, 000 100 USD 0.00 0%

Accordimg to the articles of association of Guanium Shenzhen (which were
amended on & Movember 2018), the registered capital shall be paid up within 30
years from the date of obtaining the business license.
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Pursuant to the PRC Company Law, shareholders shall be enfited to receive
dividends im accordance with the ratio of the paid-up capital they have contribuied.
Accordingly, as the registered capital in the name of Quantum China Limited has
mot been paid up, Guantum China Limited shall not be entited to dividend or any
oither form of profit distribution pursuant to the PRC Company Law.

523 Al of the registered capital of Quantum Shenzhen is and has been legally cened
by its sole sharsholder, and free and clear of any liens, charges, mortgages and
agther form of encumbrances.

524 There are no provisions in the aricles of association of Quantum Shenzhen which
restrict the transfer of any eguity interests in the registered capital of Quantum
Shenzhen, and as of the date of the PRC Legal Opinion, there are mo such
resirictions under PRC laws.

525 According o the PRC Company Law and the articles of association of Cuantum
Shenzhen, there is no limitation applicable to the right of a foreign shareholder to
own equity interests in the registered capital of Quanium Shenzhen nor are there
amy restrictions on such sharsholder in exercising the right to vote held by it in
Quantum Shenzhen pursuant to its equity interests in the registered capital of
Quantum Shenzhen.

528 Quantum Shenzhen does not own any real property as of the date of the PRC
Legal Opinion.

53 QSCPL

531 Based on the electronic register of members of QSCPL dated § July 2021, there
are 100,000 ordinary shares in the capital of QSCPL, all of which have not besn
fully paid-up.

5.3.2 We note from the Constitution of Q5CPL that, amongst others:

[a) pursuant to Regulation 18, QSCPL shall have a first and paramount lien
on shares registered im the name of a member (not being a fully paid
share) and on dividends from time to time declared in respect of such
shares for all moneys due to Q5CFL from him or his estate either alone
or jointly with any other person whether a member or mot and whether
such moneys are presently payable or mot;

(b} pursuant to Regulation 20, Q5CPL may sell. in such manmer as the
directors thimk fit, amy shares on which Q3CPL has a lien, but no sale
shall b2 made unless a sum im respect of which the lien exisis is
presently payable, nor until the expiration of 14 days after a netice in
writimg. stating and demamnding payment of such part of the amount in
respect of which the lien exists as is presenily payable, has been given to
the registered holder for the time being of the share, or the person
entited thereto by reason of his death or banknaptcy;

(i) pursuant to Regulation 22, the proceeds of the sale under Regulation 20
shall be received by QSCPL and applied in payment of such part of the
amount im respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable and
accrued interest and expenses, and the residue, if any, shall (subject io
any lien for sums mot presently payable as exisied wpon the shares
before the sale but which have become presently payable) be paid to the
person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale, or, his executors,
administrators or assignees or as he may dirsct;

(d} pursuant to Regulation 23, the directors may from time fo time make calls
upon the members im respect of any monsy unpaid on their shares and
not by the conditions of allotment thereof made payable at fixed times,
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provided that no call shall be payable at less than ocne month from the
date ficed for the payment of the last preceding call, and =ach member
shall (subject io receiving at least 14 days’ notice specifying the time or
times and place of payment) pay to QSCPL at the time or times and
place so specified the amount called on his shares. A call may be
revoked or posiponed as the directors may determine;

(&} pursuant to Regulation 27, no member shall be entitled o receive any
dividend or i be present or vote at any mesting or upon a poll, or o
axercise any privilkkge as a member until he shall have paid all calls for
the time being due and payable on every share held by him, whether
alone or jointly with amy other person, fogether with interest and
axpenses (if anyl;

1] pursuant o Regulation 30, if a member fails to pay any call or imstalment
aof a call om the day appointed for payment thereof, the directors may, at
any time thersafter during such time as any pant of the call or instalment
remains unpaid serve a motice on him requiring payment of so much of
the call or instalment as is unpaid, together with any interest which may
hawve accrued:

(gl pursuant to Regulation 32, if the reguirements of any such notice under
Regulation 30 are not complied with, any share in respect of which the
notice has been given may, at any time thereafter but before the payment
reguired by the notice has been made, be made forfeit by a resolution of
the direciors passed to that effect. Such forfeiture shall include all
dividends declared in respect of the forfeited share and mot actually paid
before the forfeiture; and

{h) pursuant to Regulation 77, subject to any rights or restrictions for the time
being attached to any class or classes of shares, every member shall be
entited to be present and to wvote at any general meeting =ither
personally or by proxy im respect of any shares upon which all calls or
ather sums presently payable by the member im respect of shares in the
Company have been paid.

The full rights of QSCPFL in respect of unpaid shares are set owt in the
Constitution of QSCPL. In sum, no member shall be entiled to receive any
dividend or to be present or vote at any meeting or upon a poll, or to exercise any
privilege as a member until he shall have paid all calls for the time being due and
payable on every share held by him.

533 The registered shareholder of Q3CPL as at the date of this legal opinion is as

ol lonwrs:
Mame Mumber of shares
Cluarmtum Chima Limited 100, D00

534 Based on the QSCPL Confirmation Letter, the shares held by Quantum China
Limited, the sole sharsholder of Q5CPL, are not subject to any liens, charges,
mortgages and other form of encumbrances.

535 The transfer of cwnership of shares in the capital of QSCPL is subject to the
following restrictions:

[a) Pursuant to Regulation 42 of the Constiution of Q5CPL, any person
proposing to transfer a share in the capital of QSCPL shall give notice in
writing to QSCPL that he desires o transfer the same. F QSCPL shall
withim 28 days after being served with a transfer notice find a purchasing
member willing to purchase any of the shares as aforesaid and shall give
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notice thereof to the proposing transfercr, the proposing transferor shall
be bound upon payment of the fair value as fized in accordance with
paragraph (1) or (4) of Regulation 42 to transfer the relevant shares to
the purchasing member. If Q5CPL shall not within the 28-day pericod
refermed to above find a purchasing member or give notice in the manner
aforesaid in respect of any shares comprised in the transfer notice, the
proposing tramsferor shall at amy time within three (3) months after the
axpiration of such perod be at liberty to sell and transfer the shares o
any person at a price which is not less than that specified by him in the
tramsfer notice.

(B} Pursuant to Regulation 40 of the Constitution of Q53CPL, the directors of
QASCPL may decline to accept any instrument of transfer.

(c) Pursuant to Regulation 43 of the Constitution of QSCPL, the directors of
QSCPFL may decline to lodge a motice of transfer of shares with the
Registrar of Companies if (a} the share has not been fully paid or is
subject o a lien; or (b) the provisions of the Constitution of QSCPL
relating to the tramsfer of shares have mot been complied with.

536 There is mo limitation applicable to the rnght of a shareholder, being a foreign
shareholder, to own shares in OSCPL mor are there any restrictions on such
shareholder, exercising the nght to vote the ordinary shares held by it in QSCPL

537 (QSCPL does not own any real property as at the date of this legal opinion.
6. Material Contracts

For the two (2}year penod before the date hereof, each Target Group Entity did mot enter
inte any matenal contract out of the ordinary course of their respective business and which
is equal or more than Ringgit Malaysia 200,000.00 in value.

T. Litigation Matters

71 Tamet

7.1.1 Based on the searches conducted by BV legal counsel on 2 July 2021 as set out
in the BV Legal Cpinion:

(i} there are no judgments against the Target, nor any legal proceedings
pending in the BV to which the Target is subject;

(il no details have been registered of any steps taken im the BYI for the
appointment of a receiver, administrator or liguidator to, or for the
winding-up, dissolution, reconstruction or recrganisation of the Target
(however, it should be noted that (i) failure to file notice of appointment of
a receiver does not invalidate the receivership but only gives rise to
penalties on the part of the receiwer anmd (ii} in the case of the
appaointment of a liguidator, notice of the appointment of a liguidator may
be filed up to 14 days afier the actual appointment); and

(iii} there are mo judgments (including bankrnupicy procesdings) against the
current directors of the Target, nor any legal proceedings (imcluding
bankruptcy proceedings) pending in the BV to which any current director
of the Target is a subject.

7.1.2 Based on the Searches, the present direciors of the Target, being Wong Gang
amd Tan Jeck Min, are each not the subject of or invobleed in any bankruptoy
proceedings in Singapore, as at4 July 2021.
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T.2 Cuantum Shenzhen and the Branch

Based on the PRC Legal Opinion, io the best knowledge of the PRC legal counsel after
due inquiry and searches conducted on 5 July 2021:

7.21 there are no current, pending or threatened legal or arbitration procesdings
(whether as plaintiff or defendant), compulsory winding-up proceedings,
administrative procesdings, claims or other govemmental decisions. rulings,
orders, demands, actions, proceedimgs. investigations, imguiries or initiatives
(including without limitation disciplinary procesdings and prosecution) in the PRC
instituted by or against Quantum Shenzhen and the Branch; and

7.2.2 the present director of Quantum Shenzhen, being Tan Jeck Min, and the person
in charge of the Branch, being Zheng Manxiong, are not the subject of or involved
in any procesdings or restricted of high-level consumption.

According to Several Provizions of the Supreme People’s Court on Resfricfion of High-
level Consumplion of Enforcees { (BB AESEX FEHERT A BAREEXNRE
EF#HED ), where an enforcee has failed to perform payment obligations determined by
valid legal documents within the period stipulated in the notice of enforcement, a People’s
Court may adopt measures on restricion of consumption, to resinct the enforces from
camying out high-level consumption and consumpition which are not essential for living or
business necessities. Where an enforcee is a natural person and subject to restriction of
high-level consumption, hefshe shall not camy out the following high-level consumption
and consumption that is not essential for living and working necessities:

{a) When taking public tramnsport, opt for second-class seat or above for airdine,
raihway camage with cushioned berth, cruise, etc;

{b) Carry ocut high-level consumption in premises swuch as star-rated hotels, night
clubs and golf courses;

{c) Purchase real estate, build new housing property. expand housing property, or
camy out extravagant housing renowvation;

{d} Lease premises such as high-grade offices. hotels and apartments, etc o be
used as office premises;

(e} Purchase automobile not essential for business operation;
{fl Travelling and vacationing;

{al Enral his/her child{ren) in private schools which charge high fees;

{h} FPay high insurance premiums to purchase insurance and wealth managemsnt
products; or
{i} Take any class of seat for G-prefix express train service or first class seat of other

express train service, or camy out any other high-level consurmption which is not
essential for hisfher lifestyle and work.

T3 QSCPL
Based on the Searches and the Q5CPL Confimnation Letter, as at 5 July 2021:
731  @QSCPL is not the subject of or involved in any legal or arbitration (whether as
plaintiff or defendant}) or winding-up procesdings instituted against QSCPL
(including  litigation, arbitratiom, gowvernmental imvestigations or inguiries,

disciplinary proceedings, prosecution, claims etz.) in Singapore; and

7.3.2 the present director of QSCPL, being Tan Jeck Min, is also not the subject of or
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invalved in any bankrupicy proceedings in Singapore.

B Applicable Tax Policies
= | Target

As at the date of the BV Legal Opinion, there is no income tax, corporation tax, or profits
taxe, withholding tax, capital gains tax, capital transfer tax, estate duty or inhertance tax
payable by the Target or its sharehalders (in respect of payments including but not limited
to interest, dividends and profits) in the BV, other than shareholders ordinarily resident in
the BYI. The Target is not subject o stamp duty on the issue, transfer or redemption of s
shares.

82 Quantum Shenzhen and the Branch

821 The tax categories and tax rates applicable to Quantum Shenzhen and the
Branch under the applicable PRC laws are set out in Schedule 3.

822 According to the Enferprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
( (P ELEHEBFEGHEES ) CET Law™) and the Implementing
Reguiationz of the Law of fhe People’s Republic of China on Enferprize lncome
( €58 BEFEFE 8 07 R AW 3 ) CIRE), payment of income,
dividends or profiis made by Quanium Shenzhen to (i) a non-resident
enterprise which has no office or premises established in the PRC, or (i) a non-
resident enterprise which has an office or premises established in the PRC and
Cuantum Shenzhen has mo de facto relationship with the PRC office or
premises of such non-resident enterprise, is subject to withholding tax at a rate
of 10%.

According to the IREIL if a resident enterprise has a “de facto relationship™ with
the PRC office or premises of its shareholder which is a non-resident enterprise,
it means that such office or premises established in the PRC by the non-
resident enterprise cwns equity and creditor's rights which derives income in
such resident enterprise, and owns, manages or controls propery which
derives income held by such resident enterprise.

823 The EIT Law provides that enterprises incorporated in accordance with the
FPRC laws within the PRC will be deemed a "FRC resident enterprise” for tax
purposes, or if an enterprise incorporated outside the PRC has iis “de facto
managemsent bodies”™ within the PRC, such enterprise may be deemed a "PRC
resident enterprise” for tax purposes as well. "De facto management body” is
defined as the body that has the significamt and overall management and
control over the business, personnel, accounts and properties of an enterprise.
In April 2009, the State Administration of Taxation ([EF & % 5 &) promulgated
a wcircular to clanfy cerain crteria for the determination of the “de facto
managemsnt bodies” for foreign enterprises controlled by PRC enterprises.
Criteria include: (i} the enterprise’s day-to-day operational management is
primarily exercised in the PRC; (i) decisions relating fo the enterprise’s. finamcial
and human resource matters are made or subject to approval by ocrganizations
or persannel in the PRC; (i) the enterprise’s primary assets, accounting books
and records, company seals, and board and shareholders’ meeting minutes are
located or maintained im the PRC; and (iv) 50% or more of woting board
members or senior executives of the enterprise habiwally reside in the PRC.
Quantum Shenzhen is considered as a tax resident since it is lawfully
imncorporated im PRC.

824 According fo the EIT Law, enterprise income from dividends paid to a mon-
resident enterprise with an office or premises established in the PRC by a
resident enterprise which has a de facto relationship with the aforesaid office or
premises established in the PRC, shall be tax-exempt income. Accordingly, the
dividends paid by Quantum Shenzhen to its shareholder(s)} (including forsign
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shareholders not based in the PRC) is exempted from PRC tax in the hands of
such sharsholders).

83 QSCPL

As at the date hereof, the applicable tax policies in Singapore are as follows:

831 A Singapore corporate tax payer is subject to Singapore income tax on income
accreed in or derved fromm Singapore and, subject fo certain exceptions, on
foreign-sourced income recerved or desemed fo be received in Singapore from
outside Singapore. The corporate tax rate for the year of assessment 2020 is 17%.

8.3.2 A Singapors-incorporated company has to withhold tax when it makes payments
of the following nature to a non-resident person:

[a) Interest, commission, fes in connection with any loan or indebtedness;

(B} Royalty or other payments for the wse of or the rght to use any
movable property;

(i) Payments for the use of or the rght to wse scientific, techmnical,
industrial or commercial knowledge or information or for the rendering of
assistance or service in connection with the application or use of such
knowledge or information;

(d} Payments of management fees;

=] Rent or other payments fior the use of any movable property;

1] Payments for the purchase of real property from a non-resident property
trader;
(g} Structured products (other than payments which gualify for tax exempiion

under section 13(1}{z) of the Income Tae Act (Chapter 134) of Singapore
("Imcome Tax Act™)); and

(h} Distribution of real estate investment trust (REIT}).

Withholding tax is waived for all payments under section 12(8) and 12(7) of the
Income Tax Act which are made to Singapore branches of non-resident
companies on or after 21 February 2014, Examples of such payments include
interest, commission, royaltes and management fees.

Thers is no need to withhold tax on dividend payments. Singapore currently does
not hawe withholding tax on dividends ewven though withholding tax rates on
dividends are provided under some of Singapore’s tax treaties.

833 Foreign-sourced dividends, foreign bramch profits amd foreign-sourced service
income ("Specified Foreign Income®) received in Singapore by a Singapore tax
resident company are exempt from tax i (a) such income is subject to tax of a
similar character to income tax (by whatever name called) under the law of the
temrmitory from which such income is received; (b} at the time such income is
recaived in Singapore, the highest rate of tax of a similar character to income tax
(by whatewver name called) levied under the law of the temitory from which the
income is received on any gains or profits from any trade or business camied on
by any company in that termitory at that time is not less than 15%; and (c) the
Compiroller of Income Tax is satisfied that the tax exemption would be beneficial
to the person resident in Singapore.

834 A company s regarded as a tax resident in Singapore if the control amd
management of its business is exercised in Singapore. Mormmally, control and
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management of a company is vested in the board of direciors and the company
is resident in the country where the directors mest.

8.3.5 Singapore adopts the One-Tier Corporate Taxation System ("One-Tier System™).
Under the One-Tier Systemn, the tax collected from corporate profits is a final tax.
Distributable profits of the company resident in Singapore can be distributed to
the shareholders as tax exempt (Ome-Tier) dividends. Swch dividends are tax
exempt in the hands of the sharsholders.

. Gualifications
This l=gal opinicn is gualified as follows:-

1. This legal opinion furmnished by us is in relation to the specific issues for which a legal
oipinicn is sought as set out im the first paragraph of this letter.

2. This legal cpinicn merely cowvers matiers considered by us from a legal perspective and
save for the section on "Applicable Tax Policies” set out in sub-section 8 abowe, is not
intended to contain any advice of a tax, financial, commercial or accounting nature. We
do not take responsibility for or make any representations with regard to any matiers or
transactions other than those set cut in this legal cpinion.

3. We are not responsible for any inadequacy or failing in the documents provided to us by
the Target Group.

4. Certain paris of this legal opinion are based on the BV Legal Opinicn and the PRC Legal
Opinion (including the PRC LDDRY), and information and documents given io us by the
Target Group and their officers and direciors, and that such information and documents
are true and comect.

5. We have conducted no independent verification of the information provided to us by the
Target Group, except on the basis of the information publicly available from the searches
we have conducted, as set out in section & above.

. A person or enfity whao is not a party to this letier may not enforce or rely on any of its
terms.
T. The termn "snforceable” as wsed in this opinion means that the obligations assumed by

QSCPL under any agreement are of a type which in general terms are capable of beimg
enforced by the Singapore courts. it does not mean that the obligations under any
agreement will necessarly be enforced exactly in accordance with their temns. in
particular

{ay the wvaldity, perfformance and enforcement of the relevant agreement may be
limited by statutes of limitation, lapse of time, waiver and by laws relating to
bankruptcy, insohency, merger, consolidation, liquidation, possessory liens, rights
aof set off, moratorium amangements or similar laws affecting creditors' rights
generally and claims may be or become subject to set off or counter claim of third-
parties as well as applicable international sanctions;

{6y  where cbligations are reguired fo be performed in a jurisdiction outside Singapore,
they may not be enforceable in Singapore to the extent that performance would be
illegal or contrary fo public policy under the laws of that junsdiction;

{z) enforcement may be limited by general principles of equity, for instance, equitable
remedies such as injunction and specific perfformance are, in general, discretionary
remedies under Simgapore law and may not be available where damages are
considered to be an adequate and appropriate remedy;

(dy  the enforcement of the obligations of the parties may be limited by the provisions of
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Singapore law applicable to agreements held to have been frusirated by events
happening after their execution;

{e) enforcement proceedings are subject to the gemeral jurisdiction of the court in
regard to awards of costs, even as against a successful pariy;

{f) any prowision in any of the relevant agreements providing for the severance of any
provision which is illegal, invalid or unenforceable may not be binding under the
laws of Singapore as it depends on the nature of the illegality, invalidity or
unenforceability in guestion which issue would be determined by a Singapore court
at its discretion;

gl a Simgapore court may refuse to give effect to clauses in any of the relevant
agreements in respect of the costs of unsuccessful litigation brought in a Singapore
court or where the court itself made an order for costs;

{h} in appropriate circumstances and at the court’s discretion, the courts of Singapore
may render judgments in foreign currencies (such judgments may, however, have
to be converted into local curmencies for enforcement purposes);

{i} the courts of Singapore may refuse to accept jurisdiction or stay procesedings in
certain circumstances (for example, § the matier concemed is res judicafa, if
litigation is penmding in another forurmn on the same matter or if ancther forum is
miore comdenient);

{} where a parly to any of the agreements is wvested with a discretion or may
determine a matter in its opinion, Singapore law may require such discretion to be
exercised reasonably or that such an cpinion is based upon reascnable grounds;

(k) am obligation to pay an amouni may be unenforceable if the amount is held io
constitute a penalty;

{1} we have assumed that the choice of the laws of Singapore in the respective
agreemenis (where applicable) is bona fide and not in contravention of public
policy. The choice of law goveming any agreement will only be recognised and
upheld by the Singapore courts provided that the same is bona fide and there
being no reasons for avociding it for reason of confraventiom of public policy. A
choice of law clause may also not be upheld f &t was made with the express
purpase of awoiding the law of a jurisdiction with which the relevant agreement has
the most substantial conmection and which, if in the absence of the stated choice of
law would have invalidated the relevant agreement or been inconsisient with it

{m} the failure to exercise a right may be held by a Singapore court to operate a= a
waiver of that right notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any agreement;

n} the effectivensss of any provisions exculpating a party from liability or duty
atherwize owed may be limited by law; and

(o) the terms and condiions of the relevant agreements may be amended, revised,
varied and'or supplemented orally or by course of conduct notwithstanding any
prowisions to the contrary.

Wours faithfulky
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SHOOK LIN & BOK LLP
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SCHEDULE 1

List of confracts reviewsd by the BV legal counsel:

Strategic Marketing Agreement (Greater China) executed by Chris Willis on behalf of
Quantum Corporation on 18 July 2018 and by Wong (Gang on behalf of the Company on
20 Juby 2018

2. Quantum Service Partner Agreement (with Addendumns Mo, 1 o Mo, 4) executed by Chris
Willis on behalf of Quantum Corporation on 18 July 2018 and by Waong (Zamg on behalf of

the Company on 20 July 2018
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SCHEDULE 2

List of coniracts and agreements reviewed by the PRC legal counsel in respect of Quamntum

Shenzhen:
Purchase order issused by Beijing Baidu Metcom Science and Technology Co., Ltd. on 15
Orctober 2020

2. Semnvice Purchase Order/Maintenance service contract with Changhong IT Information

Producis Co., Lid. dated 3 Juby 2020

3. Service Purchase OrderMaintenance service contract with Polystior Softwars (Beijing)
Co., Lid. dated 18 October 2020

4. Tax invoice issued by Quantum China Limited on 30 Mowember 2020

List of contracts and agreements reviewsd by the PRC legal counsel in respect of the Branch: Mil.

Fage 22
96



APPENDIX IV

LEGAL OPINION IN RELATION TO INTER ALIA OWNERSHIP OF TITLE TO SECURITIES OR
ASSETS AND THE ENFORCEABILITY OF AGREEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS AND
UNDERTAKINGS GIVEN BY QCL GROUP, LICENSING, GOVERNMENT REGULATION AND
OTHER RELEVANT LEGAL MATTERS AS WELL AS POLICIES ON FOREIGN INVESTMENTS,
TAXATION AND REPATRIATION OF PROFITS DATED 5 JULY 2021 (CONT’D)

ShookLinkBok

SCHEDULE 3

Taxes applicable to Quamtum Shenzhen and the Branch:

Description of Tax Rate When Payable Name of relevant tax
Tax authority
VAT G% or 13% Momthhby State Administration of
Taxation | B & &% 55
["BATT)
Urkan 2%, Monthly, when there is VAT SAT
Maintenance & payable
Construction Tax
Education 3%, Monthly, when there is VAT SAT
Surcharge payable
Local Education T% Monthly, when there is VAT SAT
Surcharge payable
Corporate Incoms 25% ‘fearly SAT
Tax
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EXPERT’S REPORT IN RELATION TO THE FAIRNESS OF THE PURCHASE CONSIDERATION
FOR THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION

Jel : +603 2616 2838 Level 8
D Fax : +603 2616 2829 BD0 ® Menara CenTARa
www.bdo.my 360 Jatan Tuanku Abcul Rahman
et S 50100 Kuata Lumpur
Malaysia

The Board of Directors

Kronologi Asia Berhad

Third Floor, No. 77, 79 & 81
Jalan $521/60, Damansara Utama
47400 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan

5 July 2021

Dear Sirs,

Kronologi Asia Berhad (“KAB")

Opinion on the Fairness of the Total Purchase Consideration for the proposed acquisition by KAB of
the remaining 83.33% equity interest in Quantum China Limited (“QCL”) not already owned by KAB
for a purchase consideration of up to Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) 150,000,000 (“Fairness Opinion™)

1 Introduction

On 24 May 2021, KAB entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement (“SPA") with
Lavender Blooms Investments Limited (“Vendor”) to acquire the remaining 83.33% equity
interest in QCL, comprising 100 ordinary shares of United States Dollar (“USD") 1 each in QCL
(“Sale Shares") currently held by Vendor, for a purchase consideration of up to
RM150,000,000 (“Purchase Consideration”), to be satisfied via a combination of the cash
payment of RM75,000,000 (“Cash Consideration”) and the issuance of up to 110,294,117 new
ordinary shares in KAB ("Consideration Shares") at the issue price of RM0.68 per Consideration
Share (“Issue Price”) (“Proposed Acquisition™).

The Purchase Consideration shall be fully satisfied through the allotment and issuance of the
Consideration Shares to the Vendor (and/or its nominee) and the payment of a Cash
Consideration, which shall be apportioned as follows:

(i) 1" payment tranche: Payment of RM99,000,000, which shall be fully satisfied by
RM735,000,000 in cash and the allotment and issuance of 35,294,117 Consideration Shares
by KAB to the Vendor (and/or its nominee), at the Issue Price on the completion date;

(i) 2" payment tranche: Payment of RM37,400,000, which shall be fully satisfied by the
aliotment and fssuance of 55,000,000 Consideration Shares by KAB to the Vendor (and/or
its nominee) at the Issue Price, upon QCL Group (as defined herein) achieving the Profit
Warranty 2022 (as defined herein) based on the consolidated audited accounts of QCL
Group for financial year ending ("FYE”) 31 January 2022 subject always to the

%npletion of the sale and purchase of the Sale Shares under the SPA having taken place.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the consideration amount under the 2*° payment tranche
shall be adjusted downwards proportionately as disclosed in Section 2 and Section 3 of
Appendix | of the Circular {as defined herein) in the event that QCL Group fails to achieve
the Profit Warranty 2022 based on the consolidated audited accounts for FYE 31 January
2022,

{iif) 3 payment tranche: Payment of RM13,600,000, which shall be fully satisfied by the
allotment and issuance of 20,000,000 Consideration Shares by KAB to the Vendor (and/or
Its nominee) at the Issue Price, upon QCL Group achieving the Profit Warranty 2023 (as
defined herein) based on the consolidated audited accounts of QCL Group for FYE 31
January 2023 subject always to the completion of the sale and purchase of the Sale
Shares under the SPA having taken place.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the consideration amount under the 3™ payment tranche
shall be adjusted downwards proportionately as disclosed in Section 2 and Section 3 of
Appendix | of the Circular in the event that QCL Group fails to achieve the Profit
Warranty 2023 based on the consolidated audited accounts for FYE 31 January 2023.

The Vendor warrants to KAB that QCL Group shall achieve the following:

(i) a profit after taxation (“PAT") of USD2,000,000 based on the consolidated audited
accounts of QCL Group for FYE 31 January 2022 (“Profit Warranty 2022"); and

(i1} a PAT of USD2,500,000 based on the consolidated audited accounts of QCL Group for
FYE 31 January 2023 ("Profit Warranty 2023").

The terms and conditions of the Profit Warranty 2022 and Profit Warranty 2023 are set out in
Section 3 of Appendix | of the Circular.

On 2 July 2021, TA Securities Holdings Berhad announced on behalf of KAB's board that KAB
entered into a supplemental deed to include additicnal clause under the profit warranties
clause of the SPA. The additional clause was made to allow for any excess amount (being the
difference between the audited PAT for 31 January 2022 and the Profit Warranty 2022) to be
cumulatively added to the audited PAT for 31 January 2023, to determine whether the Profit
Warranty 2023 has been achieved.

2 Purpose of Report

Pursuant to our letter of engagement dated 26 February 2021, BDO Capital Consultants Sdn
Bhd (“BDO™) has been engaged by KAB to provide a faimess opinion on the Purchase
Consideration for the Proposed Acquisition.

This letter is prepared for and addressed to the Board of Directors of KAB and is intended
only for the inclusion in the circular to shareholders of KAB in relation to the Proposed
Acquisition (“Circular”) in relation to the fairness opinion on the Purchase Consideration for
the Proposed Acquisition. Accordingly, it cannot be used and relied upon in any other
connection or by any other person.

BDO's opinion and this letter may not be quoted, referred to or otherwise disclosed, in whole
or in part, nor may any public reference to BDO be made without our prior written consent.
This letter is not intended as and does not constitute a recommendation by us on the Proposed
Acquisition. It is also not intended to be relied on to address the business concerns and risks
pertaining to QCL Group.
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Background information on QCL Group

QCL Group is principally engaged in enterprise data management ("EDM") infrastructure
technology business providing data storage, protection and archival solutions to enterprises.
QCL was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

QCL has the following subsidiaries:

Equity ]

Place of Share capital | interest
Name incorporation (USD) (%) | Principal activity
Quantum Storage People's 2,500,000 100 EDM infrastructure technology
Technology Republic of business providing data storage,
(Shenzhen) Co., China protection and archival solutions to
Led. (“China" or enterprises

"PRC")
Quantum Storage Singapore 100,000 2 100 Dormant®!
(China) Pte. Ltd.

Notes:

(1) The share capital consists of registered capital of USD2.5 million which shall be paid up within 30
years from the date of obtaining the business license on 15 July 2019,

(2) The share capital consists of registered capital of USD100,000 which shall be fully paid up upon
opening of the company's bank account.

(3} The company intends to engage in other information technology {“IT") and computer service
activities including disaster recovery services.

QCL, Quantum Storage Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and Quantum Storage (China) Pte.
Ltd. are collectively referred to as “QCL Group".

Scope and Limitations

We have relied on the following principal sources of information in arriving at our opinion:

(1)

{ii)

(iii}

(iv)

(v}

Audited consolidated financial statements of QCL and its subsidiary for financial
period ended (“FPE") from 24 May 2018 to 31 December 2018, FYE 31 December 2019
and for 13 months FPE 31 January 2021;

Income and cash flow projections of QCL Group for FYE 31 January 2022 to FYE 31
January 2027 together with the key underlying bases and assumptions as prepared by
the management of QCL Group (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial
Projections”);

Representations and discussions with management of KAB and QCL Group
(collectively referred to as "Management");

Various documents and information made available to us during the course of our
discussions with the Management up to 21 May 2021;

The independent market research report on the EDM industry in China as referred to
in the Circular ("IMR Report™) prepared by Providence Strategic Partners Sdn Bhd
(“Providence"); ’
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(vi) The letter of representation from QCL dated 21 May 2021, confirming, inter alia, the
factual accuracy, completeness and reliability of the information provided to us
including the Financial Projections as well as the reasonableness of the underlying
bases and assumptions to the Financial Projections; and

(vii)  Other publicly available data and information.

BDO was not involved in the negotiation of the terms and conditions of the Proposed
Acquisition. BDO's scope of work is limited to expressing an opinion on the fairness of the
Purchase Consideration. In arriving at our opinion, we have relied in good faith on the
information provided and assumed that there is no omission or non-disclosure of material
information on QCL Group.

We have not conducted any audit or other verification procedures in respect of any financial
and non-financial data and infermation used in our work. Additionally, the work carried out
is different from that required for an audit which is based on International Standards on
Auditing and for that reason, it does not provide the same level of assurance as an audit of
financial statements.

Qur opinion does not address the relative merits of the Proposed Acquisition as compared to
any other alternative business strategies that might exist for KAB or the effect of any other
transactions in which KAB might engage nor should it be construed in any aspect as a
guarantee of value,

5 BDO's Evaluation

In our evaluation on the fairness of the Purchase Consideration based on the evaluation date
as at 31 January 2021 (“Evaluation Date"):

(i) We have taken note of the rationale of the Proposed Acquisition as set out in Section
4 of the Circular;

(i) We have considered the estimated range of 100% equity interest in QCL based on the
valuation approach as detailed in Section 5.3 of this letter (“Indicative Valuation”).
The Indicative Valuation is only for the purpese of our evaluation on the fairness of
the Purchase Consideration; and

(iii) We have considered the implied earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation multiple (“EBITDA Multiple”) with the range of the adjusted traded
EBITDA Multiple of Comcos (as defined herein), and the implied price to book multiple
{"“PB Multiple™) with the range of the adjusted PB Multiple of Comcos.

The Financial Projections of QCL Group are denominated in USD. In this letter, in view that
the Purchase Consideration for the Proposed Acquisition is payable in RM, all USD amounts
are translated to RM equivalents based on closing exchange rate as at 29 January 2021 of
USD1.00:RM4,040 as extracted from Bloomberg ("Exchange Rate”) being the last business day
prior to the Evaluation Date,

5.1 Summary of Key Bases and Assumptions
The key bases and assumptions adopted in our Indicative Valuation and/or evaluation on the

fairness of the Purchase Consideration and/or Indicative Valuation are as follows;

(i) That it is assumed that the Financial Projections as prepared by the management of
QCL will be achieved. QCL assumes full responsibility for the accuracy, completeness,
reliability and the reasonableness of the bases and assumptions of the Financial
Projections;
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{ii) That the discounted cash flow (“DCF") valuation implicitly assumes that the Vendor
has sufficient control of QCL Group's cash flow to determine the dividend policy,
capital structure and major capital developments. Also, the DCF method uses the
terminal valuation model to approximate the future value of QCL Group beyond the
projection period;

(iif)  That the exchange rates applicable as at the completion of the Proposed Acquisition
shall approximate to the closing exchange rate as at 29 January 2021 of
USD1.00:RM4.040;

{iv) That the consent from Quantum Corporation is not required in relation to the
Proposed Acquisition;

(v) That QCL Group is not and will not be subject to any sancticn and/or trading
restrictions whatsoever, and that QCL Group is not aware and is not informed of any
potential and/or impending sanction and/or trading restrictions by any party;

(vi) QCL Group has/will have all the relevant licences, permits, approvals, agreements
{including but not limited to the Strategic Marketing Agreement and the Quantum
Service Partner Agreement between Quantum Corporation and QCL), contracts or any
other contractual agreements, to carry out the business {“Licences/Agreements”).
Accordingly, It is further assumed that there are no breaches and there will not be
any breaches of any provision in the Licences/Agreements and the
Licenses/Agreements are renewed upon expiry;

{vii}  There is no material movement to the Indicative Valuation from Evaluation Date up
to the completion date of the Proposed Acquisition;

(viii)  That the time value implications, if any, from the Evaluation Date up to the actual
completion date of the Proposed Acquisition is not material;

ix)  That the IMR Report prepared by Providence have been relied upon for the Indicative
Valuation;

(x) That QCL Group is in full compliance with all applicable regulations and laws;

(xi} That there will be no material changes In the present legislation, government
regulations, inflation rates, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, bases and rates of
taxation, and other lending guidelines which will affect the activities of QCL Group;

(xii)  That there will be no material changes in the present management of QCL Group and
principal activities as well as the accounting and operating policies presently adopted
by QCL Group, There will be continuity in responsible ownership and competent
management with respect to the operation of the business;

{xiii}  That there are no material changes in the financial position and performance as well
as business operations of QCL Group that will affect QCL Group after the Evaluation
Date;
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5.2

(xiv)  That there are no undisclosed actual or contingent assets or liabilities, including but
not limited te, any contracts and/or off-balance sheet financial instruments, no
unusual cbligations or commitments other than in the ordinary course of business,
nor any pending litigation which would have a material effect on the financial position
or cperations of QCL Group now and in the future;

(xv)  That the Indicative Valuation has been carried out on the basis that QCL Group is and
will continue to be a going concern. It is assumed that the current operations and
activities of QCL Group will continue;

{xvi)  That there will be no material changes to the condition of the assets which will affect
the operations in the future; and

(xvii}  That there will be no event of force majeure occurring such as any act of God, act of
public enemies, war, act of terrorism, restraint of Government or people of any
nation, riots, insurrections, civil commotion, floods, fire, restrictions due to
quarantines, epidemics, storms, or any other causes bevond the reasonable control
of the management of QCL Group, which could materially affect the financial position
and business operations of QCL Group.

Rationale and benefits of the Proposed Acquisition

We take note of the following rationale and benefits of the Proposed Acquisition from Section
4 of the Gircular:

Currently, KAB group specialises in the provision of EDM infrastructure technology (i.e., EDM
hardware refers to computer components used to record, store and retain digital data while
EOM software supports the process of data backup, storage, recovery and restoration) and
EDM managed services (i.e., comprehensive services provided for data assurance and
operational continuity comprising backup, storage, recovery and restoration of enterprise
data, health checks, capacity planning, remote monitoring and disaster recovery services).
KAB group currently has business operations in the Philippines, Singapore, China, Hong Kong,
Taiwan, Malaysia, India, Indonesia, and Thailand,

KAB group's revenue breakdown by country based on KAB group's audited financial
statements for the FYE 31 December 2019 and for the 13 months FPE 31 January 2021 are as
follows:

| Audited Audited

FYE 31 December 2019 13 months FPE 31 January 2021
Country RM'000 % RM'000 %
Philippines 75,751 3217 84,962 32.00
Singapore 71,900 30.53 143,088 53.90
China 28,913 12.28 24 -
Hong Kong and Taiwan 27,784 11.80 17,115 6.45
India 17,111 7.27 13,826 5.21
Malaysia 2,313 0.97 1,731 0.65
Others 11,728 4.98 4,748 1.79
Total 235,500 100.00 265,494 100.00
N .
- Negligible.
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QCL Group is principally involved in the EDM infrastructure technology business providing data
storage, protection and archival solutions to enterprises. QCL Group is based in the PRC and
provide their products and services to customers in the PRC.

As at the latest practicable date as defined in the Circular, KAB holds 16.67% of the equity
interest in QCL, which has remained unchanged since KAB's subscription to equity in QCL on
21 November 2018. QCL is deemed as KAB's associate company. KAB group's share of results
of equity-accounted associate for the FYE 31 December 2018, FYE 31 December 2019 and 13
month FPE 31 January 2021 are as follows:

Audited
FYE 31 FYE 31 | 13 months FPE 31
December 2018 December 2019 January 2021
! RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
| Share of results 66 309 1,057

With the Proposed Acquisition, KAB group will be able to further expand its marketing,
distribution and customer coverage footprint to an EDM market with growth opportunities
that are potentially larger than the market geographies currently served by KAB group,
spurred by the rapid pace of technology advancements and adoption of EDM solutions in
China.

According to the IMR Report, the EDM industry in China grew at a robust compounded annual
growth rate (“CAGR") of 23.3% from about USD26.3 billion in 2018 to about USD40.2 billion
in 2020. The growth of the EDM industry in China is forecasted to further accelerate at a
CAGR of 29.8% from approximately USD51.9 billion in 2021 to approximately USDE?.5 billion
in 2023. The strong growth trend exhibited by the EDM industry in China has been, and is
expected to continue to be driven by the move towards digitalisation of businesses, increased
use of cloud technology, increasing volume of digital data and initiatives from the government
of China to encourage digitalisation among businesses. (Source: IMR Report)

Premised on the above industry statistics and in line with KAB group’s ongoing business plan
to expand its presence in a market with growth opportunities, KAB’s board is of the view that
it is beneficial for KAB group to acquire the remaining QCL shares not already owned by KAB
in order to further support and develop QCL's existing customer base to expand KAB group’s
overall market presence in China, thereby enabling KAB group to tap into the growing EDM
industry in the country. In addition, the Proposed Acquisition will enable KAB group to have
control over the strategic direction and management of QCL Group and to consolidate QCL
Group’s operating profits, which is expected to contribute positively to KAB group's financial
performance in the future. Further details on the prospects of QCL Group and KAB's enlarged
group is set out in Section 3.3 of the Circular.

KAB's board is of the view that the issuance of the Consideration Shares to partially satisfy
the Purchase Consideration will enable KAB to conserve cash of up to RM75,000,000, which
can be used as working capital to finance the day-to-day operations and other business
expansion plans of KAB group.
5.3 The Indicative Valuation of 100% equity interest in QCL based on the DCF Approach
3.3.1  Method of Valuation

We have relied on the DCF valuation to estimate the range of indicative values of QCL Group

%N the purpose of the Fairness Opinion.
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The DCF approach is an investment appraisal technique which takes into consideration both
the time value of money and the cash flow over a fixed period of time. Under this method,
the cash flow from the investment is discounted at a specified discount rate to arrive at the
net present value. A key assumption for the DCF approach is the choice of a discount rate
that takes into account the relevant market interest and inflation rates as well as the business
and financial risks relating to the business.

We would like to draw your attention to Section 5.3.3 relating to the derived discount rates
wherein one of the factors which we have considered in arriving at the derived discount rates
are the bases and assumptions used in the Financial Projections.

In arriving at the discount rates of the Indicative Valuation, we have selected the comparable
companies as listed in Appendix 1 as the comparable companies (“Comcos”™) in view that
these companies are involved in the industry which we view as broadly comparable to QCL.
We have not considered non listed companies as comparable companies as information such
as beta are not available, and their latest financial information may not be readily available.
We have applied the prevailing risk-free rate, equity risk premium and beta of Comcos as at
31 January 2021, being the Evaluation Date. We have also relied on the data of Comcos in
estimating the discount rates with adjustments taking into consideration the size and country
risk of Comcos and QCL, and the unlisted status of QCL.

Please note that the selection of Comcos and adjustments made are highly subjective and
judgmental and the selected Comcos may not be entirely comparable due to various factors,
Please refer to Appendix 1 for details of the Comcos selected and their principal activities.

5.3.2 Basis of Indicative Valuation

The basis of the Indicative Valuation used herein is the market value which is defined as the
approximate price of an asset that would change hands between a willing buyer and a willing
seller when neither is acting under compulsion and when both have the relevant and required
facts,

Please note that the concept of market value means the price of an asset being valued
assuming the transaction took place under conditions existing at the date of valuation of the
asset. The amount would not be considered market value if it was influenced by special
motivations not characteristic of a typical buyer or seller.

In addition, the range of indicative values that we have estimated is based on going concern
use and not, for example, with the break-up value of the business.

% THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALY LEFT BLANK
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5.3.3 Indicative Valuation Results

Using the approach to the Indicative Valuation as outlined in Section 5.3.1 of this letter and
based on the key bases and assumptions as detailed in Section 5.1 of this letter, the indicative
values of 100% equity interest in QCL discounted at the derived discount rates as at Evaluation
Date of 31 January 2021 are as set out in the table below:

Table 1: Indicative Valuation Results

USD million RM millfon
Low | High Low High
Range of enterprise value of 1005 equity 36.2 | 41.0 146.2 165.56
interest in QCL
Add: Cash and bank balances as at 31 3.9 39 15.6 15.6
January 2021 ™ |
Range of indicative values of 100X equity 40.1 449 161.8 181.2
interest in QCL @
Derived discount rates ' 12.72% w0 13.97%
Notes:
(1) Cash and cash equivalents of QCL Group as at 31 January 2021.
(2} The net present value of terminal valve ranges from USD22.6 million to USD26.8 million {appraximately
| FM31.1 million to ARM108.2 miltion translated based on the Exchange Rate) in arriving at this range of
indicative values,
(3) Translated based an the Exchange Rate,

The Indicative Valuation range of USD40.1 million to USD44.9 million (approximately RM161.8
million to RM181.2 million translated based on the Exchange Rate) is derived after discounting
the projected cash flow based on the Financial Projections of QCL Group as prepared by QCL
Group's management, at derived discount rates of 12.72% to 13,97%,

In deriving the discount rates of QCL Group, we have applied the prevailing risk-free rate,
equity risk premium and beta of Comcos as at 31 January 2021, We have also relied on the
data of the Comcos in estimating the discount rates with adjustments taking into
consideration the size and country risk of Comcos and QCL, and the unlisted status of QCL.

Please note that the selection of the Comcos and the adjustments made are highly subjective
and judgemental and the selected Comcos may not be entirely comparable due to various
factors.

As the Evaluation Date is 31 January 2021, BDO has not taken into consideration time value
implications, if any, which may arise at any time between the actual completion date of the
Proposed Acquisition and the Evaluation Date. Additionally, the Exchange Rate assumed in
our evaluation is based on closing exchange rate as at 29 January 2021, which may be
different from the exchange rate applicable as at the completion of the SPA.

The Indicative Valuation is highly dependent on, amongst others, the achievability of the
Financial Projections as well as the materialisation of the bases and assumptions used in the
Indicative Valuation as stated in Section 5.1 of this letter. Financial Projections are inherently
uncertain and are based on predictions of future events that cannot be assured. We wish to
highlight that the Indicative Valuation may be materially or adversely affected should the
actual results or events differ from any of the bases and assumptions upon which the
Indicative Valuation and/or the Financial Projections were based.
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5.4 Comparison between Indicative Valuation and Purchase Consideration

The Purchase Consideration for the Proposed Acquisition falls within the range of the
estimated range of indicative values of 83.33% equity interest in QCL as shown below:

Table 2: Estimated Range of Indicative Values of QCL

Equity interest involved

Range of indicative values of 100% equity
interest in QCL (RM million)!"

Purchase Consideration (RM million)
Range of indicative values of 83.33% equity
interest in QCL (RM million )

(A)
{8)

{A) x (B)

161.8 to 181.2

83.33%
150.00
134.9 to 151.0

interest in QCL.

(1) Please refer to Table 1 for further details on the range of indicative values of 100% equity

(2) Estimated range of indicative values of 83,33% equity interest in QCL (pro-rated based on
100% equity interest in QCL) of USD33.4 million to USD37.4 million {approximately RM134.9
million to RM151.0 million translated based on the Exchange Rate)

5.5  Implied EBITDA Multiple

The implied EBITDA Multiple based on the Indicative Valuation of QCL is set out below.

Table 3: Implied EBITDA Multiple

Implied EBITDA
Enterprise value EBITDA Multiple
{RM million) (RM million)™! (times)
QcL | 146210 165.61" 7.6 19.3 0 21.8
Rotes:

(1) Please refer to Table 1 for the range of enterprise value of 100% equity interest in QCL.,

(2) Annualised base on EBITDA of the audited consclidated financial statements of QCL and its
subsidiary for 13 months FPE 31 January 2021 and translated base on the Exchange Rate,

Please note that the derivation of the EBITDA is subjective and judgmental and the EBITDA
may not necessarily be maintainable.

The above implied EBITDA Multiple of QCL of 19.3 to 21.8 times is around the range of the
adjusted traded EBITDA Multiple of the Comcos of 2.9 to 19.4 times as at the Evaluation Date.
The range of adjusted traded EBITDA Multiple of the Comcos referred to in this letter is based
on the Comcos selected for the purpose of the Indicative Valuation, after excluding outliers.
The range of the adjusted traded EBITDA Multiple is estimated based on the data of Comcos,
taking into consideration, amongst others, the size and country risk of Comcos and QCL, and
the unlisted status of QCL. Please note that the selection of Comcos and adjustments made
are highly subjective and judgemental and the selected Comcos may not be entirely
comparable due to various factors.

Please refer to Appendix 1 for further details on the adjusted traded EBITDA Multiple of the

%&m
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5.6 Implied PB Multiple
The implied PB Multiple based on the Indicative Valuation of QCL is set out below,

Table 4: Implied PE Multiple

Equity value Net Assets Implied PE Multiple
(RM million) (RM million)'%! (times)
QCL 161.8 to 181.211 20.0 8.1t 9.1

Notes:

{1) Please refer to Table 1 for the range of indicative values of 1008 equity interest in QCL.

(2) Derived based on the net assets of the audited consolidated financial statements of QCL and its
subsidiary as at 31 January 2021 and translated based on the Exchange Rate, Please note that the |
derivation of the Net Assets is subjective and judgmental and the Net Assets may not necessarily

| e maintainable.

The above implied PB Multiple of QCL of 8.1 to 9.1 times is within the range of the adjusted
PB Multiple of Comcos of 0.6 to 20.9 times as at the Evaluation Date, The range of adjusted
PB Multiple of the Comcos referred to in this letter is based on the Comcos selected for the
purpose of the Indicative Valuation. The adjusted P8 Multiple is based on the data of Comcos,
taking into consideration, amongst others, the size and country risk of Comcos and QCL, and
the unlisted status of QCL. Please note that the selection of Comcos and adjustments made
are highly subjective and judgemental and the selected Comcos may not be entirely
comparable due to various factors.

Please refer to Appendix 1 for further details on the adjusted PB Multiple of Comcos.

6 Conclusion

We have taken note of the rationale of the Proposed Acquisition as set out in Section 4 of the
Circular. We are of the opinion that the Purchase Consideration for the Proposed Acquisition
is fair from a financial point of view based on the key bases and assumptions as set out in
Section 5.1 of this letter and cur Indicative Valuation on QCL as outlined in Section 5.3 of
this letter, and the implied EBITDA Multiple as set out in Section 3.5 of this letter and the
implied PB Multiple as set out in Section 5.6 of this letter, as well as our consideration that
the Purchase Consideration of RM150.0 million for the Proposed Acquisition falls within the
range of the indicative values of 83.33% equity interest in QCL of RM134.9 million to RM151.0
million as shown in Table 2 of Section 5.4 of this letter.

We wish to highlight that the Proposed Acquisition is a commercial and business decision
undertaken by KAB's Board of Directors and the future contribution of QCL Group is
dependent on QCL Group's future business prospect and the ability of KAB to realise the
benefits arising from the Proposed Acquisition,

7 Restriction

This letter is prepared solely for the inclusion in the Circular in relation to the Proposed
Acquisition. Other than as specified in this letter, it is not intended for general circulation or
publication and is not to be reproduced, quoted or referred to, in whole or in part, in any
public document or announcement without the prior written consent of BDO. We reserve the
right to amend this letter in terms of its format and contents before providing our consent.

&’ Page 11 of 17

108



APPENDIX V

EXPERT’S REPORT IN RELATION TO THE FAIRNESS OF THE PURCHASE CONSIDERATION
FOR THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION (CONT’D)

IBDO

Accerdingly, we are not responsible or liable for any form of losses however occasioned to
any third party as a result of the circulation, publication, reproduction or use of, or reliance
on this letter, in whole or in part, contrary to the provisicn set out in this letter and our
engagement letter.

Meither BDO nor any of its members or employees undertakes responsibility arising in any way
whatsoever to any person in respect of this letter, including any error or omission therein,
however caused. We are under no cbligation to update this letter in respect of events or
information that came to our attention subsequent to 21 May 2021.

Yours faithfully,

142

Wong Wing Seong Looi Ee Li
Executive Director - Advisory Director - Advisory

Appendix 1: Comparable Listed Companies Selected
Appendix 2: Derivation of Discount Rates
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APPENDIX V

EXPERT’S REPORT IN RELATION TO THE FAIRNESS OF THE PURCHASE CONSIDERATION

FOR THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION (CONT’D)
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APPENDIX V

EXPERT’S REPORT IN RELATION TO THE FAIRNESS OF THE PURCHASE CONSIDERATION

FOR THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION (CONT’D)
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APPENDIX V

EXPERT’S REPORT IN RELATION TO THE FAIRNESS OF THE PURCHASE CONSIDERATION

FOR THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION (CONT’D)
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APPENDIX V

EXPERT’S REPORT IN RELATION TO THE FAIRNESS OF THE PURCHASE CONSIDERATION
FOR THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION (CONT’D)

Appendix 2: Derivation of Discount Rates

The un-geared beta of the selected Comcos is estimated as follows:

Company Hame I-year weekly beta up Debt/Equity Corporate Ungeared
to 31 January 2021 U ratio 1 | tax rate beta

HAR 1.514 0.103 ] 14}}-1 1.50%

| Microware 0.732 00% | 1658 0.684

| Expert Systems . 0161 0.0m 16.5% 0,744

.P'L:TE' S_t_waige | 1.627 0.156 11.0% 1,449 |
Premler | ose 0,089 008 | 0461 |
HetApp . 1.163 0,198 21.0% 1-.01: .
HFE 1.1%4 1.0M B1.0% 0,647
Hotes: . s ™

{1} Extrocted from Bloomberg. The Comcos' weekly betas are extracted from period 1 February 2018 o
31 Jdanuary 2021,

(2] Computed based on 3 months daily volume weighted overage market price o5 at 31 Janwary 2021
extracted from Eloomberg muitiplied by the share outstanding a5 at 37 fanuary 2021 and carnging
gmounts of interest bearing debis extrocted from the lotest avalloble quarterly management
gocounts up to 31 Januany 2021 of the Comcos.

(3 aAfter country odjustment of 5% downward far Comcos listed in Hong Kong, T0% dewnward for Comeo
listed in Thailand and 15% downward for Comcoo listed in Molaysio, taking into consideration the
respective country risk o compared to United States of America fos QEL's functional currency is
denominated in US0),

|4} Please note that the odjustments mode are highly subljective and judgsmental.

THE REMAIMDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIOHALY LEFT BLAMK

Page 17 af 17
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APPENDIX VI

DIRECTOR’S REPORT ON QCL

QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED
Vistra Corporate Services Centre
Wickhams Cay [I, Road Town, Tortolz
WG1110 British Virgin Islands

Date: 05 JUL 201

Tao:

The shareholders of Kronologi Asia Berhad

Dear SirMadam,

On behalf of the Board of Directors {“Board™) of Quantum China Limited (“QCL” or “Company™), | wish to
report that after making due enquiries in relation to our Company and its subsidiaries (“QCL Group™) during the
period between 31 January 2021, being the date on which the latest audited financial statements of QCL Group
have been made up, and the date thereof, being a date not earlier than 14 days before the date of this Circular:

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e

(f)

in the opinion of the Board, the business of QCL Group has been satisfactorily maintained;

in the opinion of the Board, no circumstances have arisen since the last audited financial statements of
QCL Group which have adversely affected the trading or the value of the assets of QCL Group;

the current assets of QCL Group appear in the books at values which are believed to be realisable in the
ordinary course of business;

there are no contingent liabilities which have arisen by reason of any guarantees or indemnities given by
QCL Group;

since the last audited financial statements of QCL Group, there has been no default or any known event
that could give rise to a default situation, in respect of payment of either interest and/or principal sums in
relation to any borrowings in which the directors are aware of; and

to the best knowledge of the Board, there have been no material changes in the published reserves or any
unusual factors affecting the results of QCL Group since the last audited financial statements of QCL
Group.

Yours faithfully,
For and behalf of the Board of
QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED

Wong Gang
Directar
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APPENDIX VII

FURTHER INFORMATION

1.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This Circular has been seen and approved by our Board and they collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and confirm that, after having made all reasonable
enquiries and to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no false or misleading statements or
information contained in this Circular, or other facts and information, the omission of which would make
any statement in this Circular false or misleading.

CONSENTS

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

TA Securities

TA Securities, being the adviser for the Proposed Acquisition, has given and has not subsequently
withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this Circular of its name and all references thereto
in the form and context in which they appear in this Circular.

BDO

BDO, being the provider of the Expert’s Report, has given and has not subsequently withdrawn its
written consent to the inclusion in this Circular of its name, the said Expert’s Report in Appendix
V of this Circular and all references thereto in the form and context in which they appear in this
Circular.

Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP

Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP, being the solicitors on Singapore laws and provider of the Legal
Opinion to our Company for the Proposed Acquisition, has given and has not subsequently
withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this Circular of its name, the said legal opinion in
Appendix IV of this Circular and all references to it in the form and context in which they appear
in this Circular.

Providence
Providence, being the independent market researcher, has given and has not subsequently

withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in this Circular of its name, the IMR Report and all
references thereto in the form and context in which they appear in this Circular.

CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

3.1

3.2

TA Securities

TA Securities has confirmed that it is not aware of any conflict of interest which exists or is likely
to exist in its capacity as the adviser for the Proposed Acquisition.

BDO

BDO has confirmed that it is not aware of any conflict of interest which exists or is likely to exist
in its capacity as the provider of the Expert’s Report.
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APPENDIX VII

FURTHER INFORMATION (CONT’D)

3.3

3.4

Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP

Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP has confirmed that, save as disclosed below, it is not aware of any
conflict of interest which exists or is likely to exist in its capacity as the provider of the Legal
Opinion to our Company for the Proposed Acquisition.

For information only, Wong Gang, (a partner in Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP), assisted in the
incorporation of QCL and was appointed by QCL on 24 May 2018 as a non-executive nominee
director as part of the corporate secretarial services provided by Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP to
QCL. QCL was incorporated in the BVI on 24 May 2018 and Yang Lanjiang was the then sole
beneficial owner and operator of QCL. Yang Lanjiang is a Chinese national and therefore needed a
Singapore-based nominee director to assist in its administrative matters. Wong Gang was appointed
as the sole nominee director of QCL at its incorporation to assist on all the administrative matters
in Singapore (i.e., opening of bank accounts, convening of meetings, signing of minutes and all
necessary routine legal documents, etc.). QCL had no other personnel or representatives physically
located in Singapore at that time and thus required a Singapore nominee director to assist in handling
the said matters. Further, Wong Gang does not draw any salary, director’s fee, or remuneration from
QCL for his role as a nominee director. QCL pays Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP an annual retainer
fee for the abovementioned corporate secretarial services which is an insignificant amount
compared to Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP’s total revenue for 2020.

Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP is responsible for, amongst others, co-ordinating the Legal Opinion
and the legal due diligence of QCL and QST which were conducted by the respective local legal
counsels in the BVI and China.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP is of the opinion that there is no
conflict of interest arising from Wong Gang’s position as a nominee director of QCL as his
directorship is of a non-executive capacity and he was appointed as part of the corporate secretarial
services provided by Shook Lin & Bok LLP to QCL since incorporation, such services which
include:

0] signing of the audited accounts of QCL; and
(i)  voting in board of directors” meeting and signing resolutions relating to the following:

o appointment and resignation of directors;

opening of bank accounts;

convening of general meetings;

change of company’s name;

changes to the company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association;

change of auditors; and

any other routine corporate or administrative matters as required by QCL (including
the signing of the Strategic Marketing Agreement and Service Partner Agreement
with Quantum in 2018)

As such, Wong Gang is not and will not be generally involved in any day-to-day financial or
operational matters or management of QCL Group. In addition, apart from the usual corporate
secretarial services, Messrs. Shook Lin & Bok LLP is also not providing any legal advice to the
Vendor and the QCL Group whatsoever.

Providence

Providence has confirmed that it is not aware of any conflict of interest which exists or is likely to
exist in its capacity as the independent market researcher for the Proposed Acquisition.

117



APPENDIX VII

FURTHER INFORMATION (CONT’D)

4.

MATERIAL LITIGATION, CLAIMS AND ARBITRATION

As at the LPD, neither our Company nor our subsidiary companies are engaged in any material litigation,
claims or arbitration either as plaintiff or defendant, which has a material effect on the financial position
of our Company and our Group and our Board is not aware of any proceedings pending or threatened, or
of any facts likely to give rise to any proceedings, which might materially and adversely affect the business
or financial position of our Group.

MATERIAL COMMITMENT
Save as disclosed below, as at the LPD, our Board is not aware of any material commitment incurred or

known to be incurred by our Company or our Group, which upon becoming enforceable, may have material
impact on the financial position of our Group:

As at the LPD
Description (RM’000)
Commitment for the Purchase Consideration 150,000

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the LPD, our Board is not aware of any contingent liability incurred or known to be incurred by our
Company or our Group, which upon becoming enforceable, may have a material impact on the financial
position of our Group.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at our registered office at Third Floor, No.
77,79 & 81, Jalan SS 21/60, Damansara Utama, 47400 Petaling Jaya, Selangor during normal business
hours from 8.30 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. from Monday to Friday (excluding public holidays) for the period
commencing from the date of this Circular up to and including the date of our forthcoming EGM:

0] the Constitution of our Company;

(i) our Group’s audited financial statements for FYEs 31 December 2019 and 13M-FPE 31 January
2021 as well as unaudited results for the 3-month financial period ended 30 April 2021;

(iii) the Memorandum and Articles of Association of QCL;

(iv) audited financial statements of QCL Group for FPE 2018, FYE 31 December 2019 and 13M-FPE
31 January 2021,

v) the letters of consent and conflict of interest as referred to in Sections 2 and 3 above;
(vi) the Agreements as referred to in Appendix | of this Circular;

(vii) Legal Opinion as set out in Appendix IV of this Circular;

(viii)  Expert’s Report as set out in Appendix V of this Circular;

(ix) the Directors’ Report as set out in Appendix V1 of this Circular; and

) IMR Report.
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KRONOLOGI ASIA BERHAD
(Registration No. 201301037868 (1067697-K))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT an Extraordinary General Meeting of Kronologi Asia Berhad (“KAB” or
“Company”) will be conducted on a fully virtual basis via remote participation and electronic voting via online
meeting platform at TIIH Online Website at https://tiih.online or https://tith.com.my (Domain registration number
with MYNIC: D1A282781) provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn. Bhd. on Friday, 23 July
2021 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, passing with
or without modifications, the following resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

PROPOSED ACQUISITION BY KAB OF THE REMAINING 83.33% EQUITY INTEREST IN
QUANTUM CHINA LIMITED (*“QCL”), COMPRISING 100 ORDINARY SHARES OF USD 1 EACH
IN QCL (“SALE SHARES”) FROM LAVENDER BLOOMS INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“VENDOR”)
FOR A PURCHASE CONSIDERATION OF UP TO RM150,000,000, TO BE SATISFIED VIA A
COMBINATION OF CASH PAYMENT OF UP TO RM75,000,000 AND THE ALLOTMENT AND
ISSUANCE OF UP TO 110,294,117 NEW ORDINARY SHARES IN KAB (“KAB SHARES”)
(“CONSIDERATION SHARES”) AT THE ISSUE PRICE OF RMO0.68 PER CONSIDERATION SHARE
(“ISSUE PRICE”) (“PROPOSED ACQUISITION”)

“THAT, subject to the relevant conditions precedent as stipulated in the conditional sale and purchase agreement
entered into on 24 May 2021 as amended vide a supplemental deed between KAB and the Vendor (“Agreements”)
for the Proposed Acquisition being met or waived (as the case may be), approval be and is hereby given for the
Company to acquire from the Vendor, the Sale Shares, representing the remaining 83.33% equity interest in QCL
for a total purchase consideration of up to RM150,000,000 to be satisfied via the cash payment of RM75,000,000
and allotment and issuance of up to 110,294,117 new Consideration Shares at the Issue Price in accordance to the
terms and conditions of the Agreements including any modifications, variations, amendments and additions
thereto from time to time;

THAT, the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) be and is hereby authorised to allot and issue from time
to time such number of new Consideration Shares as may be required to be issued to the Vendor and/or its
nominees pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreements AND approval be further given to the Board to
determine and vary if it deemed fit, necessary and/or expedient, the Issue Price in accordance with the provisions
of the Agreements;

THAT the Consideration Shares, when allotted and issued, shall rank in all respects equally with the existing
issued KAB Shares as at the date they are being allotted and issued, save and except that the Consideration Shares
shall not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distributions that may be declared, made or
paid to the shareholders of the Company, the entitlement date of which is prior to the date of allotment and issuance
of the Consideration Shares;

AND THAT the Board be and is hereby empowered and authorised to take all such steps and do all acts, deeds
and things to enter into any arrangements, transactions, agreements and/or undertakings and to execute, sign and
deliver on behalf of the Company, all such documents as they may deem necessary, expedient and/or appropriate
to implement and give full effect to and to complete the Proposed Acquisition with full powers to assent to any
conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem fit,
necessary, expedient, appropriate and/or as may be imposed or permitted by any relevant authorities in connection
with the Proposed Acquisition.”

By Order of the Board

TEA SOR HUA (MACS 01324) (CCM PC NO. 201908001272)
Company Secretary

Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan

Date: 8 July 2021


https://tiih.online/
https://tiih.com.my/

Notes:

1.

10.

11.

A member who is entitled to attend, participate, speak and vote at the Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM” or “Meeting”) shall be
entitled to appoint more than one (1) proxy to attend, participate, speak and vote at the Meeting in his/her stead. Where a member appoints
more than one (1) proxy, he/she shall specify the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend the Meeting, the Company will be requesting Bursa Malaysia
Depository Sdn Bhd in accordance with Clause 63(b) of the Company’s Constitution to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as
at 15 July 2021. Only members whose names appear on the General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 15 July 2021 shall be regarded
as members entitled to attend, participate, speak and vote at the Meeting.

A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. A proxy appointed to attend and vote at the Meeting shall have the same rights
as the member to speak at the Meeting.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if
the appointor is a corporation, either under the seal or under the hand of an officer or an attorney duly authorised.

Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it
may appoint not more than 2 proxies in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the
credit of the said securities account.

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial
owners in 1 securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may
appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds. The appointment of multiple proxies shall not be valid unless the proportion of its
shareholdings represented by each proxy is specified.

To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Share Registrar Office of the Company at Unit 32-01, Level 32
Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or its Customer Service Centre
at Unit G-3, Ground Floor, Vertical Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or alternatively, in
the case of an appointment made via TIIH Online, the electronic proxy form must be submitted at https://tiih.online. All proxy forms
submitted must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the person named in the instrument proposes to vote.

The resolution set out in the Notice of Meeting will be put to vote by poll.

The Meeting will be conducted on fully virtual basis via online meeting platform at TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online or
https://tiih.com.my (Domain registration number with MYNIC: D1A282781) provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn
Bhd, members are advised to refer to the Administrative Guide on the registration and voting process for the Meeting.

Members or proxies are to attend, speak (including posing questions to the Board via real time submission of typed texts) and vote
(collectively, “participate”) remotely at the Meeting using Remote Participation and Voting Facilities provided by Share Registrar via
its TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online. Please refer to the Administrative Guide of the Meeting as enclosed for further information
in relation thereto.

In view of the constant evolving COVID-19 situation in Malaysia, we may be required to change the arrangements of our EGM at short
notice. Kindly check Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s and the Company’s website at https://www.kronologi.asia/investor-centre-
reports/ for the latest updates on the status of the EGM.


https://tiih.com.my/

KRONOLOGI ASIA BERHAD
(Registration No. 201301037868 (1067697-K))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE FOR THE FULLY VIRTUAL EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
OF KRONOLOGI ASIA BERHAD (“KAB” OR “COMPANY”) (“EGM” OR “MEETING”)

Day, Date . Friday, 23 July 2021
Time : 10.00 a.m.
Online Meeting Platform : TIIH Online website at https://tith.online or https:/tiih.com.my (Domain

registration number with MYNIC: D1A282781) provided by Tricor Investor
& Issuing House Services Sdn. Bhd.

MODE OF MEETING

As a result of the implementation of the Full Movement Control Order (“FMCQ”), the Securities Commission
Malaysia had revised the Guidance Note and FAQs on the conduct of General Meetings for Listed Issuers (“the
Revised Guidance Note and FAQs”) to state that effective 1 June 2021, any general meeting conducted during
the FMCO, is only allowed to conduct a fully virtual meeting where all meeting participants including the
Chairman of the meeting, board members, senior management and shareholders are required to participate in the
meeting online. Physical gatherings no matter how small are prohibited.

REMOTE PARTICIPATION AND VOTING FACILITIES (“RPV FACILITIES”)

Shareholders are to attend, speak (including posing questions to the Board via real time submission of typed texts)
and vote (collectively, “participate”) remotely at the Meeting using RPV Facilities provided by Tricor via its
TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online.

A shareholder who has appointed a proxy or attorney or authorised representative to participate at this EGM via
RPV Facilities must request his/her proxy or attorney or authorised representative to register himself/herself for
the RPV Facilities at Tricor’s TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online.

As the EGM will be held as a fully virtual meeting, shareholders who are unable to participate in this EGM may
appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as his/her proxy and indicate the voting instructions in the Proxy Form.

PROCEDURES FOR RPV FACILITIES

Shareholders/proxies/corporate representatives/attorneys who wish to participate the Meeting remotely using the
RPV Facilities are to follow the requirements and procedures as summarised below:

Procedure Action

BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING

(8) | Registerasa e Using your computer, access the website at https://tiih.online. Register as a user

user with TIIH under the “e-Services” select “Create Account by Individual Holder”. Refer to

Online the tutorial guide posted on the homepage for assistance.

e Registration as a user will be approved within one (1) working day and you will
be notified via e-mail.

e If you are already a user with TIIH Online, you are not required to register again.
You will receive an e-mail to notify you that the remote participation is available
for registration at TIIH Online.
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(b) | Request to | « Registration is open from Thursday, 8 July 2021 until the day of EGM on

attend EGM Friday, 23 July 2021. Shareholder(s) or proxy(ies) or corporate

remotely representative(s) or attorney(s) are required to pre-register their attendance
for the Meeting to ascertain their eligibility to participate the Meeting using
the RPV.

e Login with your user ID and password and select the corporate event:

“(REGISTRATION) KRONOLOGI EGM”.

Read and agree to the Terms & Conditions and confirm the Declaration.

Select “Register for Remote Participation and Voting”

Review your registration and proceed to register

System will send an e-mail to notify that your registration for remote participation

is received and will be verified.

e  After verification of your registration against the General Meeting Record of
Depositors as at 15 July 2021, the system will send you an e-mail after 21 July
2021 to approve or reject your registration for remote participation and the
procedures to use the RPV are detailed therein. In the event your registration is
not approved, you will also be notified via email.

(Note: Please ensure to allow sufficient time required for the approval as a new
user of TITH Online as well as the registration for RPV in order that you can login
to TIIH Online and participate the Meeting remotely).

ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING

(c) | Loginto e Login with your user ID and password for remote participation at the Meeting at
TIHH Online any time from 9.00 a.m. i.e., 1 hour before the commencement of the Meeting on
Friday, 23 July 2021 at 10.00 a.m..

(d) | Participate e  Select the corporate event:
through Live (LIVE STREAM MEETING) KRONOLOGI EGM to engage in the
Streaming proceedings of the Meeting remotely.

= |If you have any question for the Chairman/Board, you may use the query box to
transmit your question. The Chairman/Board will endeavor to respond to
questions submitted by remote participants during the Meeting. If there is time
constraint, the responses will be e-mailed to you at the earliest possible, after the
meeting.

(e) | Onlineremote | ¢ Voting session commences from Friday, 23 July 2021 at 10.00 a.m. until a time

voting when the Chairman announces the completion of the voting session of the
Meeting.

e Select the corporate event: “(REMOTE VOTING) KRONOLOGI EGM” or if

you are on the live stream meeting page, you can select “GO TO REMOTE

VOTING PAGE” button below the Query Box.

Read and agree to the Terms & Conditions and confirm the Declaration.

Select the CDS account that represents your shareholdings.

Indicate your votes for the resolutions that are tabled for voting.

Confirm and submit your votes.

(f) | End of remote | «  Upon the announcement by the Chairman on the closure of the Meeting, the live
participation streaming will end.

Note to users of the RPV Facilities:

1. Should your application to join the Meeting be approved we will make available to you the rights to join the
live streamed meeting and to vote remotely. Your login to TIIH Online on the day of Meeting will indicate
your presence at the virtual Meeting.

2. The quality of your connection to the live broadcast is dependent on the bandwidth and stability of the internet
at your location and the device you use.



3. In the event you encounter any issues with logging-in, connection to the live streamed meeting or online
voting, kindly call Tricor Help Line at 011-40805616 / 011-40803168 / 011-40803169 / 011-40803170 for
assistance or e-mail to tiih.online@my.tricorglobal.com for assistance.

ENTITLEMENT TO PARTICIPATE AND APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

= Only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors as at 15 July 2021 shall be eligible to
attend, speak and vote at the EGM or appoint a proxy(ies) and/or the Chairman of the Meeting to attend
and vote on his/her behalf.

= In view that the EGM will be conducted on a virtual basis, a member can appoint the Chairman of the
Meeting as his/her proxy and indicate the voting instruction in the Form of Proxy.

= If you wish to participate in the EGM yourself, please do not submit any Form of Proxy for the EGM. You
will not be allowed to participate in the EGM together with a proxy appointed by you.

= Accordingly, proxy forms and/or documents relating to the appointment of proxy/corporate
representative/attorney for the EGM whether in hard copy or by electronic means shall be deposited or
submitted in the following manner not later than Wednesday, 21 July 2021 at 10.00 a.m.:

(i) In Hard copy:

a) By hand or post to the office of the Share Registrar, Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services
Sdn Bhd at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar
South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or its Customer Service Centre at Unit G-
3, Ground Floor, Vertical Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200
Kuala Lumpur;

b) By fax at 03-2783 9222 or e-mail to is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com

(i) By Electronic form:

All shareholders can have the option to submit proxy forms electronically via TIIH Online and the
steps to submit are summarised below:

ELECTRONIC LODGEMENT OF PROXY FORM

The procedures to lodge your proxy form electronically via Tricor’s TIIH Online website are summarised below:

Procedure Action

i. Steps for Individual Shareholders

Register as a User . Using your computer, please access the website at https://tiih.online. Register as a

with THHH Online user under the “e-Services”. Please refer to the tutorial guide posted on the
homepage for assistance.
. If you are already a user with TIIH Online, you are not required to register again.
Proceed with . After the release of the Notice of Meeting by the Company, login with your
submission of form username (i.e., email address) and password.
of proxy . Select the corporate event: KRONOLOGI EGM - “Submission of Proxy Form”.
. Read and agree to the Terms and Conditions and confirm the Declaration.
. Insert your CDS account number and indicate the number of shares for your
proxy(s) to vote on your behalf.
. Indicate your voting instructions — FOR or AGAINST, otherwise your proxy will

decide on your votes.
. Review and confirm your proxy(s) appointment.
. Print the form of proxy for your record.



mailto:tiih.online@my.tricorglobal.com
mailto:is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com
https://tiih.online/
https://tiih.online/

ii. Steps for corporation or institutional shareholders

Register as a User . Access TIIH Online at httQS//tllhonllne
with THIH Online | ©  Under e-Services, the authorised or nominated representative of the corporation or

institutional shareholder selects “Create Account by Representative of
Corporate Holder”.

. Complete the registration form and upload the required documents.

. Registration will be verified, and you will be notified by email within one (1) to
two (2) working days.

. Proceed to activate your account with the temporary password given in the email
and re-set your own password.

Note: The representative of a corporation or institutional shareholder must register as a
user in accordance with the above steps before he/she can subscribe to this corporate
holder electronic proxy submission. Please contact our Share Registrar if you need
clarifications on the user registration.

Proceed with . Login to TIIH Online at https://tiih.online
submission of form | Select the corporate exercise name: “KRONOLOGI EGM: Submission of Proxy

Form”

of proxy . Agree to the Terms & Conditions and Declaration.

. Proceed to download the file format for “Submission of Proxy Form” in accordance
with the Guidance Note set therein.

. Prepare the file for the appointment of proxies by inserting the required data.

. Submit the proxy appointment file.

. Login to TIIH Online, select corporate exercise name: “KRONOLOGI EGM:
Submission of Proxy Form”.

. Proceed to upload the duly completed proxy appointment file.

. Select “Submit” to complete your submission.

. Print the confirmation report of your submission for your record.

POLL VOTING

The voting at the Meeting will be conducted by poll in accordance with Rule 8.31A of ACE Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The Company has appointed Tricor as Poll Administrator to
conduct the poll by way of electronic voting (e-voting).

Shareholder(s) or proxy(ies) or corporate representative(s) or attorney(s) can proceed to vote on the resolutions at
any time from 10.00 a.m. on Friday, 23 July 2021 but before the end of the voting session which will be
announced by the Chairman of the meeting. Kindly refer to item (e) of the above Procedures for RPV Facilities
for guidance on how to vote remotely from TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online.

Upon completion of the voting session for Meeting, the Scrutineers will verify the poll results followed by the
Chairman’s declaration whether the resolutions are duly passed.

PRE-MEETING SUBMISSION OF QUESTION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shareholders may submit questions for the Board in advance of the Meting via Tricor’s TIIH Online website at
https://tiih.online by selecting “e-Services” to login, pose questions and submit electronically not later than
Wednesday, 21 July 2021 at 10.00 a.m. The Board will endeavor to answer the questions received at the Meeting.

NO RECORDING OR PHOTOGRAPHY

By participating at the Meeting, you agree that no part of the Meeting proceedings may be recorded, photographed,
stored in any retrieval systems, reproduced, transmitted or uploaded in any form, platform or social media or by
any means whether it is mechanical, electronical, photocopying, recording or otherwise without the prior written
consent of the Company. The Company reserves the rights to take appropriate legal actions against anyone who
violates this rule.
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NO DOOR GIFT/FOOD VOUCHER

There will be no distribution of door gifts or food vouchers for the Meeting since the meeting will be conducted
on a fully virtual basis.

The Company would like to thank all its shareholders for their kind co-operation and understanding in these
challenging times.
ENQUIRY

If you have any enquiries on the above, please contact the following persons during office hours on Mondays to
Fridays from 8:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. (except on public holidays):

Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn. Bhd.

General Line : +603-2783 9299

Fax Number : +603-2783 9222

Email : Is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com

Contact persons : Lim Lay Kiow +603-27839232 (lay.Kiow.Lim@my.tricorglobal.com)

Siti Zalina +603-27839247 (Siti.Zalina@my.tricorglobal.com)
Lim Jia Jin +603-27839246 (Jia.Jin.Lim@my.tricorglobal.com)
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KRONOLOGI ASIA BERHAD
(Registration No. 201301037868 (1067697-K))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

PROXY FORM

(Before completing this form please refer to the notes below) No. of shares held

CDS Account No.
1/We * NRIC/Passport/Registration No.*
(Full name in block)
of
(Address)
with email address mobile phone no.

being a member/members* of KRONOLOGI ASIA BERHAD (“the Company”) hereby appoint(s):-

Full Name (in Block) NRIC/Passport No. Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares %

Address

Email Address
Mobile Phone No.

and
Full Name (in Block) NRIC/Passport No. Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares %
Address

Email Address
Mobile Phone No.

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/our *proxy/proxies to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the
Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company (“EGM” or “Meeting”) to be conducted on a fully virtual basis via remote
participation and electronic voting via online meeting platform at TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online or
https://tith.com.my (Domain registration number with MYNIC: D1A282781) provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing House
Services Sdn Bhd on Friday, 23 July 2021 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate spaces how you wish your votes to be cast. If not specific direction as to vote is
given, the Proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.

For Against

Ordinary Resolution Proposed Acquisition

*  Delete if not applicable.

Dated this day of 2021

Signature of Member(s) / Common Seal

Notes:

1. A member who is entitled to attend, participate, speak and vote at the EGM shall be entitled to appoint more than one (1) proxy to attend,
participate, speak and vote at the Meeting in his/her stead. Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, he/she shall specify the
proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.



10.

11.

For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend the Meeting, the Company will be requesting Bursa Malaysia
Depository Sdn Bhd in accordance with Clause 63(b) of the Company’s Constitution to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as
at 15 July 2021. Only members whose names appear on the General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 15 July 2021 shall be regarded
as members entitled to attend, participate, speak and vote at the Meeting.

A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. A proxy appointed to attend and vote at the Meeting shall have the same rights
as the member to speak at the Meeting.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if
the appointor is a corporation, either under the seal or under the hand of an officer or an attorney duly authorised.

Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it
may appoint not more than 2 proxies in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the
credit of the said securities account.

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial
owners in 1 securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may
appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds. The appointment of multiple proxies shall not be valid unless the proportion of its
shareholdings represented by each proxy is specified.

To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Share Registrar Office of the Company at Unit 32-01, Level 32
Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or its Customer Service Centre
at Unit G-3, Ground Floor, Vertical Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur or alternatively, in
the case of an appointment made via TIIH Online, the electronic proxy form must be submitted at https://tiih.online. All proxy forms
submitted must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the person named in the instrument proposes to vote.

The resolution set out in the Notice of Meeting will be put to vote by poll.

The Meeting will be conducted on a fully virtual basis via online meeting platform at TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online or
https://tiih.com.my (Domain registration number with MYNIC: D1A282781) provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn
Bhd, members are advised to refer to the Administrative Guide on the registration and voting process for the Meeting.

Members or proxies are to attend, speak (including posing questions to the Board via real time submission of typed texts) and vote
(collectively, “participate”) remotely at the Meeting using Remote Participation and Voting Facilities provided by Share Registrar via
its TIIH Online website at https://tiih.online. Please refer to the Administrative Guide of the Meeting as enclosed for further information
in relation thereto.

In view of the constant evolving COVID-19 situation in Malaysia, we may be required to change the arrangements of our EGM at short
notice. Kindly check Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s and the Company’s website at https://www.kronologi.asia/investor-centre-
reports/ for the latest updates on the status of the EGM.



Fold this flap for sealing

Then fold here

The Share Registrar

KRONOLOGI ASIA BERHAD

Registration No. 201301037868 (1067697-K)

Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn. Bhd.
Unit 32-01, Level 32 Tower A

Vertical Business Suite

Avenue 3, Bangsar South

No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi

59200 Kuala Lumpur
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